
 

 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Cooney, Convener; Jean Morrison MBE, Vice-Convener,   and 

Councillors Delaney, Dickson, Jackie Dunbar, Lesley Dunbar, Finlayson, 
Lawrence, McCaig, Milne, Nathan Morrison, Noble, Samarai, Jennifer Stewart 
and Thomson.  
  

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN 12 May 2014 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 The Members of the HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE are requested 
to meet in Council Chamber - Town House on TUESDAY, 20 MAY 2014 at 2.00 pm. 
 

 
JANE G. MACEACHRAN 

HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 

 REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATION 

 

 1.1  None received at this time   
 

 MINUTE, COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT AND ANNUAL REPORTS LIST 

 

 2.1  Minute of Previous Meeting of 11 March 2014  (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

 2.2  Committee Business Statement  (Pages 13 - 18) 
 

 2.3  Annual Reports List  (Pages 19 - 20) 
 

 REFERRAL FROM OTHER COMMITTEES/WORKING GROUPS 

 

 3.1  Reduction in General Waste Container Size Following Introduction of 
Mixed Recycling Collections - Referral from Zero Waste Management Sub 
Committee  (Pages 21 - 30) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 

 3.2  Homelessness Strategy Working Group, Change to Remit - Referral from 
the Homelessness Strategy Working Group  (Pages 31 - 34) 
 

 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE ISSUES 

 

 4.1  Housing and Environment Business Plan Performance and Actions - 
Report by the Director of Housing and Environment  (Pages 35 - 60) 
 

 FINANCE 

 

 5.1  2013-14 Housing Capital Programme - Joint Report by the Directors of 
Corporate Governance and Housing and Environment  (Pages 61 - 68) 
 

 5.2  2013-14 Revenue Budget Monitoring - Joint Report by the Directors of 
Corporate Governance and Housing and Environment  (Pages 69 - 78) 
 

 5.3  Capital Monitoring - Housing and Environment Projects - Report by the 
Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure  (Pages 79 - 82) 
 

 HOUSING 

 

 6.1  Affordable Housing Grant Assistance - Maidencraig and Hopetoun Grange 
- Report by the Director of Housing and Environment  (Pages 83 - 88) 
 

 6.2  Affordable Housing Delivery - Report by the Director for Housing and 
Environment  (Pages 89 - 94) 
 

 6.3  Welfare Reform and Financial Inclusion Update - Report by the Director of 
Housing and Environment  (Pages 95 - 106) 
 

 6.4  Requirement for Major Repairs at Various Seaton Multi Stories - Report by 
the Director of Housing and Environment  (Pages 107 - 120) 
 

 ENVIRONMENT 

 

 7.1  Project Brief for Hazlehead Grove Nursery Project - Report by the Director 
of Housing and Environment  (Pages 121 - 128) 
 

 7.2  Implementation of the approved recommendations of the United Kingdom 
Accreditation Service (UKAS) assessment of the Aberdeen Scientific 
Services Laboratory (ASSL) - Report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment  (Pages 129 - 132) 
 



 

 
 
 

 7.3  Procurement of Big Belly Litter Bins - Report by the Director of Housing 
and Environment  (Pages 133 - 136) 
 

 
 

 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Karen 
Riddoch, tel. 522723 or email kariddoch@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
ABERDEEN, 11 March 2014.  Minute of meeting of the HOUSING AND 
ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE.  Present:  Councillor Cooney, Convener; 
Councillor Jean Morrison MBE, Vice Convener;   and Councillors Delaney, 
Dickson, Jackie Dunbar, Lesley Dunbar, Finlayson, Lawrence, McCaig, Milne, 
Noble, Samarai, Jennifer Stewart, Thomson and Young (as substitute for 
Councillor Nathan Morrison). 

 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at the 
following link: 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=29
13&Ver=4 
 
Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of 
approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this 
document will not be retrospectively altered. 
 
 

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 14 JANUARY 2014 
 
1. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 14 January 
2014. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
2. The Committee had before it a statement of business prepared by the Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to remove items 11 (Update on Informal and Formal Joint Working and Shared 

Services Arrangements with Aberdeenshire Trading Standards and the Wider 
Scottish Trading Standards Community) and 13 (Sistema Scotland and 
Aberdeen);  

(ii) in relation to item 6 (Development of an Asset Management Plan for the 
Council’s Housing Stock) to note that briefings for elected members were being 
arranged for March or April; and 

(iii) to otherwise note the business statement. 
 
 
ANNUAL REPORTS LIST 
 
3. The Committee had before it a list of annual reports prepared by the Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services. 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 1



2 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

The Committee resolved:- 
to note the annual reports list. 
 
 
VISION STATEMENT FOR THE HAZLEHEAD GROVE NURSERY WORKING 
GROUP - H&E/14/031 
 
4. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which presented the vision statement for the Hazlehead Grove Nursery 
Project which would be used in various campaigns, promotions and media statements 
as the project progressed. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee approve the vision statement for the project. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT PLAN 
 
5. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which provided details of the Community Engagement Plan for the 
Hazlehead Grove Nursery Project which aimed to generate interest city wide from 
community groups and to encourage them to be involved with the development and use 
of the site. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee approve the Community Engagement Plan for the Hazlehead Grove 
Nursery Project. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request officers to provide a report in twelve months time (1) outlining the 

lessons learnt with the project and (2) to identify whether there were other areas 
across the City to expand on the project; 

(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
PROPOSALS FOR SITE DIVISION 
 
6. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which presented the proposals for dividing the Hazlehead Grove Nursery 
Site. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee approve the site division proposals contained within the report and 
the supporting site plans. 

Page 2



3 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation in the report. 
 
 
HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT BUSINESS PLAN PERFORMANCE AND ACTIONS 
- H&E/14/30 
 
7. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which presented the key performance measures and progress of key 
improvement work within the Housing and Environment Directorate. 
 
In relation to the update provided on the Clashieknowe Intermediate Care Project, the 
Committee noted the request from the Convener for a visit to the complex to be 
organised during the Easter holidays or the summer recess. 
 
In relation to the update provided on the Clean Up Aberdeen campaign, Councillor 
Finlayson requested whether the materials collected from the Clean Up operations 
across the City could be split up so as to be able to recycle some of the materials 
collected, hereupon the Head of Service advised that this would be looked at. 
 
In relation to Rent Management, Councillor Delaney asked what the Service were doing 
to identify those tenants entitled to a refund following the court ruling, whereupon the 
Housing Manager advised that the Revenues and Benefits Team were identifying those 
tenants entitled to the refund and were working with the Service to ensure the refunds 
were provided. 
 
In relation to Tenancy Management, Councillor Delaney asked what the Service were 
doing to improve the tenant visit figures, whereupon the Housing Manager advised that 
the process for setting the follow up appointment had been amended and that in some 
cases it was difficult to meet with tenants. 
 
In relation to Void Management, Councillor Finlayson asked what the Service were 
doing to reduce the high number of voids, whereupon the Housing Manager advised 
that there had been a range of new easures introduced during February to improve the 
letting of properties. 
 
In relation to Housing Allocations, Councillor Delaney sought clarification on the low 
percentage of new applications being processed, whereupon the Housing Manager 
advised that all applications were referred to the Prevention Team so that additional 
issues associated with applications could be identified or confirmed and that this 
delayed the process. 
 
In relation to Repairs Management, Councillor Delaney sought clarification on the low 
number of properties having received a gas safety check within twelve months, 
whereupon the Head of Service advised that work was ongoing to ensure that all 
properties were visited and that a renewal gas safety certificate was issued. 
 

Page 3



4 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in relation to the update provided on the Clashieknowe Intermediate Care Project 

to request officers to organise a visit for members to the complex preferably 
during the Easter holiday period or the summer recess; 

(ii) in relation to the update provided on the Clean Up Aberdeen campaign and a 
request from Councillor Finlayson, to request officers to establish whether the 
materials collected from the Clean Up operations across the City could be split 
up so as to be able to recycle some of the materials collected; 

(iii) in relation to Rent Management and in response to a question from Councillor 
Delaney relating to what the Service were doing to identify those tenants entitled 
to a refund following the court ruling, to note that the Revenues and Benefits 
Team were identifying those tenants entitled to the refund and were working with 
the Service to ensure the refunds were provided; 

(iv) in relation to Tenancy Management and in response to a question from 
Councillor Delaney relating to what the Service were doing to improve the tenant 
visit figures, to note that the process for setting the follow up appointment had 
been amended and that in some cases it was difficult to meet with tenants; 

(v) in relation to Void Management and in response to a question from Councillor 
Finlayson relating to what the Service were doing to reduce the high number of 
voids, to note that there had been a range of new measures introduced during 
February to improve the letting of properties; 

(vi) in relation to Housing Allocations and in response to a question from Councillor 
Delaney relating to the low percentage of new applications being processed, to 
note that all applications are now referred to the Prevention Team so that 
additional issues associated with applications could be identified or confirmed 
and that this delays the process; 

(vii) in relation to Repairs Management and in response to a question from Councillor 
Delaney relating to the low number of properties having received a gas safety 
check within twelve months, to note that work was ongoing to ensure that all 
properties were visited and that a renewal gas safety certificate was issued; 

(viii) to otherwise note the content of the report. 
 
 
2013-14 HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME - H&E/14/19 
 
8. With reference to article 9 of the minute of its meeting of 14 January 2014, the 
Committee had before it a joint report by the Director of Housing and Environment and 
the Director of Corporate Governance which provided a status report for the 2013/14 
Housing Capital Programme as at 31 December 2013 and summarised both income 
and expenditure in this regard. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) note the financial information contained within the report; 
(b) instruct that the Head of Finance continues to update the Committee in 

consultation with the Director for Housing and Environment on the actual outturn 
position for 2013/14 following completion of the year end statutory accounts; and 

Page 4



5 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

(c) approve the virements outlined in appendix 2 to the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
2013-14 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING - H&E/14/20 
 
9. With reference to article 10 of the minute of its meeting of 14 January 2014, the 
Committee hade before it a joint report by the Director of Housing and Environment and 
the Director of Corporate Governance which advised on the current year revenue 
budget performance to date for the services which relate to this Committee and any 
areas of risk management action. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee- 
(a) note the report and the information on management action and risks that is 

contained therein; 
(b) instruct officers to report the year end position to the appropriate committee; and 
(c) approve the request to earmark £400k from the 2013/14 under spend for 

2014/15 to spend on environmental improvements linked to Aberdeen’s 
Greenspace Strategy and In Bloom agenda.  

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the money earmarked as at recommendation (iii) would be used for 

improving areas across the city and that the suggestions made from elected 
members and the local community would be considered as part of the 
improvement plan for the projects; and 

(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
CAPITAL MONITORING - HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT PROJECTS - EPI/13/153 
 
10. With reference to article 11 of the minute of its meeting of 14 January 2014, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which advised on the capital spend to date for the Housing and 
Environment projects included in the Non-Housing Capital Programme. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee note the current position. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



6 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

Declaration of Interest 
 
Councillor Delaney declared an interest in the subject matter of the 
following article by virtue of his position as Chairperson of Grampian 
Housing Association and chose to withdraw from the meeting during this 
item of business. 
 
 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING - GRANT ASSISTANCE - H&E/14/27 
 
11. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which sought agreement on the provision of grant assistance to Grampian 
Housing Association to help deliver a housing development at Hopetoun Grange. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) approve a grant of up to £261,734 to enable the provision of 16 social rent units; 
(b) approve that the grant be paid from developer contributions received from 

Section 75 obligations; and 
(c) note that the approval of the grant would contribute to the Strategic Infrastructure 

Plan target of 2,030 new affordable houses by 2017. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
RENT ARREARS UPDATE - H&E/14/26 
 
12. With reference to article 12 of the minute of its meeting on 14 January 2014, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and Environment which 
provided an update on the actions being taken to implement targets for the 
management of rent arrears and in particular those tenants with 13 weeks or more of 
rent arrears. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee note the content of the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) that a letter be submitted to the Justice Minister expressing the concerns of the 

Committee relating to the number of cases currently being heard in court in any 
one week and the potential that this number is reduced and the effect that this 
would have on tenants incurring further debt; and 

(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendation in the report. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



7 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

PROPOSED HMO LICENCE FEES FOR 2014/15 - H&E/14/25 
 
13. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which sought approval to set the revised Houses in Multiple Occupation 
Licensing Fees from 1 April 2014. 
 
The report recommended:- 
That the Committee implement the new fee structure for the period of 2014/15 as set 
out in the following table, which shows a 10% reduction on the 2013/14 fees: 
 

Renewals New Applications 

No of 
Tenants 

Fee  
£ 

Part 1  
£ 

Part 2  
£ 

No of 
Tenants 

Fee  
£ 

Part 1 
£ 

Part 2 
£ 

3-5 250 125 125 3-5 495 370 125 

6-10 360 235 125 6-10 720 600 120 

11-20 675 550 125 11-20 1,350 1,225 125 

21-50 1,260 1,090 170 21-50 2,520 2,355 165 

51-100 2,115 1785 330 51-100 4,230 3,900 330 

101-200 3,420 2,920 500 101-200 6,840 6,340 500 

201+ 3,690 3,025 665 201+ 7,380 6,715 665 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
REVIEW OF REPAIR PRIORITIES - H&E/14/17 
 
14. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which provided information on the review of priorities for Response 
Repairs. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee approve the proposed changes to the priorities for response repairs 
as set out in the Review of Priorities for Response Repairs as contained in appendix A 
and allow the allocation of each priority to the corresponding repair categories, those 
being: 

• Amendment of the repair priorities  
- Emergency (4 hours) 
- Urgent (24 hours) – New 
- High (3 days) 
- Non-Emergency (5 days) – New 
- Routine (10 days) 

• Allocate relevant repair categories to each of the priorities listed above to ensure 
each priority reflects the level of priority required i.e. emergency means anything 
which may affect tenants’ safety or cause significant damage to the fabric of the 
building. 

Page 7



8 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
REPLACEMENT OF HANDHELD DEVICES (TRADES OPERATIVES) - H&E/14/18 
 
15. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which sought approval for the procurement of 200 handheld devices 
(smartphones) under an appropriate framework agreement which were to be used by 
trades operatives within Building Services as a replacement for the current devices 
being used. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee approve the procurement of 200 handheld devices (smartphones) 
under an appropriate framework agreement or other appropriate tendering process to 
be used by trades operatives within the Council’s Building Services in replacement of 
existing devices which would entail a total estimated expenditure of up to £148,000. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation in the report. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH FOOD SERVICE PLAN 2014-15 - H&E/13/69 
 
16. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which (1) presented the revised Food Regulatory Service Plan as 
contained in Appendix A as required by the Food Standards Agency’s Framework 
Agreement and (2) contained the improvement plan for the forthcoming year. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee -  
(a) approve in principle the maintenance and development of food regulatory 

services necessary to satisfy the requirements of the Food Standards Agency 
Framework Agreement; 

(b) approve the Food Regulatory Service Plan 2014/15 as set out in appendix A to 
the report; and 

(c) note the review of the 2012/2013 Food Regulatory Service Plan as set out in 
appendix A to the report. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



9 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY INTERVENTION PLAN 2014-15 - 
H&E/14/16 
 
17. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which presented the Occupational Health and Safety Intervention Plan 
which outlined the Environmental Health Service’s proposals for delivering the 
occupational safety and health regulatory service for 2014/15. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee approve the Occupational Health and Safety Intervention Plan for 
2014/15 and to instruct the Director of Housing and Environment to make arrangements 
for its implementation. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
REVISION OF THE ABERDEEN CITY WASTE STRATEGY - H&E/14/23 
 
18. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which presented the revised Aberdeen City Waste Strategy 2010-2025. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee approves the revised Aberdeen City Waste Strategy 2014-2025 and 
recommends it to the Finance, Policy and Resources Committee for approval. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
RECYCLING SERVICE CHANGES AND IMPLICATIONS FOR MIXED MESSAGING - 
H&E/14/22 
 
19. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which provided an update on existing recycling services, proposed 
schemes over the next year and the impact they would have upon the effective 
messaging of increasing recycling performance. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the implications of the report and instruct officers to arrange a 
members’ briefing session to explain the changing services. 
 
Councillor Finlayson requested whether clear signage or other methods could be 
provided at recycling centres to indicate what can and cannot be recycled, whereupon 
the Head of Service advised that this would be looked into. 
 
 

Page 9



10 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request officers to consider the use of clear signage or other methods to assist 

people to know what they could or could not recycle; and 
(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
INSTALLATION OF FOOD WASTE AND RECYCLING FACILITIES ON PRIVATE 
LAND - H&E/14/24 
 
20. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which established the legal positioning of Aberdeen Coty Council in 
relation to installation of food waste and recycling facilities on land not owned by the 
Council. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee approve the use, as a last resort, of legislative notices to ensure all 
residents are treated equally in the provision of food waste collection and recycling 
services. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation in the report. 
 
 
CITY PLAY AREAS - H&E/14/29 
 
21. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which advised on the progress of the first year of the Programme of Play 
Area Refurbishment Works. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee -  
(a) acknowledge the success of this year’s refurbishment programme; and 
(b) agree that the Service should continue the rolling programme of play area 

refurbishment as detailed within the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
ABERDEEN IN BLOOM 2014 - H&E/14/28 
 
22. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which provided an update on Aberdeen’s In Bloom campaign for the year 
ahead which included participation in Britain in Bloom 2014. 
 
 
 

Page 10



11 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
11 March 2014 

 
 
 

 

The report recommended: 
that the Committee -  
(a) note the content of the report; and 
(b) request a further report to Committee at its meeting in Autumn 2014, with an 

update on Aberdeen in Bloom campaigns in 2014. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
- NEIL COONEY, Convener. 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 
 

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 

 
2
0
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

 
P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 n
o

te
 o

f 
e
v
e
ry

 r
e
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 f

o
r 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

A
ll

 o
th

e
r 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

, 
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 d

e
e
m

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

. 
 

 

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

1
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
6
 A

u
g
 0

9
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
6
 

       H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
9
 O

c
t 

1
3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
7
 

M
o

d
e
rn

is
in

g
 P

u
b

li
c
 S

p
a
c
e
 C

C
T

V
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

to
 i

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
ll 

e
n
c
o
m

p
a
s
s
in

g
 

re
p
o
rt

, 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g

 
th

e
 

m
e
ri
ts

 
a
n
d
 

c
o
s
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 
a
n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

n
e
w

 
C

C
T

V
 

s
y
s
te

m
, 

in
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

e
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

C
C

T
V

 h
a
s
 h

a
d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
is

ti
n
g

 
c
o
n
v
ic

ti
o
n
s
; 

a
n
d
 
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
n
g
 

o
th

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 

a
n
d
 

n
e
w

 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 

th
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

a
d
o
p
te

d
, 

to
 

a
 

fu
tu

re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

(a
) 

to
 

n
o
te

 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

in
 

te
rm

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

in
-h

o
u
s
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
m

o
d
e
l;
 a

n
d
 

(c
) 

to
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

in
-h

o
u
s
e
 

m
o
d
e
l 

b
y
 

p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
 

a
 

d
e
ta

ile
d

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

o
u
tl
in

e
s
 l

o
n
g

 
te

rm
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

  W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
r 

to
 t

a
k
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e
 i
n
-

h
o
u
s
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
. 
 A

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 h

a
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 w

e
 

a
w

a
it
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
m

. 
 A

 r
e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

u
ll
e
ti

n
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

 
2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

2
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 0

6
 

A
u
g

 0
9
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
9
 

D
u

th
ie

 
P

a
rk

 
R

e
s
to

ra
ti

o
n

 
–
 

H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 

L
o

tt
e
ry

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 B
id

 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

 t
o
 i

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 
re

p
o

rt
s
 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 
d
e
ta

ils
 
o
n
 

 A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

u
ll
e
ti

n
 

   

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 13



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
n
d
e
ri
n
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
lle

ti
n
. 

3
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

1
3
 S

e
p
t 
1
1
 

a
rt

ic
le

 2
 

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 t

o
 M

u
lt

i 
S

to
re

y
 B

lo
c
k
s
  

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

(v
i)
 
to

 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

th
a
t 

a
 

ri
s
k
 

re
g

is
te

r 
b
e
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 

to
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
t 

e
a
c
h

 
m

e
e
ti

n
g

 
u
n
ti
l 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
. 

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 f

o
r 

re
m

o
v
a
l 

U
p

d
a
te

 
re

p
o

rt
s
 

o
n

 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

w
it

h
 
th

e
 
p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
a
t 

e
a
c
h

 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

c
y
c
le

 
a
n

d
 

th
e
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 

re
s
o

lu
ti

o
n

 
h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
 

W
h
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
 

4
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

3
0
 O

c
t 

1
2
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
5
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

to
 

a
n

 
A

rm
s

 
L

e
n

g
th

 C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

T
o
 i

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
T

ra
d
in

g
 
C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 
a
n
d

 
re

p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 i
n
 s

ix
 m

o
n
th

s
 t

im
e
. 

A
ft

e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
t 
is

 a
p
p
a
re

n
t 
th

a
t 

b
e
fo

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
th

a
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

w
ill

 h
a

v
e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 

o
p
e
ra

te
 a

s
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

o
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
 W

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 
c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 u

n
io

n
s
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 A

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 
b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
c
e
 

a
ll 

th
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 f
u
lly

 
e
x
a
m

in
e
d
. 

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 A

rm
s
 L

e
n

g
th

 C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
m

e
ri

ts
 o

f 
m

o
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 
  

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

  
 

Page 14



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

5
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
5
 J

a
n
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

W
e
lf

a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

T
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

W
e
lf
a
re

 
R

e
fo

rm
 

o
n
 

fu
tu

re
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

. 

 W
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 t

h
e
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

w
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
. 
  

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 A

 r
e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

6
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
4
 M

a
y
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
3
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
n

 
A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

to
c
k
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

to
 i

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

to
 

re
p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 

to
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 

a
t 
th

e
 e

a
rl
ie

s
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 

W
o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
e
 m

u
lt
i 
s
to

re
y
 a

s
s
e
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
m

o
d
e
l 
is

 d
ra

w
in

g
 t
o
 

a
n
 e

n
d
 a

n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

c
e
n
a
ri
o
s
 

w
h

ic
h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 t
e
s
t 
th

e
 

m
o
d
e
l.
  
 

 A
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 m

o
d
e
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 d

a
te

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
d
 

fo
r 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 e

le
c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 A

 r
e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

u
ll
e
ti

n
 

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

7
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
4
 M

a
y
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
5
 a

n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

2
6
 J

u
n
e
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
9
 

T
il

ly
d

ro
n

e
 U

p
d

a
te

 –
 A

 W
a
y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

T
o
 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 
re

p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 t

o
 
a
 

fu
tu

re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

w
it
h

 
c
le

a
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 l

a
n
d
 u

s
e
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
 

th
e
 

d
e
s
k
to

p
 

re
p
o
rt

s
, 

ti
tl
e
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 

a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 s

it
e
. 

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 m

e
t 

w
it

h
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

 
w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
u

n
c
il

s
 i
n

 m
id

 
A

p
ri

l.
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
 

m
o

re
 d

e
ta

il
e
d

 u
p

d
a
te

 w
il
l 

b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e
 

c
a
le

n
d

a
r 

y
e
a
r.

 
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
  

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

8
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

3
0
 A

u
g
 1

3
 

A
m

e
n

it
y
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

(w
it

h
in

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

) 
(i
) 

in
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 

a
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 

  A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

u
ll
e
ti

n
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
1
 M

a
r 

1
4
 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

Page 15



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
e

la
n
e
y
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g

 
a
m

e
n
it
y
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

la
c
k
 

o
f 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 

a
p
p
ly

 
fo

r 
a
n
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,

 
to

 
n
o
te

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 
lia

is
e
 

w
it
h

 
c
o
lle

a
g

u
e
s
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

a
n
d
 
re

p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 
to

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 
w

it
h
 
a
n

 
u
p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
th

a
t 

h
a
d
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 
a
n
d
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

w
o
u

ld
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
a
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
e
la

n
e

y
 

o
u
tw

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
; 

 

 

9
. 

M
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

3
0
 A

u
g
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

H
o

u
s
e
s
 i

n
 M

u
lt

ip
le

 O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 –
 N

e
w

 
P

o
w

e
rs

 i
n

 R
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 O

v
e
rp

ro
v
is

io
n

  
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

(v
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 

H
M

O
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 O

ld
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 i
n
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
; 

a
n
d
  

(v
ii)

 
to

 
re

q
u
e
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
to

 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
 

th
e
 

s
c
a
le

 
o
f 

u
n
-r

e
g

is
te

re
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 
le

t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

C
it
y
 

a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 

in
 

tw
e
lv

e
 m

o
n
th

s
. 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

1
0
. 
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

&
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
4
 J

a
n
 1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 C
h

a
rg

e
s
 

T
o
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 a

ll 
p
a
rk

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 

a
n
d
 i
f 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
e
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 1

2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
. 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

1
1
. 
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

&
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
4
 J

a
n
 1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
2
 

R
e
n

t 
A

rr
e
a
rs

 
 (

x
) 

to
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 i
n
 6

 
m

o
n
th

s
; 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

   

2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

   

Page 16



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

(x
v
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 c

la
im

 
p
a
rt

ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 h

o
w

 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 m
a
n
a
g

in
g
 t
o
 p

a
y
 t

h
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 r

e
n
t.
 

1
2
. 
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

&
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
 

1
4
 J

a
n
 1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 2
3
 

In
s
ta

ll
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
o

m
b

in
e
d

 H
e
a
t 

a
n

d
 

P
o

w
e
r 

a
n

d
 P

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 f
o

r 
M

a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 t

o
 M

u
lt

i 
S

to
re

y
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o

rn
h

il
l 

A
re

a
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

th
is

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 M

in
is

te
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 w

it
h
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
. 

T
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 Q

C
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
re

 
fo

rm
a
l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 M

in
is

te
rs

. 
 

In
fo

rm
a
l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
e
n
 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 a

n
 

a
re

a
 o

f 
le

g
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
. 

 T
h

e
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 

o
w

n
e
r 

w
h

o
 h

a
d

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 o
b

je
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

in
s
ta

ll
a
ti

o
n

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 c
o

n
s
e
n

te
d

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 w
il
l 
p

ro
c
e
e
d

 
a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
d

v
is

e
d

. 
 

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

 
 

1
3
. 
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
1
 M

a
rc

h
 1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 5
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
(H

a
z
le

h
e
a
d

 G
ro

v
e
 N

u
rs

e
ry

) 
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 

tw
e
lv

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 t

im
e
 (

1
) 

o
u
tl
in

in
g

 t
h
e
 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
n
d
 (

2
) 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 t

o
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a
rc

h
 1

5
 

M
a
rc

h
 1

5
 

          

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S
 T

O
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 –

 2
0
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

 

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

 U
p

d
a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 D
u

e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

1
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 i
n

 B
lo

o
m

 
T

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 t
h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 I

n
 

B
lo

o
m

 C
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

2
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

0
1
 M

a
r 

1
1
 

a
rt

ic
le

 3
4
 

A
ir

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
  

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

to
 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 
a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

to
 

re
p
o
rt

 
a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
 

o
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

  

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

3
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 1

4
 

J
a
n
 1

4
 a

rt
ic

le
  

C
o

u
n

tr
y
s
id

e
 R

a
n

g
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 F

iv
e
 Y

e
a
r 

P
la

n
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

T
o
 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

a
 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 

R
a
n
g

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
n
n
u
a

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
to

 
th

e
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
5
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

   

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

4
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 1

9
 

N
o
v
 0

9
 

a
rt

ic
le

 2
7
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 D

o
g

 O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

to
 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 
a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
n
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 

u
p
d
a
te

 
re

p
o
rt

 
o
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

d
o
g
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
to

 
th

e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

    

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

5
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 2

4
 

A
u
g

 1
0
 a

rt
ic

le
 

1
7
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

to
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
t 

th
a
t 

a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
e
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 

to
 t

h
is

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
t 

th
e
 

s
ta

rt
 

o
f 

e
a
c
h

 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r,

 
o
u
tl
in

in
g

 
th

e
 

w
o
rk

 
th

a
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 

fo
r 

re
m

o
v
a
l 

a
s
 

th
e
 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 i
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
in

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
a
t 

e
a
c
h

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

. 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t/
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
  

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

6
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

2
9
 O

c
t 

1
3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
0
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 –

 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
n
g

s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
o
n
 f
u
tu

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

, 
(o

r 
e
a
rl
ie

r 
a
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
)  

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

 

Agenda Item 2.3

Page 19



 

Page 20



 

 

 
 
DRAFT 
 
 

ZERO WASTE MANAGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE 
ABERDEEN, 25 FEBRUARY, 2014 

 
 
REDUCTION IN GENERAL WASTE CONTAINER SIZE FOLLOWING 
INTRODUCTION OF MIXED RECYCLING COLLECTIONS 
 
With reference to article 5 of the minute of meeting of the Sub Committee of 
4 December, 2013, the Sub Committee had before it a report by the Waste and 
Recycling Manager which provided an options appraisal with recommendations on 
general waste capacity and waste bin sizes. 
 
The Head of Environment Services and the Waste Strategy Manager talked the Sub 
Committee through the report. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Sub Committee - 
(a) approves the reduction in general waste bin capacity from 240 litres to 

180 litres for residents receiving existing kerbside recycling collections; and 
(b) that this reduction in capacity is implemented in conjunction with the roll out of 

mixed recycling collections with glass. 
 
The Sub Committee resolved:- 
(i)  to approve the recommendations contained in the report; and 
(ii) to refer the report to the Housing and Environment Committee for 

consideration. 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:  Zero Waste Management Sub-Committee 
 
DATE: 25th February 2014 
 
DIRECTOR: Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Reduction in general waste container size 

following introduction of mixed recycling 
collections  

 
REPORT NUMBER: ZWM/14/001 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
This report addresses the instruction of the Zero Waste Management 
Sub-Committee of 5 December 2013 for officers to submit an options 
appraisal with recommendations on general waste capacity to the Zero 
Waste Management Sub-committee on 25 February 2013.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the sub-committee approves the reduction in general waste 

bin capacity from 240l to 180l for residents receiving existing 
kerbside recycling collections.  

2. That this reduction in capacity is implemented in conjunction 
with the roll out of mixed recycling collections with glass.  

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The procurement of new wheeled bins for either general waste or 
mixed recycling is incorporated in the capital plan allocation for the 
Zero Waste Project.  
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal - Compliance with key waste legislation, with specific reference 
to the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012. 
 
Resource – The transition to reduced general refuse container size and 
provision of increased size recycling containers will require a major 
project management and staff commitment from Waste and Recycling 
Services.  This will be resourced from within existing teams and 
supported by the funding allocated to the Zero Waste Project. 
 

Page 23



 

 

Property - Temporary storage for new wheeled bins will be required if 
existing bins are not utilised. 
 
Equipment – There will be a need to procure smaller bins to replace 
existing general waste bins. Consideration will be given to utilisation of 
the 240l general waste bin through other council services or replacing 
the lid and converting these to the mixed recycling bin. It should be 
noted that the existing fleet can accommodate smaller wheeled bins. 
 
Sustainability – Reduction in general waste container size will 
encourage householders to maximise the use of their recycling 
container, thereby ensuring higher recycling rates and minimisation of 
the landfilling of general waste.  As noted under equipment implications 
surplus 240l wheeled bins could either be reused, or if this is not an 
option, recycled. 
 
Health and Safety – Smaller wheeled bins weigh less and therefore the 
hazards associated with moving heavy bins is reduced. The move to 
mixed recycling will replace the box and bag with a wheeled bin. This 
will result in less manual handling issues for residents and crew and 
addresses concerns expressed by the Health and Safety Executive 
over kerbside sort systems and issues of manual handling/repetitive 
strain. 

 
Policy - Aligns with the requirements of the Scottish Governments Zero 
Waste Plan, Aberdeen City Council’s: Aberdeen: The Smarter City, 
Single Outcome Agreement and the Aberdeen City Waste Strategy. 

 
There are no implications on personnel. Such changes will be 
implemented within existing resource levels.  
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

The Zero Waste Management Sub-Committee of 5 December 2013 
instructed officers to submit an options appraisal with 
recommendations on general waste capacity to the Zero Waste 
Management Sub-committee on 25 February 2013.  This report 
addresses that instruction. 
 
From 2015 Aberdeen City Council will be expanding its recycling 
service substantially through the provision of 240l wheeled bins for the 
following range of recyclable materials: 
 

• Paper and Cardboard 

• Glass Bottles and Jars 

• Steel and Aluminium cans 

• Plastic bottles 

• Plastic pots, tubs and trays 

• Waxed beverage containers (commonly known as tetrapak) 
 

Page 24



 

 

This change will effectively triple the recycling capacity for every 
household with a wheeled bin service and remove a large quantity of 
materials that fill the general waste bin.  The outcome of J. Baird et al’s 
report demonstrates that close to property and kerbside recycling 
services recycle more than twice that of bring facilities. There research 
also suggests lower participation through kerbside boxes as opposed 
to wheeled bins. 
 
As a result, the volume of general waste produced will be significantly 
lower than at present providing full use is made of the recycling bin.  
This calls into question the need for householders to have large 240l 
bins for general waste and this issue has been addressed by a range of 
authorities across the UK. 
 
A recent article in the Daily Telegraph suggests that 94 Local 
Authorities in England and Wales have reduced their general bin size 
to improve recycling. With one in four of these reducing from a 240l to 
120l wheeled bin. This reduction being introduced alongside increased 
recyclate collection.  
 
Some examples of what other Local Authorities offer is illustrated within 
the table below: 

 

Local 
Authority 

Containers offered Collection 
frequency 

Recycling 
performance 
12/13  

Rochford 240l mixed recycling with glass 
180l general waste 

AWC 66.78% 

South 
Oxfordshire 

240l mixed recycling with glass 
180l general waste 

AWC 65.32% 

Vale of White 
Horse 

240l mixed recycling with glass 
180l general waste 

AWC 65.13% 

North 
Lanarkshire 

240l mixed recycling with glass 
240l general waste 

AWC  44% 

South Ayrshire 240l mixed recycling with glass 
240l general waste 

AWC 43% 

 
In order to maximise the effectiveness of recycling services it is 
proposed to reduce general waste capacity when the mixed recycling 
service with glass is rolled out to properties served by current kerbside 
collections. These collections are currently undertaken through the 
presentation of a kerbside box and bag system; equating to 70l of 
provision every fortnight. This will be replaced by a 240l wheeled bin to 
accommodate recyclable material, an increase in capacity of 170l.  
 
In order to minimise the cost of introducing a smaller bin, consideration 
has been given to the three main sizes available provided by 
manufacturers: 
 
 

Page 25



 

 

Bin size Net increase in 
capacity per 
house 

Advantages Disadvantages 

120l 50l Would drive more 
householders to 
make more use of 
recycling bins than 
other options 

Many householders 
would struggle to adapt 
to this solution given 
their familiarity with 
using 240l 
Likely to increase risk of 
contamination of 
recycling bin with 
general waste 
Small cross section of 
bin makes disposal of 
black bins bags difficult 
and likely to result in 
inefficient use of bin. 
Bin is likely to blow over 
in windy conditions 

140l 70l Strikes a balance 
between other 
options but would 
push householders to 
make more use of 
recycling bins 

Some householders will 
struggle to adapt, 
especially those with 
children. 
Limited cross section still 
makes the use of the bin 
inefficient for bagged 
waste 
Bin prone to blowing 
over in strong winds 
 

180l 110l Most likely to be 
seen as an 
acceptable change 
Does reduce the 
capacity and sends a 
message that 
householders should 
amend their 
behaviours 
Bin cross section  is 
wider and so more 
suited to efficient 
disposal of bagged 
waste.  Most stable 
of three options 

Least likely to force 
change.  

 
Recommendation 
 
Whilst the optimum solution from a waste management perspective 
would be 140l it is considered that this solution would be problematic 

Page 26



 

 

for a wide range of householders. The overall effectiveness of the 
change to mixed recycling services may be compromised by removing 
100l of general waste capacity.  As the table above demonstrates local 
authorities have achieved very high recycling rates with 180l general 
waste bins and therefore it is proposed that this option be selected. 
 
Mixed Recycling with Glass – assessment of best practice 
 
In October 2012 the Scottish Government sent a letter to all local 
authority Chief Executives to strongly encourage them to review any 
decisions to mix glass with other recyclates, particularly paper, unless 
they are certain that they will get very high levels of high-quality 
material (i.e. colour separated) through a sorting process. It was 
advised that systems which do not include a separate glass collection 
could be in contravention of the regulatory requirements. 
 
The reason for discouraging the mixed recycling of materials with glass 
is because a significant amount of the glass collected will not go for re-
melt (i.e. recycled back into glass packaging). When collected and 
mixed with other materials, a proportion of the glass breaks down into 
very small particles, which can only be recycled for fibre glass 
insulation or as an aggregate substitute. This is not classified as 
‘closed loop’ recycling and, therefore, regarded as lower quality.  
 
Alternative options for collection of glass have been considered. A 
separate kerbside collection of glass only would incur a significant cost 
and would require households to store another container or utilise 
various communal facilities that maybe someway from householders. 
This is not considered to be affordable or practical and, therefore, is not 
viable. 
 
The non-collection of glass at the kerbside and direction of the public to 
the use of Household Waste Recycling Centres and Points, was also 
considered. This would inevitably lead to a lower overall capture rate 
for glass; with the potential for a large proportion of glass to enter the 
general waste stream (Baird et al).  
 
Taking all of the above into account, the collection of glass mixed with 
other recyclables is considered the preferred option. Of the top 20 
performing Local Authority’s in England, 13 employ mixed recycling 
wheeled bin collections with glass. 

 
6. IMPACT 

 
Corporate – The proposals in this report contribute to the Priority Based 
Budget Transformation Option HE_ES_WS2 ‘Review existing Waste 
Strategy to determine most cost effective options for diverting waste 
from landfill’.  The development of alternatives to landfill and enhanced 
recycling will help Aberdeen move to become a Zero Waste City - a key 

Page 27



 

 

action within the Smarter Environment – Natural Resources Strategic 
Priority of the Five Year Business Plan. 
 
Public – Offering increased capacity for residents to recycle will result 
in a substantial improvement in the city’s recycling performance and 
provide the opportunity for the public to recycle more and be more 
responsible for the environmental impact of their lifestyles.  
Furthermore, by fully adopting the recycling opportunity, there will be a 
reduced overall cost from waste management.  The full savings will 
only be achieved if the increase in recycling provision is partially offset 
by reduced refuse capacity, otherwise, many householders will default 
to filling the refuse bin before recycling. 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

The change will present many concerns to householders, this can be 
mitigated and alleviated through good service design and open, 
extensive and effective communication. 
 
A full risk assessment will be completed for this service change as part 
of the project scoping and further roll out of the mixed recycling service 
with glass. Lessons learnt from the pilots undertaken this year will 
inform this process. 
 
The major risk associated with reducing container size is the impact on 
public opinion and support for the wider recycling services offered by 
Aberdeen City Council. 
 
Evidence from other authorities in England is such that the perceived 
problems are less severe than anticipated and that by fully embracing 
the recycling services, there will be few households that cannot 
manage reduced general waste capacity. 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Please refer to the following: 

 

• Impacts of Mixed Recycling Collections on General Waste Capacity 
– paper ZWM/13/005 

• Waste Strategy Review - Equality and Human Rights Impact 
Assessment August 2013 

• Waste Strategy – Engaging with Stakeholders April 2010 

• Development and application of a multiple linear regression model 
to consider the impact of weekly waste container capacity on the 
yield from kerbside recycling programmes in Scotland - Jim Baird, 
Robin Curry and Tim Reid, 2013.  

•  Article - http://www.ciwm-
journal.co.uk/archives/5662?goback=%2Egde_1999142_member_5
829151030310371331#%21  

 

Page 28



 

 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Peter Lawrence, Waste and Recycling Manager 
plawrence@aberdeencity.gov.uk or 01224 489331 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT 
 

HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY WORKING GROUP 
 

8 MAY 2014 
 
 
CHANGE OF REMIT  
 
The Working Group had before it for consideration, an updated version of its remit.  
 
The remit had been amended to reflect the modernising of the Housing Access 
Service. 
 
The Working Group resolved:- 
(i) to agree the amendments to the remit; and 
(ii) to refer the matter to the Housing and Environment Committee for approval.  

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Homelessness Strategy Working Group (HSWG) 
 

Remit as at April, 2014 
 
Purpose of Working Group 

To consider the broad interests of homeless people including – 
(1) to discuss and review the strategic objectives for Homelessness and Housing 

Support;  
(2) to recommend priorities;  
(3) to receive monitoring information and reports on initiatives; 
(4) to receive and discuss reports from actions groups;   
(5) to identify gaps and suggest improvements in the service; 
(6) to provide an integrated approach to services; 
(7) to consider housing support, and support available to people who are threatened 

with homelessness and those already homeless; 
(8) to improve the quality of life of homeless people and people who are threatened 

with homelessness; and 
(9) to tackle discrimination of homeless people. 
 
Method of Operation 
The Working Group will – 
(1) monitor progress on delivering the strategic objectives for Homelessness and 

Housing Support (which forms part of the Local Housing Strategy); 
(2) perform a central role in consultation exercises which affect homeless people, 

including advising agencies which are planning consultation exercises, to ensure 
that the views of homeless people are represented (as appropriate); 

(3) co-ordinate an annual event to address issues impacting on homeless people; 
(4) raise the profile of homeless people in Aberdeen; 
(5) advise relevant bodies on issues relevant to homeless people; 
(6) widen the role of the Working Group throughout the city and not just the Council;  
(7) meet with Housing Officers to discuss issues, progress and improvements 

(I.P.I.); 
(8) operate in conjunction with other organisations (as appropriate) to come up with 

a unified approach to tackle homelessness; and 
(9) receive feedback from homeless people about the work of the Working Group 

and on how it can improve; 
 
Accountability 

The minutes of the Working Group will be reported via the Information Bulletin to the 
Housing and Environment Committee. Extracts from Working Group minutes will be 
submitted to other Council Committees as appropriate depending on the action 
requested. 
 
Membership 

(1) Aberdeen City Council – The Membership will be appointed by the Housing and 
Environment Committee (the parent committee) with appointees linking to each 
of the Council committees. 

Page 33



 
(2) Partner and community organisations – one representative from each of the 

following – 
 

(a) Aberdeen City  Health and Social Care Partnership (HSCP); 
(b) Aberdeen Foyer; 
(c) Castehill Housing Association; 
(d) Citizens Advice Bureau; 
(e) Langstane Housing Association; 
(f) Shelter; and 
(g) Co-optees (as appropriate), for example, community groups working 

with/for homeless people – to be determined as and when required by 
the Chairperson, the Council’s Champion for Homeless People. 

 
(3)  If any member of the Working Group should miss three meetings consecutively, it 

will be open to the Working Group to exclude that member on a permanent basis.  
This will not apply if the said member has arranged for a substitute to be present 
at the meetings. 

 
(4) Members’ attendance will be monitored at Working Group meetings, Co-optees’ 

attendance will not be monitored.  
 
(5) The appointment of Members will be subject to approval by the parent 

committee. Co-optees will be appointed at the Chairperson’s discretion, no 

approval is therefore necessary. The removal of any Member will need to be 
approved by the parent Committee. This does not apply to a Co-optee. 

 
(6) If the Working Group Members are not in agreement on any matter that is before 

them, instead of a division, the matter will be referred to the parent Committee for 
consideration and decision (outlining majority/minority views)  as per the standard 
practise for Working Groups.  

 
Remit 
Changes to this remit will be subject to the Working Group agreeing on the changes 
and then the parent Committee approving the changes. 
 
Admin Support 
Staff from Housing and Community Safety (Housing and Environment) and Legal and 
Democratic Services (Committee Services) Sections of the Corporate Governance 
Service of the Council will support the work of the Group. 
 
For the purposes of the HSWG, “homeless people” refers to people who are 

homeless or are threatened with homelessness. 

Page 34



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing and Environment         
 
DATE  20 May 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Housing and Environment Business Plan 

Performance and Actions 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/045 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to present committee with key performance 
measures and progress of key improvement work within the Housing and 
Environment Directorate. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

a) Provide comments and observations on the performance information 
contained in the report. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
There are no direct implications arising out of this report, although a number 
of comments are made on the use of resources. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no other direct implications arising out of this report regarding legal, 
resource, personnel, property, equipment, sustainability and environmental, 
health and safety; although a number of comments are made on the use of 
resources. 
 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
This report presents members with key performance measures and progress 
of key improvement work within the Housing and Environment Directorate. 
 
This report also comprises of a progress report from the Director. 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 35



 

 

 
Performance information and Actions progress are input and updated through 
Covalent, the corporate performance reporting system, by the relevant lead 
officers.  The data is reviewed and managed within the Directorate by the 
Director and Senior Management Team.   
 
Within the report the following symbols are used: 
   
Performance Measures 
 
Traffic Light Icon 
 

  On target or within 5% of target 
 

  Within 5% and 20 % of target and being monitored 
 

  Below 20% of target and being actively pursued 
 

   Data only PI as there is no target set 
 
 

 
6. IMPACT 

 
The performance reporting framework is integrated with the Council’s 
ambition of being a top performing Council which delivers on the Community 
Plan and the Administration’s Policy Statement. 
 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

N/A 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
N/A 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Carol Fraser 
Team Manager (Communication and Administration) 
01224 523115 
carolfraser@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 

 

 
Director’s Progress Report 

Housing and Environment 
12/03/14 – 20/05/14 

 
Training day - On 3 April a training day with a difference took place at 
Kittybrewster depot. After a couple of tradesmen discovered boa constrictors 
(snakes) in an abandoned flat, managers thought it would be worth-while to 
have a specialist come to Kittybrewster and enlighten people into the dangers 
and myths surrounding these creatures. Nick Martin from the charity 
Creatures Great and Small attended with various tarantulas, snakes and 
lizards and undertook talks to staff. In the afternoon there was a “drop-in” 
session where anyone could come in past and listen to Nick.  

Tenant day - On 3 March 2014, a tenant engagement event was held in the 
Council Chamber. This was a chance for invited tenants to hear of the new 
changes building services were planning and get their opinions on such 
changes. The tenants got the chance to vote for new changes, ask questions, 
and be part of the new decisions. The feedback we received after the event 
was positive and an excellent way for the tenants to understand the 
processes that go on behind the scenes. 

Guest Speaker - Kiemon Stewart, operations manager of Building Services, 
has been invited to speak at a conference in London to represent ACC’s 
adoption of technology to progress a Smarter Working Environment. Kiemon 
has recognised that the main area of improvement had to be the intelligent 
use of IT with a view to speeding the flow of information around the 
organisation, and enabling the capturing of the relevant information upon 
which sound business decisions could be founded. Speaking at this 
conference is an excellent way for others to see how ACC have embraced 
new technology and hopefully encourage others to do the same. 

North East Tenants Residents and Landlords Together Group 
(NETRALT) - NETRALT Group which includes 3 Local Authorities and 7 
Housing Associations held their 2nd Housing Café on 29 March 2014. There 
were tenants, residents and officers from all over the North East at this event 
and the Menu was enjoyed by over 75 participants. The theme for this café 
was the new buzz word in housing Scrutiny – there were 5 menu options 
including the Sharing Platter, Dish of the day and each diner had to choose 
two items. The Menu Items or Workshops were facilitated by tenant & resident 
members of the group who presented on scrutiny in their organisation. We 
were delighted to welcome two West Lothian tenants as well who helped with 
the Mystery Shopping workshop. It ended with a proof is in the pudding - 
scrutiny in practice with all participants tasting different kinds of Shortbread – 
great fun was had by all but it also showed how easy it is to “ scrutinise”.  
 
Best Bar None Awards - Two licensed premises in Aberdeen were 
successful in the annual national Best Bar None Awards.  Best Bar None 
recognises excellence in management towards improving community safety.  
The Garage won the Night Club category and G Casino won the Specialist 
Entertainment category. 
 

Page 37



 

 

Big Lottery Funding - Aberdeen Cyrenians in partnership with the homeless 
service have been successful in securing big lottery funding of £470,364 over 
5 years through the ‘Becoming a Survivor’ initiative which provides support to 
individuals experiencing domestic abuse. The project starts in July 2014, with 
an aim for referrals to come via the homelessness service and self referral to 
Aberdeen Cyrenians, recruitment is ongoing and support will be ready to start 
in October 2014 following an induction process. 
 
Low cost Home Ownership - Two 3 bedroomed low cost home ownership 
properties have been completed at Cove by Scotia Homes as part of their 
contribution to our affordable housing policy.    A further 32 Langstane 
Housing Association properties have just been completed;18 of these 
properties are social housing and the remaining 14 are mid market rent. 
Donside Village has also officially been completed providing 146 social rented 
properties and an additional 121 affordable homes.  The delivery of affordable 
homes for the city is central to the council’s Strategic Infrastructure Plan which 
aims to achieve a ‘Step change in the supply of housing’ by 2017.  
 
Duthie Park Award - Playspotter has been created as a web based portal by 
two local people to help users find places to play near them, and to read real 
reviews from other users. The group covers all Major Parks and Play Areas in 
Scotland and Northern Ireland(over 5000 of them). Duthie Park has been 
selected as the 'Top Major Park' for Play in Aberdeen and is one of the first 
winners of a Playspotter Picks Award. The Award recognises  the Award 
Winning Play area and the restoration work done within the Park. The high 
quality of play provision in general within the Park has also been noted and 
will be highlighted in the Group's web page  www.playspotter.com. 
 
The Macmillan Nurse Rose - A rose specially-created to honour the work of 
a leading cancer charity was planted in Aberdeen’s Hazlehead Park. The 
Macmillan Nurse Rose, which was first introduced at 1998’s Chelsea Flower 
Show, was developed to raise awareness of Macmillan Cancer Support. 
Aberdeen Lord Provost George Adam was joined by representatives of the 
charity in the Queen Mother Rose Garden in Hazlehead Park to plant the last 
of the 180 flowers, which boast large, white rosettes sometimes flushed 
peach. The blooms were donated to the Council by Macmillan Cancer 
Support and the planting project has been supported by the Friends of 
Hazlehead. A plaque commemorating the project was also unveiled. 
 
The RSPB Dolphin Watch Project - The RSPB Dolphin Watch Project based 
at the Torry Battery was launched on 11 April. The Dolphin Watch staff are 
working in partnership with the Countryside Ranger Service to raise 
awareness of the dolphins and other coastal issues such as marine litter.  
Dolphin watch was pioneered in 2013 and dolphins were seen on 87% of the 
days the project was running last year. Many people, locals and visitors alike, 
saw dolphins for the first time, and hopes are high that even more people will 
experience their acrobatic displays and charismatic charm this year.  For 
more information, visit www.facebook.com/RSPBNorthEastScotland. 
 
Environmental Health – The Dog wardens and Pest Control officers have 
been working with the Marketing Team to raise the profile of the services.  
Feedback from members of the public suggested not everyone was aware 

Page 38



 

 

that these services were available and what they offered.  Several tweets 
have been issued informing the public of who to contact should they be aware 
of a stray dog or if they lose their own dog, details of the pest control service 
was also highlighted in a separate tweet. 
 
Environmental Protection – The Team are expanding the air quality 
monitoring that they currently undertake as  there has been increasing 
concerns about health impacts from fine particles (<2.5ugm-3).  These 
particles are formed directly from various sources such as factories, domestic 
stoves and traffic or are formed by chemical interactions in the atmosphere 
and can cause irritation of the respiratory system and can exacerbate existing 
health conditions. In April a pm2.5 monitor was installed at Union Street to 
provide real time monitoring information, this will give additional air quality 
information especially in relation to traffic. 
 
UKAS - The United Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS) carried out their 
annual surveillance audit of the services provided by Aberdeen Scientific 
Services Laboratory (ASSL). The purpose of the audit was for UKAS to 
assess the continued conformity of the lab to both the requirements of ISO 
17025:2005, and also the Drinking Water Testing Specification (DWTS) 
produced by the Drinking Water Inspectorate. As part of the audit, all aspects 
of the work of the lab came under close scrutiny, from sample registration to 
final reporting and certification. Several members of staff were also required 
to demonstrate their competence in carrying out analytical methods. The visit 
was a notable success and the assessment team were impressed by the 
overall quality of work being produced and with the experience and 
competence of the staff involved. As a result, accreditation to both ISO 
17025:2005 and DWTS was maintained for another 12 months. The 
laboratory has now held UKAS accreditation for over 20 years. 

 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



1
 

H
&

E
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
r
t 

  

 

 

 
 R

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
fo

rm
e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 a
rr

e
a
rs

, 
a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 r

e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
  

£
1
,3

0
0
,0

0
0
 

£
1
,4

1
0
,6

6
5
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
o
r 

fo
rm

e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 a
rr

e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

. 
 

1
6
5
,0

0
0
 

1
4
0
,3

2
2
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
te

n
a
n
ts

 w
it
h
 r

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 r

e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
  

  
5
,8

7
6
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
te

n
a
n
ts

 a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 r

e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
  

  
£
2
,9

3
3
,2

5
3
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
s
 r

e
n
t 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 o

w
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 £

2
5
0
) 

a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

re
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 

8
.6

%
 

7
.5

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 g
iv

in
g
 u

p
 t

h
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 o
f 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

 w
e
e
k
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 
y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 %

 o
f 
a
ll
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
2
9
%

 
3
2
.3

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

e
e
k
s
 d

e
b
t 

o
w

e
d
 b

y
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 w

it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 o
f 
g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n
 1

 w
e
e
k
, 

a
s
 a

 y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 

1
1
.5

 
1
3
.6

 
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
, 

th
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
ts

 s
ta

n
d
s
 a

t 
£
2
,9

3
3
,2

5
3
.3

9
 (

8
%

 n
e
t 

d
e
b
it
).

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
2
7
.2

%
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 £

4
,0

2
6
,6

7
1
.8

2
 

fi
g
u
re

 l
a
s
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
ro

p
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
v
e
ra

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

 F
ir
s
tl
y
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

tr
e
n
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
in

g
 b

a
c
k
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
y
e
a
rs

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 d
e
c
li
n
e
 n

o
ta

b
ly

 a
t 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 a

ft
e
r 

h
a
v
in

g
 r

is
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 a

n
d
 

N
e
w

 Y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
F
o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
, 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 d
e
c
li
n
e
d
 b

y
 1

0
.8

%
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 a

n
d
 b

y
 1

4
.4

%
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 
 

 S
e
c
o
n
d
 o

f 
a
ll
, 

th
e
 f
o
u
rt

h
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
l 
re

n
t 

fr
e
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 t

o
o
k
 e

ff
e
c
t 

a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 d
id

 n
o
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 r
e
n
t 

fr
e
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
ts

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 a

 d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

e
e
k
 t

o
 e

x
c
lu

s
iv

e
ly

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 
le

v
e
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
tc

h
e
s
; 

w
it
h
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

re
g
u
la

r 
p
a
y
e
rs

, 
h
a
d
 n

o
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

h
o
 d

id
 n

o
t 

p
a
y
 b

y
 D

ir
e
c
t 

D
e
b
it
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 r
e
n
t 

fr
e
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 9
5
2
1
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
re

n
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
1
,5

5
0
,7

1
9
.6

0
. 
 

 T
h
ir
d
ly

, 
d
u
ri
n
g
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 a

b
o
u
t 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 r

e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
is

 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
. 
F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
R
e
n
t 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 p
o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

n
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n
 £

1
0
 o

n
 t

h
e
 2

1
s
t 

o
f 
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

, 
in

fo
rm

in
g
 o

u
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 b
a
la

n
c
e
; 

a
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 m

o
n
th

s
 t

h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

il
l 
b
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 v

ie
w

 o
n
li
n
e
. 

T
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
n
t 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 l
e
tt

e
rs

 
d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t 

w
e
e
k
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 h

a
v
e
 l
e
t 

te
n
a
n
ts

 k
n
o
w

 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
w

 g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n
ta

l 
c
h
a
rg

e
; 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
R
e
n
t 

E
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
N

e
w

s
b
it
e
, 

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

o
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 
M

a
rc

h
, 

h
a
s
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
a
y
in

g
 r

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 a

v
e
n
u
e
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 s
tr

u
g
g
li
n
g
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

. 
A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

te
n
a
n
ts

 m
a
k
in

g
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 o

u
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
m

a
k
e
 m

o
re

 r
e
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
fe

r 
te

n
a
n
ts

 t
o
 d

e
b
t 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

h
o
 c

a
n
 o

ff
e
r 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

0
2
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 41



2
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 
 

 A
n
d
 f
o
u
rt

h
ly

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

a
y
m

e
n
t 

a
w

a
rd

s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
ts

 h
ig

h
e
s
t 

le
v
e
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
. 
A
s
 a

t 
th

e
 2

8
th

 o
f 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

, 
A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 1

,1
0
7
 a

w
a
rd

s
 o

f 
D

H
P
’S

 w
it
h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
7
8
5
,5

5
1
 t

o
 b

o
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

; 
w

it
h
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 
£
7
1
0
 

p
e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
, 

th
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

in
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

w
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 h

a
rd

s
h
ip

 a
n
d
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 
s
te

m
m

in
g
 t

h
e
 r

is
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

. 
 

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 w
it
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

 w
e
e
k
 o

f 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 3

5
.7

%
 f
ro

m
 9

1
3
5
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 5

8
7
6
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 a
t 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 c
a
s
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 b

ro
k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 a

s
 f
o
ll
o
w

s
: 

 
  8
6
1
 (

1
4
.7

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 £

5
0
  

1
8
8
4
 (

3
2
.1

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

5
0
.0

1
 &

 £
2
5
0
  

2
2
4
1
 (

3
8
.1

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

2
5
0
.0

1
 &

 £
1
0
0
0
  

8
4
7
 (

1
4
.4

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

1
0
0
0
.0

1
 &

 £
3
0
0
0
  

4
3
 (

0
.7

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 £

3
0
0
0
.0

1
  

  A
t 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
, 
7
.5

%
 o

f 
o
u
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

e
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
s
 r

e
n
t 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 £

2
5
0
);

 a
 2

.1
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 9

.6
%

 f
ig

u
re

 l
a
s
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
. 
 

  In
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
, 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 8

3
5
0
 f
ir
s
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 w

a
rn

in
g
 l
e
tt

e
rs

 t
h
is

 i
s
 a

 2
1
.7

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 1

0
,6

6
4
 w

a
rn

in
g
 l
e
tt

e
rs

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 2

5
8
8
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 o

f 
P
ro

c
e
e
d
in

g
s
; 

a
 4

3
.6

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
0
2
 n

o
ti
c
e
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
. 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 1

2
 e

v
ic

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

re
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

; 
th

is
 i
s
 u

p
 f
ro

m
 6

 e
v
ic

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
. 
 

  S
in

c
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 
3
2
.3

%
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 t
e
rm

in
a
te

d
 t

h
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 w

it
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

 w
e
e
k
 o

f 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

; 
th

is
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
2
9
%

 a
n
d
 u

p
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 2

8
.4

%
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
. 

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 d

e
b
t 

o
w

e
d
 b

y
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 a
m

o
u
n
ts

 t
o
 1

3
.6

 w
e
e
k
s
, 
th

is
 f

ig
u
re

 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 1
1
.5

 w
e
e
k
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 1

1
.5

 w
e
e
k
 f
ig

u
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
. 
 

  A
t 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
, 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
fo

rm
e
r 

te
n
a
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 i
s
 £

1
,4

1
0
,6

6
5
.2

7
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 
£
1
,3

0
0
,0

0
0
. 
In

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
 £

1
4
0
,3

2
2
.3

3
 o

f 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 f
o
rm

e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

; 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 1
6
.3

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 £

1
6
7
,6

0
6
.6

9
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
. 
F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 

w
ri
tt

e
n
 o

ff
 £

5
0
9
,1

7
3
.3

9
 o

f 
fo

rm
e
r 

te
n
a
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 5
3
.3

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 £

3
3
2
,1

7
3
.3

9
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 o

ff
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
; 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 f

ig
u
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
w

ri
te

 o
ff

s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
5
-0

6
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r’
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 c
o
n
te

x
t.

  
  It

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 w
il
l 
in

fo
rm

 t
a
rg

e
t 

s
e
tt

in
g
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
-1

5
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

: 
 

A
ll
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 c
e
a
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

th
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 c

a
s
e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 n

e
w

 a
w

a
rd

 r
e
c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
. 

T
h
e
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 T
e
a
m

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f
o
rm

s
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 c

la
im

 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 o
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

 a
s
s
is

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 i
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
ir
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

  A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

s
 a

lm
o
s
t 

6
0
%

 o
f 
o
u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
ts

 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 a
re

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
u
rt

 s
ta

g
e
 f
o
r 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

. 
A
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

u
p
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 L

e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

u
p
 t

o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 b
e
tt

e
r 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 m

e
th

o
d
s
, 

th
e
re

b
y
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 e

s
c
a
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
rt

 s
ta

g
e
. 

T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 h

o
w

 w
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t

o
 g

e
t 

b
e
tt

e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 c
o
u
rt

 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 

  A
 s

p
e
c
ia

li
s
t 

d
e
b
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
T
h
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 w

il
l 
fo

c
u
s
 

o
n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

w
it
h
 o

u
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

ro
u
n
d
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
 

Page 42



3
 

 
 T

e
n

a
n

c
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 E

s
ta

te
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

s
ta

te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 S
e
le

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

R
ig

h
t 

to
 B

u
y
) 

a
s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
A
s
 o

f 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
o
l 
(C

S
M

T
).

  
9
0
%

 
7
2
%

 
 

 
 %

 o
f 

T
e
n
a
n
c
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ll
y
 A

b
a
n
d
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 A
s
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 

Jo
in

t 
T
e
n
a
n
c
y
, 

L
o
d
g
e
r,

 S
in

g
le

 A
b
a
n
d
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 
S
in

g
le

 T
e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
u
b
le

t,
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
) 

w
h
ic

h
 s

a
w

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
/o

u
tc

o
m

e
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
in

 o
u
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 t

a
rg

e
t 

1
0
0
%

 
9
0
%

 
 

 
 %

 o
f 
N

e
w

 T
e
n
a
n
t 

V
is

it
s
 (

R
o
u
ti
n
e
 V

is
it
s
) 

in
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 w
it
h
 a

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
  

1
0
0
%

 
7
8
.4

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
b
il
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 u

s
a
g
e
 b

y
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
it
y
w

id
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

 
  

2
8
,7

3
3
 

 

 
 O

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
b
il
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 u

s
a
g
e
 b

y
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
it
y
w

id
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 t
h
e
 %

 t
h
a
t 

re
la

te
d
 t

o
 

R
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 A

rr
e
a
rs

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 
  

5
5
.1

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
le

g
a
l 
re

p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 d

e
c
re

e
. 
 

  
1
3
1
 

 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 a

 y
e
a
r 

 
9
4
%

 
9
1
.4

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ll
 o

u
r 

E
s
ta

te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 n

e
w

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n
 e

ff
e
c
t 

a
s
 o

f 
1
s
t 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
e
 r

e
v
a
m

p
e
d
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

tr
e
a
m

li
n
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 ‘
a
re

a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

’ 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
n
e
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 A

re
a
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 T

e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

G
ro

u
p
s
. 
It

 i
s
 

h
o
p
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 n

e
w

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
; 

fo
r 

n
e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

, 
p
e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
p
p
ly

in
g
 t

o
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 t

h
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
s
, 
w

il
l 
d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 f
a
r 

la
rg

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

ra
te

 a
n
d
 t

h
u
s
 a

ll
o
w

 f
o
r 

a
 m

o
re

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 E

s
ta

te
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

s
a
w

 C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

te
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 (

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

S
M

T
 m

o
d
e
l)

 a
t 

7
2

%
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 2

5
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 

m
e
d
iu

m
s
; 

m
a
n
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

. 
T
h
is

 r
e
tu

rn
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 a

g
a
in

 d
is

a
p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
li
c
a
te

s
 p

o
o
r 

re
tu

rn
 r

a
te

s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

3
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
, 

v
in

d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

fo
re

m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 1

0
2
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
8

4
.3

%
, 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
 

 F
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
o
u
r 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 (

A
b
a
n
d
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 A
s
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 

Jo
in

t 
T
e
n
a
n
c
y
, 

L
o
d
g
e
r,

 S
in

g
le

 A
b
a
n
d
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 S
in

g
le

 
T
e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
u
b
le

t 
a
n
d
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
) 

w
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
s
 f

a
r 

m
o
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

th
a
n
 w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h
e
 c

a
s
e
. 

M
a
rc

h
 s

a
w

 
9

0
%

 o
f 
S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
/o

u
tc

o
m

e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

ll
o
tt

e
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

 w
h
ic

h
 l
e
a
v
e
s
 u

s
 w

it
h
 a

 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 o

f 
8

8
.9

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

. 
T
h
is

 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 s

h
o
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

1
0
0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

b
u
t 

d
o
e
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 

a
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
p
e
c
ta

b
le

 f
ig

u
re

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 w

h
e
re

 o
n
ly

 7
2
.4

%
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

. 
It

’s
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

th
a
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

il
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
 m

u
c
h
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 
1
0
0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

  
 T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
t 

v
is

it
s
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 s

a
w

 a
 s

li
g
h
t 

u
p
w

a
rd

 s
w

in
g
 w

it
h
 7

9
.6

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 7

8
.4

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
. 
It

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 h

e
re

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 c

o
m

e
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

u
r 

1
0
0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 r
e
li
a
n
t 

o
n
 r

o
b
u
s
t 

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 b
y
 s

ta
ff
, 

a
ll
 v

is
it
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 (

o
r 

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

a
tt

e
m

p
te

d
) 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 2

8
 d

a
y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
c
a
n
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
7
1
.6

%
 o

f 
v
is

it
s
 

0
6
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 43



4
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 2

8
 d

a
y
 t

a
rg

e
t.

  
 T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f

ig
u
re

 f
o
r 

T
e
n
a
n
c
y
 S

u
s
ta

in
m

e
n
t 

s
a
w

 9
1

.4
%

 o
f 

te
n
a
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 

o
v
e
r 

a
 y

e
a
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
9
4
%

. 
T
h
is

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

is
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 d

o
w

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 w

h
ic

h
 s

a
w

 9
2
.9

%
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
. 
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
, 

th
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

n
’t
 b

e
 t

o
o
 m

u
c
h
 c

a
u
s
e
 f
o
r 

a
la

rm
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
a
t 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 p

la
c
e
s
 h

ig
h
 i
n
 t

h
is

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
in

d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

li
m

a
te

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
a
t 

w
il
l 
h
a
v
e
 n

o
 d

o
u
b
t 

a
ff
e
c
te

d
 t

h
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
te

n
a
n
c
ie

s
, 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
v
ic

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
a
m

p
s
 b

u
t 

o
u
r 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
fa

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
. 

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 M

a
ri
s
c
h
a
l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 h

a
d
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

ra
te

 o
f 
s
u
s
ta

in
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 9

2
.4

%
 

o
f 
te

n
a
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 a

 y
e
a
r,

 w
h
il
e
 t

h
e
 M

a
s
tr

ic
k
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

re
a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

o
o
re

s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
r 

w
it
h
 9

0
.5

%
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
. 
 

 L
e
g
a
l 
R
e
p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 d

e
c
re

e
 s

a
w

 a
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 

1
3

1
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

 o
f 
7
9
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

th
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
 t

o
u
g
h
e
r 

s
ta

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
o
s
e
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 f
a
ll
in

g
 i
n
 t

o
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 a

rr
e
a
rs

. 
 

 A
s
 a

 C
o
u
n
c
il
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 e

s
ta

te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
ta

ff
 t

o
 u

s
e
 m

o
b
il
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
s
 w

h
e
n
 o

u
t 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 p

a
tc

h
e
s
 t

o
 v

ie
w

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

 l
iv

e
 d

a
ta

 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
W

o
rl
d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

in
s
te

a
d
 o

f 
h
a
v
in

g
 t

o
 w

a
it
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
y
 g

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 d

e
s
k
to

p
 P

C
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
. 
T
h
is

 a
ll
o
w

s
 s

ta
ff
 t

o
 i
n
te

ra
c
t 

w
it
h
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 o
n
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 e

s
ta

te
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 f
a
c
e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

is
e
s
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
, 

a
s
 a

 C
o
u
n
c
il
, 
p
ro

v
id

e
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
In

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 w

e
 s

a
w

 2
8

,7
3

3
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
b
il
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 

u
s
a
g
e
, 

th
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
it
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 s

in
c
e
 w

e
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
in

d
ic

a
to

r.
 O

f 
th

e
s
e
 2

8
,7

3
3
 h

it
s
, 

5
5

.1
%

 r
e
la

te
d
 t

o
 r

e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 
T
h
e
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
m

o
b
il
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 u

s
e
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 d

e
b
t 

is
 n

o
t 

s
u
rp

ri
s
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 f

a
c
in

g
 

m
a
n
y
 o

f 
o
u
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 d

e
a
li
n
g
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

  
C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

v
is

e
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

  
 

 
 V

o
id

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 R

e
n
t 

lo
s
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

o
id

s
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 -

 y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 -

 C
h
a
rt

e
r 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
 

1
.2

%
 

1
.6

8
%

 
 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
-l

e
t 

a
ll
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 -

 C
h
a
rt

e
r 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
 

3
7
 

7
1
.5

 
 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
ff
e
rs

 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
  

6
5
%

 
5
9
%

 
 

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
v
o
id

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
to

c
k
 a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

  
1
.2

%
 

2
.2

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
rs

 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
  

  
6
8
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
V
o
id

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
le

t 
w

it
h
in

 4
 w

e
e
k
s
  

5
6
.6

%
 

2
0
.8

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 v

o
id

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
v
e
a
le

d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
le

t 
a
ll
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 s

a
w

 a
 f

ig
u
re

 o
f 

7
3

.5
 d

a
y
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 1

5
8
 r

e
le

ts
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

. 
T
h
is

 n
u
m

b
e
r,

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 d

o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

fi
g
u
re

 
0
8
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 44



5
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

9
8
.4

 d
a
y
s
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

) 
is

 s
ti
ll
 f

a
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 i
t 

o
u
g
h
t 

to
 b

e
. 

W
h
e
n
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

, 
o
u
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
le

t 
a
ll
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
s
 7

1
.5

 d
a
y
s
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 1

5
5
3
 r

e
le

ts
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
3
7
 d

a
y
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 u

p
 a

 f
u
ll
 t

h
re

e
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 5

0
.4

 d
a
y
s
 i
t 

to
o
k
 t

o
 r

e
le

t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 o

f 
c
o
u
rs

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
li
g
h
t 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 t

o
 b

ri
n
g
 o

u
r 

re
le

t 
ti
m

e
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 w

h
a
t 

w
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
x
p
e
c
t.

  
 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 o

u
r 

re
le

t 
ti
m

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 w

a
s
 n

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t.

 3
4
 C

li
ft

o
n
 C

o
u
rt

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 
tr

a
d
it
io

n
a
ll
y
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 l
e
t 

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 M

u
lt
i,
 w

a
s
 r

e
le

t 
in

 M
a
rc

h
 a

ft
e
r 

s
it
ti
n
g
 v

o
id

 f
o
r 

5
3
9
 d

a
y
s
. 
1
0
1
 B

a
ln

a
g
a
s
k
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 r

e
le

t 
a
ft

e
r 

s
it
ti
n
g
 v

o
id

 f
o
r 

2
6
6
 d

a
y
s
 a

ft
e
r 

m
u
lt
ip

le
 o

ff
e
rs

 w
e
re

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 3

 L
e
w

is
v
a
le

 w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 v

o
id

 f
o
r 

2
6
6
 d

a
y
s
 a

ft
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rg

o
in

g
 m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 a

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 
H

e
a
ti
n
g
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
. 
 

 A
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

, 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 F

o
r 

V
a
ry

in
g
 N

e
e
d
s
 (

H
F
V
N

) 
re

v
ie

w
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
s
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly

 b
u
t 

th
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

d
e
fl
e
c
t 

fr
o
m

 o
th

e
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 a
p
p
a
re

n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 v

o
id

s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
A
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
, 

th
e
 n

e
w

 v
o
id

 p
a
th

s
 w

il
l 

a
s
s
is

t 
in

 b
re

a
k
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
e
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
v
o
id

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

le
a
rl
y
 s

h
o
w

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
. 
 

 F
o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 s

a
w

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 c

re
e
p
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 5

0
0
 m

a
rk

. 
T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
o
id

s
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 w

a
s
 

5
0
2
, 
6
6
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

it
ti
n
g
 o

ff
-c

h
a
rg

e
 (

U
n
a
b
le

 T
o
 B

e
 R

e
le

t/
N

o
t 

T
o
 B

e
 R

e
le

t)
. 
O

u
r 

g
ro

s
s
 v

o
id

s
 %

 h
a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 a

t 
2

.2
%

 s
in

c
e
 l
a
s
t 

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

T
h
e
 

a
c
tu

a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
o
id

s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
le

t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 i
s
 4

3
6
 (

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

F
V
N

 r
e
v
ie

w
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 h

ig
h
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 
 

 F
o
r 

a
 d

e
ta

il
e
d
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 v
o
id

 p
a
th

s
 s

in
c
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 1
4
 p

le
a
s
e
 s

e
e
 t

h
e
 b

u
ll
e
ti
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 o

n
 V

o
id

s
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

p
o
o
re

s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 v

o
id

 r
e
n
t 

lo
s
s
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 l
o
s
in

g
 1

.6
8

%
 o

f 
re

n
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 v

o
id

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
W

h
e
n
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 

te
rm

s
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 l
o
s
t 

£
1
,2

7
5
,0

9
0
.2

4
 i
n
 r

e
n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

s
e
t;

 £
9
3
1
,7

5
9
.7

1
 (

1
.2

%
) 

a
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 
o
f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 T

il
ly

d
ro

n
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

re
a
 h

a
d
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 
re

n
t 

lo
s
t 

w
it
h
 2

.2
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
il
e
 M

a
s
tr

ic
k
 A

re
a
 h

a
d
 1

.2
%

 a
n
d
 M

a
ri
s
c
h
a
l 
A
re

a
 h

a
d
 

1
.4

%
. 
A
ft

e
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

re
a
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 f
o
r 

V
a
ry

in
g
 N

e
e
d
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
s
 p

e
rt

a
in

s
 t

o
 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

re
n
t 

lo
s
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 v

o
id

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
t 

a
t 

1
.4

%
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r.

  
  O

u
r 

o
ff

e
r 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 s

a
w

 6
6
.1

%
 o

f 
o
ff
e
rs

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
, 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 t

re
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
Ja

n
u
a
ry

 w
h
e
re

 o
n
ly

 4
9
%

 o
f 

o
ff
e
rs

 w
e
re

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 i
s
 5

9
%

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
6
5
%

 w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 w

h
e
n
 t

a
k
in

g
 i
n
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 w

a
s
 4

9
.3

%
. 
It

’s
 c

le
a
r 

th
a
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

th
e
 ‘
o
n
e
 o

ff
e
r’
 p

o
li
c
y
 w

h
ic

h
, 

s
in

c
e
 i
t’
s
 i
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
, 

h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 r

a
te

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
. 
A
ft

e
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 k

e
e
p
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 

6
5
%

 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 h

o
p
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

il
l 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 a

ll
o
w

 u
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 h

o
p
e
fu

ll
y
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 O
ff
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

3
 m

o
n
th

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 h
ig

h
 o

f 
3
8
5
 o

ff
e
rs

 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

. 
 

 T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 6
8

 r
e
fu

s
a
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
, 

d
o
w

n
 f
ro

m
 w

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 a

n
 u

n
u
s
u
a
ll
y
 h

ig
h
 f

ig
u
re

 o
f 
1
0
1
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

. 
In

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
 w

e
 s

a
w

 o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 7

7
 r

e
fu

s
a
ls

 
p
e
r 

m
o
n
th

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
2
2
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 m

u
s
t 

te
m

p
e
r 

th
a
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a
t 

o
ff
e
rs

 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 h

a
v
e
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 3

0
 a

 m
o
n
th

 w
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 o
v
e
r 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
re

fu
s
a
ls

 w
e
re

 d
u
e
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
‘A

re
a
’ 
o
r 

‘P
ro

p
e
rt

y
’.
  

 A
c
ti

o
n

  
N

e
w

 v
o
id

 p
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
. 
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 a

ll
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

e
a
m

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 

is
 s

ti
ll
 e

a
rl
y
 

d
a
y
s
. 
T
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 E

s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 R

e
p
a
ir
s
 s

ta
ff
 i
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 t

o
 c

la
ri
fy

 r
o
le

s
/r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

il
it
ie

s
. 

A
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 v

o
id

s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

th
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 p

a
th

s
/p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 t

o
o
 e

a
rl
y
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th

o
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
It

 i
s
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 f
u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 
d
e
ta

il
e
d
 b

re
a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
a
ll
 v

o
id

s
 b

y
 p

a
th

 b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 t

im
e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

d
a
ta

 w
il
l 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 t

o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 i
f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
. 
 

  
 

Page 45



6
 

 
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

s
 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t 
a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

4
,3

8
8
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 u

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t 

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

3
5
8
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 l
is

t 
a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

7
8
8
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
li
s
t 

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

1
,6

3
3
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 d

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 l
is

t 
a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

5
2
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

c
e
ip

t,
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

 
  

2
8
4
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

c
e
ip

t,
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
  

8
4
%

 
6
4
.8

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 %

 o
f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

' 
in

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

w
h
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
  

  
5
0
%

 
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

  
D

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 w

it
n
e
s
s
e
d
 a

 2
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
, 
fr

o
m

 6
9
5
8
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 t

o
 6

8
0
5
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 
B
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
m

a
ll
 m

o
n
th

 o
n
 m

o
n
th

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
p
ik

e
 

w
it
h
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

g
a
in

. 
A
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
c
a
n
 b

e
 o

n
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

n
e
 l
is

t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 l
is

ts
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
O

f 
th

e
 7

2
1
9
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 l
is

ts
; 

 
· 

3
5
8
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 U

rg
e
n
t 

L
is

t 
 

· 
5
2
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 L
is

t 
 

· 
7
8
8
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 L
is

t 
 

· 
4
3
8
8
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 W

a
it
in

g
 L

is
t 

 
· 

1
6
3
3
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
L
is

t 
 

 S
in

c
e
 i
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

re
c
e
n
t 

re
c
o
rd

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

6
4
.8

%
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 d
o
w

n
 1

3
%

 f
ro

m
 7

7
.7

%
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
1
0
2
, 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 f

ig
u
re

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

w
it
h
 i
t 

a
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 c

u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
. 
A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 w
id

e
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

 n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
w

it
h
 u

n
m

e
t 

s
o
c
ia

l/
m

e
d
ic

a
l 
n
e
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 e

lo
n
g
a
te

d
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
h
il
e
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
o
n
g
e
r,

 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

im
e
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
e
e
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
il
l 
b
e
 d

o
n
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 S

M
A
R
T
E
R
 c

ri
te

ri
a
. 
 

  D
e
s
p
it
e
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
rl
y
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
is

ts
, 

th
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

ti
ll
 g

re
a
tl
y
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 s

u
p
p
ly

. 
G

iv
e
n
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r,

 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 3

5
3
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 r

e
-l

e
t 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
/s

u
p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
o
n
 t

h
e
 l
is

t 
e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

. 
 

0
8
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 46



7
 

  D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
1
5
5
2
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
h
o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 l
is

ts
, 

a
 b

re
a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

e
lo

w
; 

 
· 

5
3
4
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 U

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t 

 
· 

1
0
7
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 L
is

t 
 

· 
2
8
1
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 L
is

t 
 

· 
3
5
5
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 W

a
it
in

g
 L

is
t 

 
· 

2
7
5
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
L
is

t 
 

  T
h
e
 q

u
o
ta

 o
f 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

5
0
%

 o
f 

le
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t,

 1
0
%

 s
h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 6

0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t.

 D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
le

ts
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t 

s
lo

w
e
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

, 
w

it
h
 o

n
ly

 3
7
%

 o
f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
le

t’
s
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
is

t 
fa

ll
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
is

 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 
F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
o
f 

a
ll
 t

h
e
 l
e
ts

 m
a
d
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
ly

 4
2
%

 o
f 

th
e
 q

u
o
ta

 w
e
re

 a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 U

rg
e
n
t 

L
is

t 
d
o
w

n
 1

6
%

 o
n
 t

h
e
 5

8
%

 q
u
o
ta

 
a
w

a
rd

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 1

s
t 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

  
  In

 c
o
n
tr

a
s
t,

 2
8
%

 o
f 

th
e
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 w

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t 
a
n
d
 2

2
%

 t
o
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
li
s
t,

 e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 2

0
%

 q
u
o
ta

 s
e
t 

in
 b

o
th

 c
a
s
e
s
. 
In

 
a
d
d
it
io

n
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 s

o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
t 

p
e
r 

li
s
t 

re
v
e
a
ls

 a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
1
3
%

 o
f 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
fr

o
m

 o
th

e
r 

li
s
ts

, 
o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 2

2
%

 T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
L
is

t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
 F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 r
e
v
e
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 

6
7
%

 o
f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 &

 A
d
v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

e
re

 
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 1

5
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

e
ry

 l
o
w

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 m
ig

h
t 

n
o
t 

b
e
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
re

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 &

 A
d
v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

 R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 &

 A
d
v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 n

e
w

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
g
a
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 o

n
 7

th
 

o
f 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
, 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 a

 n
e
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

in
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 
 A

c
ti

o
n

  
A
n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
ta

s
k
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 h
is

to
ri
c
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 p
e
ri
o
d
; 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

h
is

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

il
it
y
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 
fo

c
u
s
 s

o
le

ly
 o

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
is

 b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 I
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u
ty

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o

r 
w

h
e
re

 
re

h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
. 
It

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

u
rg

e
n
t 

c
a
s
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
h
o
u
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 l
it
tl
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 t

im
e
 

o
n
c
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
c
e
rt

a
in

ly
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
t 

to
 t

h
is

 t
a
k
in

g
 u

p
w

a
rd

s
 o

f 
8
 m

o
n
th

s
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs

. 
T
h
is

 w
il
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 w

a
it
in

g
 t

im
e
s
. 

  

 
 T

e
n

a
n

t 
P

a
r
ti

c
ip

a
ti

o
n

 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

T
e
n
a
n
t 

G
ro

u
p
s
  

  
4
7
 

 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
T
e
n
a
n
t 

G
ro

u
p
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
  

3
5
%

 
2
9
.8

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
a
re

 a
tt

e
n
d
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g
 (

T
e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
).

 T
y
p
e
s
 

o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 c

o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

T
P
A
S
),

 T
e
n
a
n
t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

T
IS

),
 C

h
a
rt

e
re

d
 I

n
s
ti
tu

te
 

o
f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 (

C
IH

) 
c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
, 
R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
’s

 (
R
T
O

) 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
m

o
re

 s
p
e
c
ia

li
s
e
d
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r 
s
k
il
ls

. 
  

1
4
4
 

 

Page 47



8
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

o
 o

u
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 4

7
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 c

it
y
. 
O

f 
th

e
s
e
 4

7
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 
2
9
.8

%
 (

1
4
) 

a
re

 R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

R
T
O

’s
),

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

ig
h
t 

to
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

a
b
re

a
s
t 

o
f 

a
ll
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 s

e
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
3
5
%

 o
f 

it
s
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 R

T
O

’s
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

il
l 
b
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 i
W

o
rl
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 m

o
n
th

ly
. 

 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 
A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 m
e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

il
l 
in

c
lu

d
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

e
n
a
n
t 

s
p
e
n
d
 a

n
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

 A
 f
ir
s
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
a
s
 h

e
ld

 a
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
d
y
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
. 
 

0
1
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 S

o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

C
h
a
rt

e
r 

T
h
e
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
g
u
la

to
r 

is
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

3
0
th

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
4
. 
T
h
e
 T

e
n
a
n
ts

 
S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 f

ie
ld

w
o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 

T
h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 T

e
n
a
n
ts

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 

fo
r 

is
s
u
e
 b

y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
.T

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 W

e
b
 p

a
g
e
s
 w

il
l 
b
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 J

u
n
e
. 

 
0
1
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 f
o
r 

V
a
ry

in
g
 N

e
e
d
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 f
ro

m
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 A

m
e
n
it
y
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 -

 T
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 w

is
h
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 v

o
id

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 l
e
t 

a
s
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

2
4
.5

%
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 a
t 

th
e
 t

e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
w

 a
m

e
n
it
y
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

. 
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 f
ro

m
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 M

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 -

 S
m

it
h
fi
e
ld

 C
o
u
rt

 -
 T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

s
e
c
u
re

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 o

ff
e
rs

 o
f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 
A
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
m

b
le

d
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
B
u
il
d
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 a

 r
a
re

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 e

m
p
ty

 
b
u
il
d
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
d
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
. 
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 f
ro

m
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 V

e
ry

 S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 -

 P
ro

v
o
s
t 

H
o
g
g
 C

o
u
rt

 -
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
m

b
le

d
 t

o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

t 
P
ro

v
o
s
t 

H
o
g
g
 C

o
u
rt

. 
A
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
th

e
 k

it
c
h
e
n
 

a
re

a
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

w
il
l 
b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
a
t 

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

it
h
e
r 

a
 f

u
ll
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

r 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t

y
p
e
 m

e
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
th

is
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

0
6
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

 

 
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 h
o
u
s
e
d
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

2
 

m
o
n
th

s
  

9
0
%

 
9
0
.8

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 (

fr
o
m

 p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
d
u
ty

) 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
w

h
o
s
e
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 w

a
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

. 
 

1
0
0
 

1
4
5
.3

 
 

Page 48



9
 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
  

  
8
4
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 o

r 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

  
  

6
9
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
a
s
 l
o
s
t 

w
it
h
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 e
it
h
e
r 

p
re

- 
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

e
c
is

io
n
  

1
4
%

 
1
2
.5

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 (

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

1
9
8
7
 a

n
d
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 e

tc
 (

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

2
0
0
3
 i
m

p
o
s
e
 a

 d
u
ty

 o
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

ll
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
th

a
t 

a
re

 f
o
u
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 

s
ta

ti
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

if
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

th
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

m
o
n
th

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 o

r 
s
e
c
u
re

d
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
it
 h

a
s
 a

 d
u
ty

 t
o
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
e
 

(t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

a
n
d
 a

re
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
).

  

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 T

h
e
 %

 o
f 
u
s
e
rs

' 
in

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

w
h
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

g
iv

e
n
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

r 
a
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
. 
 

  
8
1
.8

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 %
 o

f 
a
ll
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
n
e
e
d
 r

e
le

ts
 (

a
ll
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
, 
v
e
ry

 s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
) 

a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

. 
 

5
0
%

 
3
2
.1

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

  
D

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
3
3
0
 f
o
rm

a
l 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
w

h
o
 w

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 d
e
e
m

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
 

n
e
e
d
 o

f 
a
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 3

%
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

3
7
0
 w

h
o
 a

p
p
li
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
 

  W
h
il
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

’ 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 h

a
s
 f

a
ll
e
n
 b

y
 

2
3
%

 t
o
 1

1
0
4
. 
T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 2
5
9
 o

p
e
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 
h
a
v
e
 a

 k
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 a

ff
e
c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
  O

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 8
1
5
 (

7
4
%

) 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 d

e
c
is

io
n
, 

w
it
h
 6

5
8
 (

8
1
%

) 
o
f 
th

e
s
e
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 o

w
e
 a

 d
u
ty

 t
o
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
e
. 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

fi
g
u
re

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 a
 2

9
%

 f
a
ll
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
. 
A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 

th
e
 n

u
m

e
ri
c
a
l 
fa

ll
 i
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
l 
d
e
c
li
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 r
e
-h

o
u
s
e
 d

u
ty

, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 f
ro

m
 6

5
%

 
in

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
 t

o
 6

0
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
m

o
n
g
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
g
iv

e
n
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

w
e
d
 a

 r
e
h
o
u
s
e
 d

u
ty

 h
a
s
 a

c
tu

a
ll
y
 r

is
e
n
 b

y
 4

%
 

fr
o
m

 7
7
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 t

o
 8

1
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 

  D
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

 s
h
if
t 

in
 t

re
n
d
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 a

m
o
n
g
 t

h
o
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 n
o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
, 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 1

6
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 t

o
 2

7
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

T
h
e
 

m
o
s
t 

n
o
ti
c
e
a
b
le

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

m
o
n
g
 t

h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

; 
 

Ø
 2

9
%

 r
is

e
 i
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
w

it
h
d
ra

w
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 f
ro

m
 8

5
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 t

o
 1

1
1
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
  

Ø
 4

8
%

 r
is

e
 i
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
lo

s
in

g
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 f
ro

m
 5

6
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 t

o
 8

3
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
  

Ø
 2

0
0
%

 r
is

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
in

e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 3

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 t

o
 9

 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 

Ø
 2

6
%

 f
a
ll
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 f
o
u
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 n

o
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 f
ro

m
 6

6
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 t

o
 4

9
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 

  T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 
1
0
6
9
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
, 
4
0
2
 (

2
7
%

) 
le

s
s
 c

a
s
e
s
 t

h
a
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
O

f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 5

5
 (

5
.1

%
) 

fa
il
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 c
o
n
ta

c
t,

 a
 2

%
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 u

p
o
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
T
h
is

 a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 a

 3
.5

%
 r

is
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
s
t 

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 p

u
ts

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 %

 o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
s
t 

a
t 

1
2
.5

%
, 
fa

ll
in

g
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 1

3
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t.

  
  T
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 a

ll
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
, 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 6

5
8
 l
e
ts

, 
a
 2

9
%

 f
a
ll
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

0
8
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 49



1
0
 

w
h
e
re

 9
2
8
 l
e
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
e
ts

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

is
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 w
e
 s

e
e
 a

 r
is

e
 i
n
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

e
 w

o
u
ld

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

 s
e
e
in

g
 a

 s
im

il
a
r 

ri
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
le

ts
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 

  In
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 
1
3
1
7
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
n
e
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
le

t,
 6

%
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 w

h
e
re

 1
2
3
9
 w

e
re

 r
e
le

t.
 O

f 
th

e
 l
e
ts

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

4
2
3
 (

3
2
.1

%
) 

w
e
re

 a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
, 
1
6
3
 f
e
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 d

e
c
li
n
e
 o

f 
2
8
%

. 
A
 b

re
a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

7
5
%

 o
f 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
t 

p
ro

fi
le

 w
e
re

 s
in

g
le

 p
e
rs

o
n
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
’ 
y
e
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

n
ly

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 3

8
.4

%
 o

f 
th

e
 o

n
e
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
n
e
e
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
le

ts
 t

o
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 i
n
 p

a
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 

o
w

e
 a

 r
e
h
o
u
s
e
 d

u
ty

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
th

a
t 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 o

w
e
 a

 r
e
-h

o
u
s
e
 d

u
ty

 b
u
t 

b
e
in

g
 

d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 2
7
6
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
w

a
it
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
h
o
u
s
e
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

3
1
%

 (
8
6
) 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
h
o
u
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
 a

 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
. 

W
h
e
re

 a
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
t 

is
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

h
is

 w
il
l 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e
. 
 

 F
o
r 

a
ll
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 s

ta
n
d
s
 a

t 
1
2
7
.7

 d
a
y
s
, 
1
4
.2

 d
a
y
s
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 1

0
0
 d

a
y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t.

 D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
to

rt
e
d
 s

o
m

e
w

h
a
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 c

lo
s
in

g
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri
c
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 n
o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 

w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
. 
In

 c
o
n
tr

a
s
t 

th
e
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e
 f
o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 a
c
tu

a
ll
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

to
 2

1
 w

e
e
k
s
 f
ro

m
 2

4
 w

e
e
k
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
 

 F
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
t’
s
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
 t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 s

u
s
ta

in
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 h

ig
h
. 

F
ig

u
re

s
 r

e
v
e
a
l 
a
 9

0
.8

%
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
te

n
a
n
c
y
 s

u
s
ta

in
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
in

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
, 
a
 s

li
g
h
t 

fa
ll
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 9

1
.9

%
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
 

  D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 6
8
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 4

6
 (

7
1
%

) 
w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 p

a
p
e
r 

fo
rm

a
t 

a
n
d
 2

0
 (

2
9
%

) 
o
n
li
n
e
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 o
f 
th

e
 6

8
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 5

 (
7
%

) 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
a
il
e
d
 t

o
 a

n
s
w

e
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
li
fy

in
g
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
 (

h
o
w

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

e
re

 y
o
u
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
) 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

re
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 a

lg
o
ri
th

m
 f
o
r 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
n
g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
. 
A
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
0
 (

1
6
%

) 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 a
n
s
w

e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 n
e
it
h
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 n

o
r 

d
is

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
a
in

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 a

lg
o
ri
th

m
 f
o
r 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
n
g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 o
f 
th

e
 5

3
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
, 
8
7
%

 (
4
6
) 

o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 a
n
s
w

e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 

w
e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
It

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 n

o
te

d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
a
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 m

ig
h
t 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
re

 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

  A
c
ti

o
n
 

A
n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
ta

s
k
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 h
is

to
ri
c
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 p
e
ri
o
d
; 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

h
is

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

il
it
y
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 
fo

c
u
s
 s

o
le

ly
 o

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
is

 b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 I
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u
ty

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o

r 
w

h
e
re

 
re

h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
. 
It

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

u
rg

e
n
t 

c
a
s
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
h
o
u
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 l
it
tl
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 t

im
e
 

o
n
c
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
c
e
rt

a
in

ly
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
t 

to
 t

h
is

 t
a
k
in

g
 u

p
w

a
rd

s
 o

f 
8
 m

o
n
th

s
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs

. 
T
h
is

 w
il
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 w

a
it
in

g
 t

im
e
s
. 

 

 
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 T

e
m

p
o

r
a
r
y
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 o

r 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 w

h
o
m

 a
n
 o

ff
e
r 

w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

 
  

1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

n
 o

ff
e
r 

o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 o

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
  

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

(Y
T
D

) 
 

  
1
,3

7
2
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
rs

 o
f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 o

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
d
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

 
  

1
,3

7
2
 

 

Page 50



1
1
 

 
 Y

T
D

 %
 o

f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 o

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
e
rs

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 f
o
r 

a
ll
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

y
p
e
s
  

  
1
0
.9

%
 

 

 
 Y

T
D

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 o

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
e
rs

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 f
o
r 

a
ll
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  

  
1
4
9
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 %

 o
f 
u
s
e
rs

' 
in

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

w
h
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
 

  
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 T

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 s

ta
y
in

g
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll
 t

y
p
e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 a

g
g
re

g
a
te

 t
a
rg

e
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

(6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

w
it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

  
  

8
6
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 o
n
 m

o
n
th

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 f
la

ts
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
  

  
2
6
1
,4

0
7
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 o
n
 m

o
n
th

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
fo

rm
e
r 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 f
la

ts
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
  

  
1
,3

2
6
,9

8
7
 

 

 
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 F

la
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
G

R
O

S
S

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
re

n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
  

1
0
%

 
5
.7

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 P
r
o
v
is
io
n
 

A
t 

3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
d
 a

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
5
1
0
 u

n
it
s
 c

o
n
s
is

ti
n
g
 o

f;
  

Ø
 2

9
9
 f
u
rn

is
h
e
d
 A

C
C
 f
la

ts
, 

5
9
%

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

  
Ø

 6
0
 H

o
s
te

l 
ro

o
m

s
, 
1
2
%

 o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

  
Ø

 3
0
 B

&
B
 r

o
o
m

s
, 
6
%

 o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

  
Ø

 2
0
 H

o
te

l 
ro

o
m

s
 4

%
 o

f 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
  

Ø
 1

0
1
 P

ri
v
a
te

ly
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 u

n
it
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 s

u
b
le

t 
fr

o
m

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
),

 2
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

. 
 

  R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
B
&

B
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

3
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

 d
ra

m
a
ti
c
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 B

&
B
 u

s
a
g
e
. 
S
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
g
u
n
 t

o
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
u
t 

s
o
m

e
w

h
a
t 

w
it
h
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
2
6
 B

&
B
 r

o
o
m

s
 

b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
  A
n
o
th

e
r 

k
e
y
 p

la
n
k
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
/t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 e

x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e
 P

S
L
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 3

0
0
 u

n
it
s
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
1
7
 u

n
it
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 a

 2
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 s

to
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 8

4
 u

n
it
s
 h

e
ld

 a
t 

3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
. 
W

h
il
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

 r
is

e
 

in
 P

S
L
 s

to
c
k
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
g
ro

w
th

 h
a
s
 d

e
c
li
n
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 9
3
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 s

to
c
k
. 
 

  D
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 H
L
-3

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
, 

th
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
ly

 d
a
ta

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
rt

e
r 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

s
h
o
w

s
; 

 
Ø

 1
4
7
8
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
ll
 o

f 
w

h
o
m

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

Ø
 O

f 
th

o
s
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

2
%

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 o

ff
e
r,

 w
it
h
 r

e
fu

s
a
l 
o
f 
h
o
s
te

l 
to

p
p
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

a
te

s
 a

t 
1
8
%

  
Ø

 N
o
 b

re
a
c
h
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
s
u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

rd
e
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
. 
 

  A
t 

th
e
 3

1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 3
6
1
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fo

rm
s
 o

f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

h
o
s
te

l/
A
C
C
 T

e
m

p
 F

la
ts

/B
&

B
) 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 8

6
 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
s
id

e
d
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

6
 m

o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

lm
o
s
t 

d
o
u
b
le

 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 s

ta
y
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

th
a
n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

(4
4
).

 O
f 
th

e
 8

6
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 o

c
c
u
p
y
in

g
 t

e
m

p
 o

v
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t,

 a
ll
 b

u
t 

5
 w

e
re

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 f
u
rn

is
h
e
d
 f
la

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 l
iv

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 v

it
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 w

h
e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 

  

0
6
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 51



1
2
 

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
ly

, 
if
 w

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 p

e
r 

ty
p
e
 b

y
 a

c
tu

a
l 
e
n
d
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
c
y
 w

e
 f
in

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 d

u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

is
; 

 
Ø

 B
&

B
 -

 1
.4

 m
o
n
th

  
Ø

 H
o
s
te

l 
–
 2

.5
 m

o
n
th

s
  

Ø
 T

e
m

p
 A

C
C
 F

la
t 

–
 4

.4
 m

o
n
th

s
  

  F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 4

7
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 r
e
v
e
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 

9
1
.4

%
 (

4
4
) 

o
f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 s
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 
It

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 n

o
te

d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
a
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 m

ig
h
t 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
re

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

  R
e
n
t
s
 

A
t 

th
e
 3

1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 2
0
6
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 (

7
5
%

) 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

.C
.C

 f
la

tt
e
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

. 
T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 s
to

o
d
 

a
t 

£
2
6
1
,4

0
7
 a

 4
1
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 £

1
8
5
,7

8
7
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 i
s
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

to
 5

.7
%

 o
f 

th
e
 g

ro
s
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

re
n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

ti
ll
 w

e
ll
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 1

0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t.

 T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 w

e
e
k
ly

 r
e
n
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
) 

fo
r 

a
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 f

la
t 

is
 £

3
1
7
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 r
e
v
e
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
w

e
 i
s
 £

1
2
6
9
, 

th
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 4

 w
e
e
k
s
 r

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

  W
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

ri
s
e
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

. 
A
 s

u
rv

e
y
 e

x
a
m

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 i
n
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 p

u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 o

n
 3

1
s
t 

M
a
y
 

2
0
1
3
 f
o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

2
6
%

 o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

e
re

 u
n
d
e
r-

o
c
c
u
p
y
in

g
, 
fo

re
c
a
s
ti
n
g
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
w

e
e
k
ly

 s
h
o
rt

fa
ll
 o

f 
£
3
,2

5
0
, 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

to
 £

1
6
9
,0

0
0
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
 y

e
a
r,

 y
e
t 

th
e
 r

e
a
l 
te

rm
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

fa
ll
s
 w

a
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
te

d
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

a
t 

£
7
5
,6

2
0
. 
 

  F
o
rm

e
r 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
n
g
 A

C
C
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 f
la

tt
e
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 r

is
e
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

le
v
e
l 
a
t 

£
1
,3

2
6
,9

8
7
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

4
3
0
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 h

a
v
e
 l
e
ft

 w
it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 w
o
rt

h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
3
9
0
,1

8
6
 (

2
9
%

 o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
v
a
lu

e
) 

a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
£
9
0
7
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 a
n
d
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

to
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 3

 w
e
e
k
s
 r

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

  
P
S
L
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
1
1
, 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
n
e
fi
tt

e
d
 f
ro

m
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 f
o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 s

to
c
k
 a

s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
. 
In

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
3
/2

0
1
4
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
, 
w

h
e
re

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 3
 y

e
a
rs

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 d
u
e
 t

o
 e

n
d
. 
 

  Ju
ly

 2
0
1
3
 s

a
w

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
u
ty

 w
h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

 l
e
g
a
l 
d
u
ty

 o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
li
e
v
e
 t

h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 o

r 
th

re
a
te

n
e
d
 w

it
h
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
. 

T
h
is

 n
e
w

 d
u
ty

 h
a
s
 

a
ll
o
w

e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

li
e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
n
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 c

li
e
n
ts

 t
h
is

 h
a
d
 

le
d
 t

o
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

in
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  

 T
h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 t

h
e
re

 w
il
l 
b
e
 a

 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
. 
 

 

 
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 P

r
e
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 N

o
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 t
h
a
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
/o

r 
a
c
ti
v
e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
  

  
1
9
1
 

 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

lo
s
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
 f

in
a
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
 

  
2
1
2
 

 

Page 52



1
3
 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 w
h
e
re

 p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

e
fi
n
it
iv

e
ly

 d
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

th
re

a
t 

o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 b

y
 m

e
a
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
t 

b
e
in

g
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 h

o
m

e
 o

r 
fi
n
d
in

g
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
  

2
5
.4

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 2
6
0
0
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
ro

m
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
q
u
ir
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

r 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
/o

r 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
e
re

 c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 w

h
e
re

 2
5
9
5
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
. 
O

f 
th

e
 2

6
0
0
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 2

0
9
 

(8
%

) 
a
re

 r
e
p
e
a
t 

c
a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 h
a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 s
o
u
g
h
t 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 u

p
 1

1
6
 c

a
s
e
s
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 1
2
4
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

 
  T
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
7
5
2
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
, 

d
o
w

n
 7

5
8
 (

3
0
%

) 
o
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 l
e
v
e
ls

 w
it
h
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
A
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

(2
0
1
3
/1

4
) 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 3
2
2
0
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

p
e
n
, 

m
a
n
y
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 c

a
s
e
s
 d

e
e
m

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
c
ti
v
e
 w

h
e
re

 n
o
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
. 
 

  O
f 
th

e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
, 
1
1
4
6
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
e
d
, 
4
2
%

 o
f 

a
ll
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

O
f 

th
e
 

c
a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 s

o
 f
a
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t;

  
· 

3
8
.7

%
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 a

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
  

· 
4
2
.4

%
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
ly

  
· 

1
.0

%
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
s
t 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

o
r 

fa
il
e
d
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

  
· 

3
1
.6

%
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll
y
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
v
e
n
te

d
. 
 

  T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 a
b
o
v
e
 i
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 m

o
d
u
le

 t
h
e
 I

C
T
 s

y
s
te

m
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
rd

 p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
s
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 

w
it
h
 c

a
u
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 o
n
ly

 4
4
4
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
, 

th
is

 i
s
 a

 b
ig

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 1

3
4
1
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 r

e
g
is

te
ri
n
g
 f
o
rm

a
l 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

L
-1

 (
S
y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 d

a
ta

) 
d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

 
  P
R
E
V
E
N

T
 1

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 u

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

g
a
th

e
ri
n
g
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 o

n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll
 C

o
u
n
c
il
s
’ 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t 

o
f 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
, 

th
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 r
e
li
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 w

a
y
 o

f 
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 h

o
w

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 

p
re

v
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

  
R
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 ‘
P
re

v
e
n
t 

1
’ 
d
a
ta

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
A
p
ri
l,
 c

o
in

c
id

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 
A
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
tu

rn
, 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

il
l 

b
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
e
ri
o
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 a
s
s
ig

n
in

g
 w

o
rk

. 
H

is
to

ri
c
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 p

re
c
e
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

P
re

v
e
n
t 

1
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
. 
 

0
6
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

 

 
 H

M
O

 a
n

d
 L

a
n

d
lo

r
d

 R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 H

M
O

 L
ic

e
n
s
e
s
 i
n
 f
o
rc

e
  

  
1
,0

3
9
 

 

 
 H

M
O

 L
ic

e
n
s
e
 A

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 P

e
n
d
in

g
  

  
1
5
6
 

 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C
u
rr

e
n
t 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
 R

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 A

p
p
ro

v
e
d
  

  
1
6
,5

9
1
 

 

Page 53



1
4
 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 A

p
p
ro

v
e
d
  

  
1
9
,3

1
4
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 L

a
n
d
lo

rd
 R

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 3
-y

e
a
r 

d
u
ra

ti
o
n
, 
fo

ll
o
w

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 t

im
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 m

u
s
t 

re
n
e
w

 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
f 
th

e
y
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
. 

E
x
p
ir
e
d
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 

re
m

a
in

 o
n
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 m

u
s
t 

p
u
rs

u
e
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
b
e
g
a
n
 a

n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

e
v
e
ry

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 4

,0
9
3
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 w

h
o
s
e
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
d
 e

x
p
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

re
n
e
w

e
d
, 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

t 
1
/5

/2
0
1
4
, 

a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

6
9
 e

x
p
ir
e
d
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n
re

n
e
w

e
d
. 
R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 e

x
p
ir
e
 e

v
e
ry

 d
a
y
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 w

il
l 
a
lw

a
y
s
 s

h
o
w

 a
 c

e
rt

a
in

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 
e
x
p
ir
e
d
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 i
s
 t

o
 e

li
m

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 '
h
is

to
ri
c
a
l'
 e

x
p
ir
e
d
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

s
o
 a

s
 t

o
 l
e
a
v
e
 a

 m
a
n
a
g
e
a
b
le

 a
m

o
u
n
t.

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

7
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

e
x
p
ir
e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 1

/1
/2

0
1
4
 a

n
d
 £

1
1
0
 L

a
te

 A
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
e
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
li
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
. 

S
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
s
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 f
a
il
 t

o
 r

e
n
e
w

, 
R
e
n
t 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 w

il
l 
b
e
 s

e
rv

e
d
. 

W
e
 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 d

e
a
li
n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 5

2
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
p
ir
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 1

/1
/2

0
1
4
  

0
1
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

 

 
 R

e
p

a
ir

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 o

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

8
0
%

 
9
0
.8

%
 

 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
V
o
id

 P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
  

1
0
%

 
3
.5

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
rs

 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f
o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
  

  
1
3
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

 
7
2
,0

0
0
 

6
5
,5

3
4
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

  
9
6
%

 
9
4
%

 
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

: 
 

A
t 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 
A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 6

5
,5

3
4
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
7
2
,0

0
0
. 

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 1

2
,3

7
5
 l
e
s
s
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 t

h
a
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
. 
In

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
, 
9
4
%

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t

im
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 9

3
%

 a
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
; 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 o

u
r 

9
6
%

 t
a
rg

e
t.

  
 A
t 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 
3
.5

%
 o

f 
v
o
id

s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 o

ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
1
0
%

. 
O

f 
th

e
 6

6
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 
1
6
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

e
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
le

t 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

o
f 
o
n
 g

o
in

g
 m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

s
, 
2
0
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 f
o
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 u
s
e
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

3
0
 a

re
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
le

t.
 T

h
e
 o

ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
if
fe

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r,

 w
h
e
n
 6

4
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

e
re

 o
ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
v
o
id

s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 3

4
0
 t

o
 5

0
2
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

s
a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 
 

 D
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
, 
2
4
6
 (

2
5
.4

%
) 

o
ff

e
rs

 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

e
re

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 b

a
s
e
d
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
; 

th
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 4

0
9
 r

e
fu

s
a
ls

 (
2
8
%

) 
in

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
. 
In

 
te

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 1

7
4
6
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r,

 3
6
%

 w
e
re

 r
o
u
ti
n
e
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 n

o
ti
c
e
 g

iv
e
n
, 

3
0
%

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
, 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 2
1
%

 d
e
c
e
a
s
e
d
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 1

3
%

 
a
b
a
n
d
o
n
m

e
n
t/

 e
v
ic

ti
o
n
/ 

o
th

e
r.

  
 

0
2
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 54



1
5
 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
p
a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 S

o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

C
h
a
rt

e
r.

 A
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 4

th
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 9

0
.3

%
. 
T
h
is

 i
s
 m

a
rg

in
a
ll
y
 d

o
w

n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 9

3
.3

%
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 3

rd
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

b
u
t 

s
ti
ll
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 
8
0
%

. 
A
t 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 
9
9
9
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

a
 6

 m
o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
: 

9
2
0
 w

e
re

 e
it
h
e
r 

v
e
ry

 o
r 

fa
ir
ly

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
3
5
 w

e
re

 n
e
it
h
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 n

o
r 

d
is

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
, 
1
8
 w

e
re

 d
is

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 3

6
 w

e
re

 v
e
ry

 d
is

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
. 
 

 

 
 P

r
o

p
e
r
ty

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
 

1
0
0
%

 
9
8
.2

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

h
e
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

h
e
c
k
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
in

 1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

h
e
c
k
 

1
0
0
%

 
6
7
%

 
 

 
 1

5
v
i)

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 b

e
in

g
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

u
p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 Q

u
a
li
ty

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 b
y
 

c
ri
te

ri
a
. 

T
o
ta

l 
d
w

e
ll
in

g
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 S

H
Q

S
 -

 P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
  

8
1
.1

%
 

8
9
.1

2
%

 
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 m

o
n
th

 o
n
 m

o
n
th

. 
 

 A
t 

2
8
th

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 (

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
),

 9
8
.2

%
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
. 

O
f 

th
e
s
e
, 
o
n
ly

 6
7
%

 w
e
re

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
in

 1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
n
e
w

e
d
. 
In

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

, 
o
f 
th

e
 1

7
,0

9
2
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
 g

a
s
 a

p
p
li
a
n
c
e
s
, 
1
1
,4

4
8
 h

a
d
, 
w

h
il
e
 5

,6
4
4
 d

id
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
p
re

v
io

u
s
. 
 

 W
o
rk

 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

: 
T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 m

o
n
th

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 G

a
s
 S

e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

o
th

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

 G
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

n
 a

 f
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 G

a
s
 &

 C
y
c
li
c
a
l 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
G

a
s
c
a
ll
. 

W
h
il
s
t 

th
e
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 a

re
a
 t

h
e
 m

il
d
e
r 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

h
a
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 c
o
m

m
it
 m

o
re

 o
f 
h
is

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 
T
h
is

 a
d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

it
s
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 o

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o
 o

f 
m

o
n
th

s
. 

0
7
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 D

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

n
e
w

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

s
 2

0
1

3
/
1

4
 =

 2
6

6
 

C
o
v
e
 –

 1
6
 –

 m
id

 m
a
rk

e
t 

re
n
t 

–
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 T

ru
s
t 

(N
H

T
) 

 
F
a
rb

u
rn

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 =

 5
8
 –

 s
h
a
re

d
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 –
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 H

A
  

D
o
n
s
id

e
 =

 1
2
3
  

4
8
 –

 L
IF

T
 –

 T
e
n
a
n
ts

 F
ir
s
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
- 

o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
, 
 

4
0
 –

 r
e
n
t 

 -
 T

e
n
a
n
ts

 F
ir
s
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
- 

o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
  

3
5
 –

 r
e
n
t 

–
 L

a
n
g
s
ta

n
e
 H

A
  

E
d
a
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 =

 6
 -

 r
e
n
t 

- 
M

a
rg

a
re

t 
B
la

c
k
w

o
o
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
  

0
1
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 55



1
6
 

C
o
v
e
 =

 9
 –

 m
id

 m
a
rk

e
t 

re
n
t 

- 
N

H
T
  

D
o
n
s
id

e
 =

 2
0
 r

e
n
t 

–
 T

e
n
a
n
ts

 F
ir
s
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
  

S
to

c
k
e
th

il
l 
C
h
u
rc

h
 =

 3
2
 =

 1
8
 r

e
n
t 

&
 1

4
 M

M
R
 –

 L
a
n
g
s
ta

n
e
 H

A
  

C
h
a
rl
e
s
to

n
, 
C
o
v
e
 =

 2
 L

C
H

O
 -

 S
c
o
ti
a
  

  E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
1

4
/

1
5

 =
 1

8
1
 

  

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
e
n

e
 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 D
o
g
 F

o
u
li
n
g
  

9
.5

%
 

2
.9

%
 

 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 L
E
A
M

S
 (

L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
A
u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
).

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
th

a
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

tr
e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
. 
 

7
2
 

7
7
 

 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 G
ra

ff
it
i 
(p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 g
ra

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

ra
ff
it
i 
p
re

s
e
n
t)

  
5
.5

%
 

0
%

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 F
ly

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 (

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 g
ra

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 f

ly
 p

o
s
ti
n
g
 p

re
s
e
n
t)

  
1
%

 
0
%

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 F
ly

ti
p
p
in

g
 (

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 g
ra

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 f

ly
 t

ip
p
in

g
 p

re
s
e
n
t)

. 
 

1
%

 
0
%

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 O
v
e
rf

lo
w

in
g
 L

it
te

r 
B
in

s
 (

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 g
ra

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
rf

lo
w

in
g
 b

in
s
 p

re
s
e
n
t)

. 
 

1
%

 
0
%

 
 

 
 G

ro
u
n
d
s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 -

 L
A
M

S
 (

L
a
n
d
 A

u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
) 

- 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

h
e
 c

le
a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
g
re

e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
. 
 

7
2
 

7
6
 

 

 
 G

ro
u
n
d
s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 -

 G
ra

ff
it
i 
(p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 g

ra
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

is
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

ra
ff
it
i 
p
re

s
e
n
t)

. 
 

5
.5

%
 

0
%

 
 

 
 G

ro
u
n
d
s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 -

 D
o
g
 F

o
u
li
n
g
 (

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 g

ra
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

is
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 d

o
g
 f
o
u
li
n
g
 p

re
s
e
n
t)

. 
 

9
.5

%
 

0
%

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 V
a
n
d
a
li
s
m

 (
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 g
ra

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 v

a
n
d
a
li
s
m

 p
re

s
e
n
t)

. 
 

1
%

 
0
%

 
 

 
 G

ra
ff
it
i 
R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
- 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 1
 (

4
8
 H

o
u
rs

) 
- 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
O

ff
e
n
s
iv

e
 G

ra
ff

it
i 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

c
ti
o
n
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
4
8
 h

o
u
rs

. 
 

9
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 G

ra
ff
it
i 
R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
- 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 2
 (

2
0
 D

a
y
s
) 

- 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
N

o
n
 o

ff
e
n
s
iv

e
 G

ra
ff

it
i 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

c
ti
o
n
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
2
0
 

d
a
y
s
. 
 

9
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 W
e
e
d
 G

ro
w

th
 (

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 g
ra

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 w

e
e
d
 g

ro
w

th
).

  
3
5
%

 
1
.8

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

K
P
Is

 a
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 L

E
A
M

S
 (

L
o
c
a
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
) 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 r
a
n
d
o
m

 2
%

 s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
's

 
0
6
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 56



1
7
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

. 
T
h
is

 e
q
u
a
te

s
 t

o
 o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 6

5
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

ly
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 

T
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 r

a
n
d
o
m

ly
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 b

y
 K

e
e
p
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 B

e
a
u
ti
fu

l 
w

h
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 

L
E
A
M

S
 a

c
ro

s
s
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
. 

A
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 d
e
ta

il
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

is
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

b
y
 K

S
B
. 
 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

S
c
e
n
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 g

o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 P

Is
 w

it
h
 a

ll
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 b
e
in

g
 m

e
t.

  
O

v
e
ra

ll
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 r
e
m

a
in

 o
n
 t

ra
c
k
. 
 

O
n
 t

h
e
 w

h
o
le

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 v

e
ry

 w
e
ll
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 2

0
1
4
  

 

  

 

 
 W

a
s
te

 C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 D

is
p

o
s
a
l 

 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 Z

e
ro

 W
a
s
te

 P
ro

je
c
t 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

m
o
n
th

s
 o

n
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
t 

a
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

 R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a

n
d
 R

e
fu

s
e
 D

e
ri
v
e
d
 F

u
e
l 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 F

a
c
il
it
y
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 a

 n
e
w

 W
a
s
te

 C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
p
o
t 

a
t 

a
 s

it
e
 i
n
 A

lt
e
n
s
 E

a
s
t.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
, 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 b

y
 

A
M

E
C
, 

B
ro

d
ie

s
 a

n
d
 C

H
2
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 h

a
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
d
e
l 
s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

b
y
 o

u
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 S

IT
A
 U

K
 L

im
it
e
d
. 
It

 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

s
te

p
s
 t

o
 r

e
a
c
h
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 w

il
l 
b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
4
. 
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 c

o
ll
e
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
b
li
c
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

a
 j
o
in

t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 c

a
n
 

b
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 h

e
a
t 

a
n
d
 p

o
w

e
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 f
ro

m
 w

a
s
te

 (
E
fW

) 
fa

c
il
it
y
. 

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
il
l 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

2
0
1
4
. 
 

C
o
ll
e
a
g
u
e
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 W

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

L
D

P
);

 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

re
 t

o
 n

o
m

in
a
te

 a
 s

it
e
 o

r 
s
it
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

L
D

P
 f
o
r 

E
fW

. 
T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
il
l 
b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
a
 d

ra
ft

 P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 L

D
P
 t

h
e
 E

P
&

I 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
 

0
6
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 A

tt
a
in

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 w

a
s
te

 
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

N
e
w

 F
o
o
d
 W

a
s
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

o
ll
e
d
 o

u
t 

in
 m

u
lt
i-

o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 a

re
a
s
. 
P
h
a
s
e
 3

 (
m

a
in

ly
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
re

a
s
) 

is
 n

o
w

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
 f
o
r 

p
h
a
s
e
 4

 (
p
ri
v
a
te

 f
la

tt
e
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
).

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

to
 d

a
te

 i
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

n
d
, 
w

h
il
s
t 

m
o
d
e
s
t 

in
 t

o
n
n
a
g
e
 t

e
rm

s
, 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 Z

e
ro

 W
a
s
te

 S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 

b
e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 u

rb
a
n
 f
o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
. 
 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 r

o
u
te

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 b

y
 u

s
in

g
 F

le
e
tR

o
u
te

 S
o
ft

w
a
re

. 
T
h
is

 t
o
o
l 
w

il
l 
n
o
w

 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 w

h
e
n
 m

ix
e
d
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 

N
e
w

 w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
tt

e
rn

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

L
e
a
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
h
a
n
d
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

e
a
m

 w
o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
o
ry

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

T
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
e
w

 r
a
d
io

/G
P
S
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

h
a
t 

w
il
l 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
a
te

-s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
 

0
6
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

   

Page 57



1
8
 

 
 T

r
a
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
r
d

s
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 N

o
is

e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 -
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 T

im
e
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
 f
o
r 

(N
o
n
 P

a
rt

 V
 -

 A
v
e
ra

g
e
 D

o
g
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 E

P
A
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
) 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
v
e
ra

g
e
  

4
8
 h

o
u
rs

 
3
1
.6

 h
o
u
rs

 
 

 
 H

ig
h
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 P
e
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
- 

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
8
9
.2

%
 

 

 
 L

o
w

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 P
e
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
%

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 H

ig
h
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 P
u
b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt
h
 -

 %
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
8
7
.7

%
 

 

 
 L

o
w

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 P
u
b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt
h
 -

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
8
9
.5

%
 

 

 
 D

o
g
 F

o
u
li
n
g
 -

 %
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 w

it
h
in

 2
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 D

o
g
 F

o
u
li
n
g
 -

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 A

ll
 O

th
e
r 

D
o
g
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 -
 %

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 w

it
h
in

 5
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
 

9
8
.9

 
 

 
 A

ll
 O

th
e
r 

D
o
g
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 -
 %

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
 

9
7
.7

 
 

 
 F

o
o
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 H

y
g
ie

n
e
 I

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 %

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 6

 m
o
n
th

ly
  

1
0
0
%

 
9
6
.7

7
%

 
 

 
 F

o
o
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 H

y
g
ie

n
e
 I

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 %

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

ly
  

1
0
0
%

 
9
9
.4

4
%

 
 

 
 F

o
o
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 H

y
g
ie

n
e
 I

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 %

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

ly
  

1
0
0
%

 
8
9
.3

6
%

 
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 D

u
e
 t

o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
, 

th
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 w

o
rk

 p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 

ri
s
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
. 
In

 t
h
e
 c

a
s
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 n

o
is

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 m
o
s
t 

h
i 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 w

it
h
in

 2
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
 u

n
le

s
s
 a

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
/o

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

f 
a
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 N
o
ti
c
e
. 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
's

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
T
e
a
m

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 v

e
ry

 s
h
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 t

o
 s

h
o
w

 w
it
h
 2

 h
ig

h
e
r 

ri
s
k
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 f
o
r 

fo
o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e
 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e
ir
 d

u
e
 d

a
te

. 
D

u
e
 t

o
 s

h
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
in

g
, 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 f
o
o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
v
e
ry

 l
o
w

 r
is

k
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 (

c
a
te

g
o
ry

 "
D

")
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ri
ly

 s
u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 w

il
l 
b
e
 v

is
it
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
 

E
ff

o
rt

s
 t

o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
e
w

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

m
o
n
th

s
. 
 

P
e
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d
 d

o
g
 w

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

re
 t

e
a
m

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 f
u
ll
y
 s

ta
ff
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 t
o
 a

 v
e
ry

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l.
 O

n
ly

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 c

a
s
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 p

e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 

e
ra

d
ic

a
te

 o
r 

d
o
g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
/o

r 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t

a
k
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

 

0
6
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

   

Page 58



1
9
 

 
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

 
  

 
2

0
1

3
/
1

4
 

2
0

1
2

/
1

3
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 S

e
ri
o
u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 (

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l)
  

3
1
2
 

3
0
5
 

 

 
 A

s
s
a
u
lt
 w

it
h
 l
e
s
s
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry
 (

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l)
  

1
0
8
2
 

1
3
9
9
 

 

 
 W

il
fu

l 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 (

w
h
e
e
li
e
 b

in
/ 

g
ra

s
s
/ 

re
fu

s
e
) 

(c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l)
  

2
3
8
 

2
6
3
 

 

 
 A

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

(c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l)
  

1
2
,9

8
8
 

1
4
,4

9
8
 

 

 
 %

 o
f 
c
a
ll
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 o
n
e
 h

o
u
r 

in
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

 
9
5
%

 
9
4
.7

%
 

 

 
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 A

n
ti
 S

o
c
ia

l 
B
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

  
8
0
%

 
5
7
.1

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
n
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 

  S
e
v
e
n
 m

o
re

 v
io

le
n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 t
re

n
d
 i
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 w

it
h
 a

 2
6
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
a
s
t 

fi
v
e
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 

  P
ro

g
re

s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
a
s
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 P

u
rp

le
 F

la
g
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 

e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

ig
h
t-

ti
m

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
A
s
s
a
u
lt
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 2

3
%

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
  C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
ir
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

ls
o
 s

h
o
w

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

re
n
d
s
 w

it
h
 a

 9
.5

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w

il
fu

l 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
. 
A
c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
h
o
u
s
e
 f

ir
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 6

%
 a

n
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

ra
l 
w

il
fu

l 
fi
re

s
 b

y
 2

9
%

. 
 

  S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 1

,5
1
0
 f
e
w

e
r 

(1
0
%

) 
d
is

o
rd

e
r 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 .
  

  N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 A

S
B
IT

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 1

5
%

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 9
5
%

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
t 

c
a
ll
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

re
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 w

it
h
in

 o
n
e
 h

o
u
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

S
B
IT

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 l
o
w

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 8

0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t.

  
  T
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
ts

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

2
0
1
4
 –

 1
7
. 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
 a

re
: 

 
  *
 A

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 
*
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

w
o
m

e
n
  

*
 V

io
le

n
c
e
  

*
 R

o
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
  

*
 F

ir
e
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
 s

a
fe

ty
  

 E
a
c
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

  

0
8
-M

a
y
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 59



2
0
 

 M
a
rc

h
 s

a
w

 2
2
6
 c

a
ll
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

S
B
IT

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 1

5
9
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 

O
f 
th

e
 1

5
9
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
, 

1
5
5
 w

e
re

 a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 o
n
e
 h

o
u
r 

(9
7
.5

%
).

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 o
n
 t

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 9

4
.7

%
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 h

o
u
r 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 j
u
s
t 

s
h
y
 o

f 
o
u
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
9
5
%

. 
 

 4
th

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

S
B
IT

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

h
o
w

 a
 5

7
.1

%
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
 

A
ft

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 g

a
th

e
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
, 

it
 w

a
s
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 r

e
v
a
m

p
 o

f 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
In

s
te

a
d
 o

f 
g
o
in

g
 

d
o
w

n
 t

h
e
 r

o
u
te

 o
f 
p
a
p
e
r 

b
a
s
e
d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l 
B
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
a
m

 w
e
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t

o
 p

il
o
t 

a
 n

e
w

 s
u
rv

e
y
 u

s
in

g
 a

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 

T
h
e
 w

e
e
k
 l
o
n
g
 p

il
o
t 

w
a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 u

s
 w

it
h
 a

 f
a
r 

b
ig

g
e
r 

s
a
m

p
le

 t
h
a
n
 w

e
 w

e
re

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 g
e
tt

in
g
 (

1
7
 c

o
n
ta

c
ts

 f
ro

m
 3

3
 c

a
ll
s
 m

a
d
e
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 p

il
o
t 

a
id

e
d
 u

s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
, 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
, 

to
 g

o
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
e
 r

o
u
te

 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 w

e
e
k
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 
b
ig

g
e
r 

s
a
m

p
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
u
s
 a

 m
o
re

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

n
a
b
le

s
 u

s
 t

o
 c

a
p
tu

re
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r’
s
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
s
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
tl
y
 h

e
lp

s
 u

s
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
a
n
y
 d

is
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 m

a
y
 a

d
d
re

s
s
. 
It

 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

d
is

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

S
B
IT

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

d
o
n
e
 e

v
e
ry

th
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 p
o
w

e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 t

h
e
 m

a
tt

e
r.

 
   

Page 60



2013/14  Housing Capital Programme 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:  Housing and Environment   
 
DATE:   20 May 2014 
 
DIRECTOR   Pete Leonard & Angela Scott 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  2013/14 Housing Capital Programme 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/042 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
The purpose of this report is to provide elected members with a status report for 
the 2013/14 Housing Capital Programme as at 28 February 2014 summarising 
both income and expenditure.     
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
It is recommended that the Committee:- 
 
a) Notes the financial information contained within this report; and   
 
b) Instructs that the Head of Finance continues to update the Committee in 
consultation with the Director for Housing and Environment on the actual outturn 
position for 2013/14 following completion of the year end statutory accounts. 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
The monies required to fund the housing capital programme can be achieved 
through external borrowing, capital receipts, capital grants and a revenue 
contribution. There are adequate resources available to finance the projected 
capital spend in 2013/14, as required by the Prudential Code. 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
Failure to adequately maintain and improve the Council’s housing stock may lead 
to the Council breaching health and safety regulations, poorer housing conditions 
in Aberdeen and result in lower demand. 
 

 The Council’s Scottish Housing Quality Standard (SHQS) Standard Delivery Plan 
was approved by the former Communities Scotland in August 2006.  This 
outlines the Council’s strategy for meeting SHQS by 2015.  If the Council cannot 
achieve the targets set within the Delivery Plan, within reasonable rent increases, 
then the Scottish Housing Regulator could intervene. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 61



2013/14  Housing Capital Programme 

5.       BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

BACKGROUND 
5.1 The Council is required to manage its capital programme within the 

regulations set out in Part 7 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 
2003. This allows Councils to set their own borrowing limits, provided that 
they comply with the Prudential Code. 

 
5.2 The Prudential Code requires Councils to set a capital programme that is 

affordable, prudent and sustainable. The main test of affordability is 
whether the capital financing costs can be contained within revenue 
budgets.  

 
5.3 Council on the 19 December 2012 approved a funded Housing Capital 

Programme for 2013/14 of £41.5M.   
 

POSITION TO DATE 
5.4   The summary financial statement at Appendix 1 outlines the original budget 

for the current year and expenditure and income as at 28 February 2014. 
 
5.5 Appendix 2 details the range of projects expected to be undertaken within 

the overall budget and spend to date.  
 

5.6 It is currently forecast that there will be an under spend of £4.2M  from the 
funded budget of £41.5M, previously an under spend of £5.5M had been 
reported the movement is as a result of additional spend on Window 
replacements and Energy Efficiency measures within the Multi Storey 
blocks. The underspend remains within the following projects Multi Storey 
structural repairs (item 2.1), Structural repairs (item 2.1.2) and 
Modernisation Programme (item 4.1).   
 
EXPENDITURE 

5.7 As at 28 February 2014 £28.9M of the approved budget has been spent to 
date.  

   
SUMMARY 

5.8    It is currently forecast, based on figures to date, that the Housing Capital 
programme outturn will be managed within the framework as set out in the 
Prudential Code. 

 
6.       IMPACT 
6.1       The report relates to the Single Outcome Agreement and the Council vision 

of Aberdeen – the Smarter City, in particular the strategic priority ‘Smarter 
living (Quality of Life)’ where we will provide quality services to our council 
tenants to enable them to have a dry, warm home in a safe and enjoyable 
environment..  

 

6.2      Public – this report will be of interest to the public as it demonstrates financial 
performance. 
 
 

Page 62



2013/14  Housing Capital Programme 

 
7.     MANAGEMENT OF RISK 

There are many factors that can lead to project delays such as consultation 
with tenants, decanting of tenants and access to properties.  Such delays 
would result in the opportunity to advance other projects. There is a need 
for the capital programme slippage to be kept to a minimum to allow the 
Council to achieve the SHQS by 2015.   

 
8.     BACKGROUND PAPERS 

19 December 2012 Draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Housing 
Capital Budget 2013/14 to 2015/16 

 
9..     REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

Helen Sherrit,  
Finance Partner, 
hsherrit@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(34)6353 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



2013/14  Housing Capital Programme 

APPENDIX 1 
2013/14          

          
 Approved    Actual at  Estimated  
 Budget   28/02/14   Out-turn   
 £’000   £'000   £’000  Notes  
          

Expenditure 46,930   28,918   37,331  1 
Slippage (5,397)        2 

Total Expenditure 41,533   28,918   37,331   

          
Funded by:          
Borrowing 17,917   11,955   12,232  3 
CFCR 
Grant Income 

22,116 
1,500 

  
 

15,463 
  1,500 

  23,084 
  2,015 

 4 

Total Income 41,533   28,918   37,331   

          
 

(Note 1) Expenditure 
As at 28 February 2014 the Council has paid £28.9M of the budgeted £41.5M.   
 
(Note 2) Slippage 
The total available budgeted programme for capital expenditure of £46.9M is set 
to allow for slippage. (contract price variations, projects starting later than 
anticipated, projects being amended etc) 

 
(Note 3) Borrowing 
This is the level of borrowing the Council has approved to undertake in 2013/14.   

 
(Note 4) Capital From Current Revenue (CFCR) 
At present it is anticipated that £23M for the revenue contribution to capital will be 
made.  
 
The overall level of the revenue contribution will be subject to variation 
dependent on the final position of the Housing Revenue Account and the Capital 
programme.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



2013/14  Housing Capital Programme 

 
Appendix 2 

Housing Capital 2013/14 Original Actual    

  Approved As at 28    

 Project Programme Feb  

  £'000 £'000  

 SCOTTISH HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS    
     

1 Compliant with the tolerable standard    
1.1 Major Repairs 1,306 392  

 Roofs Renewal/Gutters/RWP/Roughcast    

 Undertaking large scale repairs to Roofs/Gutters/RWP/Roughcast    

  1,306 392  

     

2 Free from Serious Disrepair    

     

2.1 Primary Building Elements 5,813 3,414        

 Structural Repairs Multi Storey    

 Multi Storey blocks are surveyed on a 5-7 year cycle to identify any works required to the     

 Structure of the buildings in order to keep the buildings safe and prolong their life.    

 Structural Repairs General Housing 696 25  

 Structural works carried out in order to keep the building stable and structurally sound   

     

 Secondary Building Elements    

2.2 Upgrading Of Flat Roofs General 50 1  

 Replacement of existing roof covering and upgrading of insulation to meet current building   

 Regulations.    

2.3 Upgrade Flat Roofs Multi Storey 1,049 664  

 Full replacement of the flat roofs and also checking the replacement of roof ventilation as required   

2.5 Mono Pitched Types 
Replacement of the external render of the building, replacement of gutters and downpipes 
and environmental works 

611 407  

2.6 Window Replace General 1,297 1,499  

 A rolling programme of double glazing where previously single glazing, or replacing   

 Double glazing to meet current standards.  This is based on a cyclical programme.    

2.7 Window Replace Multi Storey 0 0  

 A rolling programme to replace existing double glazing to meet current standards.  This is   

 on a cyclical programme.    

2.8 Balcony Storm Doors 60 0  

 Replacement of existing doors with more secure, solid doors    

2.9 Balcony Glass Renewal - Multi Storey 1,948 1,842  

 Replacement of existing balcony glazing on a cyclical basis    

  11,524 7,851  

     

3 Energy Efficient    

     

 Effective insulation    

3.1 General Houses Loft Insulation 50 7  

 Installation of loft insulation where there is none previously or the topping up of existing   

 Insulation to comply with current building regulations.    

 Efficient Heating    

3.3 Heating Systems Replacement 5,892 4,133  

 Replacement of boiler/whole system as deemed necessary.    

3.4 Medical Need Heating 50 17  

 Installation of gas/electric heating depending on the medical assessment.    

 This can be installing a completely new system, modifying or extending an existing system.   

3.5 Energy Efficiency Multi Blocks 1,975 2,455  

 Contribution to Aberdeen Heat & Power for the creation of Combined Heat & Power Plants   

3.6 Energy Efficiency Sheltered 304 122  

 Introduction of energy efficiency measures in sheltered housing such as new or upgraded 
Systems.  

  

  
 
 

  
 
 
 

 

     

Page 65



2013/14  Housing Capital Programme 

  Original Actual  

  Approved As at 28  

 Project Programme Feb  

  £’000 £’000  

 Additional Energy Efficiency measures    

3.7 S.C.A.R.F 35 0  

 Payment to SCARF for work carried out by them under the Energy Efficiency programme to    

 Individual council properties.  The work carried out includes the installation of loft insulation,    

 Draught proofing and compact fluorescent bulbs.  Also, providing tenants with energy efficiency   

 Advice and information.    

3.8 Solid Wall Insulation 250 2  

 Installation of solid wall insulation where there was none previously.    

3.9 Vestibule Doors 0 0  

 Installation of new doors where there were none before.    

  8,556 6,737  

     

4 Modern Facilities & Services    

     

 Bathroom and Kitchen Condition     

4.1 Modernisation Programme 14,462 8,106  

 Replacement of bathrooms and kitchens.    

  14,462 8,106  

5 Healthy, Safe & Secure    

     

 Healthy    

5.1 Condensation Measures 52 26  

 Installation of heating systems and ventilation measures to combat condensation.    

 Safe    

5.3 Rewiring  1,229 963  

 Replacement of cabling, fittings and distribution boards as necessary. This work is carried    

 out in every property on a cyclical basis    

5.4 Lift Replacement Multi Storey/Major Blocks 1,079 628  

 Replacement of lifts where they are beyond economical repair. This can be full replacement    

 
5.5 

replacement of specific parts of the lift. 
Smoke Detectors  

161 64  

5.6 Services 50 0  

 Cyclical maintenance/replacement of the following services    

 Ventilation Systems, Water Tanks/Pipework, Refuse Chutes/Chamber    

 Dry Riser Systems, Standby Generators    

5.7 Entrance Halls/Concierge 50 0  

 Provision of security service      

5.8 Laundry Facilities 265 193  

 Replacement of laundry equipment    

5.9 Upgrading of Lighting 96 87  

 Installation of lighting controlled by photo cell i.e. switches on and off automatically depending   

 on the level of natural light.    

 Installation of lighting in areas where there was none before.    

 Secure    

5.11 Door Entry Systems 40 0  

  Installation of door entry and replacement of existing doors where required    

5.12 Replace Door Entry Systems - Major Blocks 20 0  

  Installation of door entry and replacement of existing doors where required    

5.13 Other Initiatives 776 468  

 Upgrading of stairs and installation of security doors and door entry systems    

5.14 Crime Prevention /Safety Measures    

  3,817 2,429  

     

     
 

     

     

     

     

  
 
 

   

  
 

   

Page 66



2013/14  Housing Capital Programme 

 

  Original Actual  

  Approved As at 28  

  Programme Feb  

  £’000 £’000  

 Project    

     

 NON SCOTTISH HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS    

     

6 Community Plan & Single Outcome Agreement    

     

6.1 Housing For Varying Needs 766 454  

 New build including extra care housing.    

6.2 S.U.R.E. 307 89  

 Refurbishment of properties or environmental improvements in designated areas.    

6.4 Regeneration/Affordable Housing 0 0  

 Early Action projects linked to Regeneration and Master planning Briefs for Regeneration    

 & provision of consultation events.    

6.5 Acquisition of Land/Houses 300 20  

 Acquisition of land for new build programme     

6.6 CCTV – Concierge 155 55  

 Provision of CCTV for the new Concierge service    

6.7 Adaptations Disabled 1,379     882  

 Installation of level access showers, ramps, stair lifts and kitchen adaptations    

6.8 Special Initiatives/Barrier Free Housing 650 3  

 Provision of specialist facilities or housing for tenants with particular needs i.e. extensions   

6.9 Housing For Varying Needs- Amenity/Adaptations 200 122  

 Conversion of properties to Amenity Level standard    

6.10 Housing For Varying Needs- Extra Care/Adaptations 159 115  

 Adaptations required to ensure existing sheltered housing stock meets current standards   

6.11/ 
6.12 

Roads/Paths 100 0  

 Upgrade of Roads to an adoptable standard and the Formation or upgrading of paths 100 40  

6.13 Garages    

 Upgrade of Garages 0 -5  

6.14 New Affordable Housing 1,137 838  

  5,252 2,614  

     

7 Service Development    

     

7.1 Conditions Surveys 50 0  

 Surveying of Council houses to identify failures against Scottish Housing Quality Standard   

7.2 Property Database 100 6  

 Various items of IT equipment including hardware and software    

7.3 Integrated Housing System 100 161  

 Various purchase of PC's and software packages    

  250 167  

     

     

8 Service Expenditure    

 Corporate Fees 1,763 621  

  1,763 621  

     

 Total Budget 46,930 28,918  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Page 1 of 3 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE:    Housing and Environment  
 
DATE:     20 May 2014 
 
DIRECTOR:    Pete Leonard & Angela Scott 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:   2013/14 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  H&E/14/043 

 

 
1.   PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to  

i) bring to Committee members notice the current year revenue 
budget performance to date for the Services which relate to this 
Committee; and      

ii) advise on any areas of risk and management action. 
 

2.   RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 

i) consider and note this report and the information on management 
action and risks that is contained herein; and 

ii) instruct that officers report the year end position to the appropriate 
committee. 

 
 
3.   FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
  
 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
3.1. The HRA which has gross expenditure budget of £80M is ring-fenced and 

is funded mainly from housing rents.  
 
3.2. The forecast position on the HRA, as outlined, indicates that there will be 

a working balance of £5.5M after taking account of the 2013/14 outturn 
and other agreed commitments.  This is in excess of the recommended 
minimum level of £5.2M.  
General Fund  

3.3. The total Housing and Environment budget amounts to £36.7M net 
expenditure, excluding the HRA budget. 

 
3.4. The forecast position indicates an under spend of £2.4M. 
 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 69



 
Page 2 of 3 

3.5. Further details of the financial implications are set out in section 5 and 
appendix A attached.  

 
 
 4.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.  BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1    The Service revenue monitoring reports and associated notes are attached 

at Appendix A 
 

Financial Position and Risks Assessment 
 
Housing Revenue Account 
The projected net saving for the year is forecast at £23M. It is anticipated 
this will be used to provide a CFCR contribution to fund the capital 
programme and increase the working balance.  The principal movements 
within this total relate to an increase in income and  voids, a reduction in 
management & admin & capital financing. The impact of Welfare Reform 
on the HRA is being closely monitoring, there was also a provision made 
in the 2012/13 accounts to mitigate some of the potential impacts. 
 
General Fund 
In overall terms the position forecasts an under spend of £2.4M on the 
total Housing and Environment Budget (excluding the HRA).   
 

5.2 The areas contributing to this movement are as follows   
     £’000 
Directorate Admin Support (30) 
Community Safety 
Emergency Planning 

(20) 
(10) 

Homeless 
Trading Standards & Env Protection 

(1,020) 
(400) 

Grounds Maintenance (90) 
Recycling & Waste Disposal 
ASSL 
Housing Repairs 
Architectural Design 
Private Sector Housing 

(530) 
(60) 
(20) 
150 

(200) 

 (2,400) 

  

  

• Homeless is forecast to be £1.02M lower than budget.  This is due mainly to 
a reduction in the use of bed & breakfast as a result of private sector leased 
flats now being used, changes in contracts to outside agencies,  reduction in 
forecasts for admin & management charges and lower than anticipated 

Page 70



 
Page 3 of 3 

spend on furniture services and tenancy set up fund. The forecast is based 
on current activity. 

• Environmental Health & Trading Standards are forecast to be £400K below 
budget due to under spends within staffing.  

• Supporting People are forecast to be £170K below budget due to staff 
vacancies and reduced forecasts for courses, office supplies and software 
support as a result of historical budgets. 

• Private Sector Housing is forecast to be £200K under budget due to the 
anticipated reductions in administration costs. 

• Recycling & Waste Disposal is forecast to be £530K under budget.  This is 
due to an under spend on staff costs, however this has partly been offset by 
a reduction in Commercial Waste income,  the higher costs of Landfill tax 
based on tonnages to date & Food Waste Programme. 

• Construction Consultancy is showing an under recovery of £110K due to 
updated estimates of Housing Capital fee income and Consultants fee 
payable.  

 
6. IMPACT 
 

As a recognised top priority the Council must take the necessary 
measures to balance its budget. Therefore Committees and Services are 
required to work within a financial constraint. Every effort is being focused 
on delivering services more efficiently and effectively. 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
To ensure the anticipated forecast outturn is maintained the service has been -   
 

•       Managing controllable costs for example staff vacancies and overtime 

•       Maximising the potential income streams of the service. 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 Financial ledger data extracted for the period. 
 
9.   REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Helen Sherrit 
Finance Partner   
hsherrit@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 346353 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2013/14

DIRECTORATE : Housing and Environment

As at 28 February 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

6,669 6,113 3,828 (2,285) 5,245 (1,424) (21)% 108

(1,893) (1,735) (1,752) (17) (1,759) 134 (7)% 161

30,795 28,229 26,779 (1,450) 29,712 (1,083) (4)% 457

1,081 991 864 (127) 1,048 (33) -3% (21)

36,652 33,598 29,719 (3,879) 34,246 (2,406) (7) 705

(23,034) (33,444) (34,404) (960) (23,079) (45) 0% 5

FORECAST TO YEAR END

HEAD OF HOUSING AND

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11

YEAR TO DATE

COMMUNITY SAFETY

HEAD OF REGENERATION AND

TOTAL BUDGET

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT MANAGER

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

HOUSING INVESTMENT

HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT SERVICES

Page 73



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2013 / 2014: HEAD OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY SAFETY

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 28 February 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

4,486 4,112 3,707 (405) 4,095 (391) -9% (133)

2,542 2,330 2,459 129 2,742 200 8% (1)

1,226 1,124 1,019 (105) 1,600 374 31% 177

67 61 42 (19) 55 (12) -18% (2)

1,266 1,161 623 (538) 742 (524) -41% (38)

6,870 6,298 4,893 (1,405) 5,619 (1,251) -18% (197)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

16,457 15,086 12,743 (2,343) 14,853 (1,604) -10% (194)

(9,788) (8,972) (8,915) 57 (9,608) 180 -2% 302

(9,788) (8,972) (8,915) 57 (9,608) 180 -2% 302

6,669 6,113 3,828 (2,285) 5,245 (1,424) -21% 108

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

None

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Overall Note

Employee Costs (391) (133)

Property Costs 200 (1)

Administration Costs 374 177

Transport Costs (12) (2)

Supplies and Services (524) (38)

Transfer Payments (1,251) (197)

Capital Financing Costs 0 0

Income 180 302

(1,424) 108

The underspend relates mainly to an anticipated lower spend on furniture purchases & Bed & Breakfast in Homelessness.

The forecast over spend relates to increased income from Homeless Flats of £101K, Private Sector Leasing of £258K,

Factoring of £294K which is netted off by a reduction in Bed & Breakfast income of £425K & Improvement Grants of £480K

The over spend mainly relates to factoring, an outturn of £200K has been included however this will be balanced by income

received.

The over spend principally relates to bad debt forecasts within Homeless for the flats, B&B, private sector leasing & the

hostels.

This budget is for travelling expenses and outturns have been reviewed based on spend to date.

Capital Financing Costs have now been removed from the budgets and will be treated corporately.

Principally the anticipated underspend is from £720K in Homeless from the reduction in the usage of bed and breakfast and

furniture and the £420K in the improvement grants.

CAPITAL FINANCING

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

NET EXPENDITURE

INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

GROSS EXPENDITURE

LESS:

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

PROPERTY COSTS

YEAR TO DATE

STAFF COSTS

The anticipated outturn is based on the current level of staffing and the main under spend is within Homeless.

FORECAST TO YEAR END

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

Page 74



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2013 / 2014 :HEAD OF REGENERATION & HOUSING INVESTMENT

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 28 February 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

3,197 2,931 2,520 (411) 2,745 (452) -14% 48

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

56 51 29 (22) 20 (36) -64% (33)

92 84 46 (38) 44 (48) -52% (9)

489 448 568 120 610 121 25% (36)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

3,834 3,515 3,163 (352) 3,419 (415) -11% (30)

(5,727) (5,250) (4,915) 335 (5,178) 549 -10% 191

(5,727) (5,250) (4,915) 335 (5,178) 549 -10% 191

(1,893) (1,735) (1,752) (17) (1,759) 134 -7% 161

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

None

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Employee Costs (452) 48

Administration Costs (36) (33)

Transport Costs (48) (9)

Supplies and Services 121 (36)

Capital Financing Costs 0 0

Income 549 191

134 161

STAFF COSTS

YEAR TO DATE FORECAST TO YEAR END

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11

PREMISES COSTS

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

NET EXPENDITURE

GROSS EXPENDITURE

LESS

INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

Capital Financing Costs have now been removed from the budgets and will be treated corporately.

The budgeted fee income from Housing capital in Construction Consultancy is forecast to be below budget

based on current activity.

The anticipated outturn is based on the current level of staffing and the underspend is £360K for Construction

Consultancy & £85K from Housing Repairs.

The outturn is based on actual to date and previous years spend.

This budget is for travelling expenses and outturns have been reviewed based on spend to date.

The overspend of £120K is principally as a result of a increase in projected expenditure on Consultants Fees

due to the nature of the activities in Construction Consultancy and the Victoria House new build.

Page 75



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2013 / 2014 : HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT SERVICES

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 28 February 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

18,503 16,961 15,753 (1,208) 17,241 (1,262) -7% 157

807 740 783 43 935 128 16% 37

413 379 239 (140) 383 (30) -7% (21)

1,986 1,821 1,915 95 2,081 95 5% 222

9,983 9,151 9,363 212 10,585 602 6% (309)

8,226 7,541 7,679 139 8,196 (30) 0% (30)

0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

39,918 36,592 35,732 (860) 39,421 (497) -1% 56

(9,123) (8,363) (8,953) (590) (9,709) (586) 6% 401

(9,123) (8,363) (8,953) (590) (9,709) (586) 6% 401

30,795 28,229 26,779 (1,450) 29,712 (1,083) -4% 457

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

None

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Employee Costs (1,262) 157

Property Costs 128 37

Administration Costs (30) (21)

Transport Costs 95 222

Supplies and Services 602 (309)

Capital Financing Costs 0 0

Income (586) 401

(1,083) 457

FORECAST TO YEAR END

CAPITAL FINANCING

PROPERTY COSTS

YEAR TO DATE

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11

STAFF COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

TOTAL INCOME

NET EXPENDITURE

GROSS EXPENDITURE

LESS: INCOME

INCOME

Staff costs are to date below budget, an underspend of £1.2M is being anticipated this is split over a very

wide variety of services including Grounds Maintenance & Waste.

The main reason for the forecast over spend is £128K in the Winter Gardens due to increased fuel costs, this

has reduced from the last report due to a reduced requirement.

The main underspend is £20K for marketing within Education & Awareness with the difference from a wide

variety of services..

The forecast over spend relates to income £143K incorrectly budgeted within Street Sweeping this will be

corrected for 2014/15, a forecast reduction of £132K in Commercial Waste which is netted off with potential

increases in income from Tree Squad £55K, Grounds Maintenance £107K, Other Collection £508K,

Crematorium £117K & ASSL £29K.

This budget is for travelling expenses and outturns have been reviewed based on spend to date.

The predicted over spend relates to an increase in Waste of £715K, Tree Squad of £50K and £36K in

Commercial and reduced by an under spend within Contaminated land of £150K.

Capital Financing Costs have now been removed from the budgets and will be treated corporately.

Page 76



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2013 / 2014 : OPERATIONAL SUPPORT MANAGER

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 28 February 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditur

e

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

1,085 995 989 (6) 1,054 (31) -3% (21)

301 276 291 15 299 (2) -1% 0

72 66 79 13 72 0 0% 0

16 15 6 (9) 16 0 0% 0

348 319 30 (289) 264 (84) -24% (84)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

1,822 1,670 1,395 (275) 1,705 (117) -6% (105)

(741) (679) (531) 148 (657) 84 -11% 84

(741) (679) (531) 148 (657) 84 -11% 84

1,081 991 864 (127) 1,048 (33) -3% (21)

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

None

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Overall Note

(33) (21)

PROPERTY COSTS

GROSS EXPENDITURE

The changes between Supplies & Services & Income reflect the review of the recharges to other heads.

NET EXPENDITURE

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

INCOME

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

FORECAST TO YEAR END

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11

STAFF COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

LESS: INCOME

YEAR TO DATE

TOTAL INCOME

Page 77



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2013 / 2014 - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 28 February 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

30,212 27,694 26,754 (940) 30,298 86 0% 62

10,985 10,070 8,989 (1,081) 10,684 (301) -3% (204)

542 497 360 (137) 509 (33) -6% 0

2,034 1,865 2,383 519 2,649 615 30% 35

13,593 131 117 (14) 13,355 (238) -2% 0

57,366 40,256 38,603 (1,653) 57,495 129 0% (107)

(234) (215) 0 215 0 234 -100% 234

(148) (136) 0 136 (138) 10 -7% 0

(80,018) (73,350) (73,007) 343 (80,436) (418) 1% (122)

(80,400) (73,700) (73,007) 693 (80,574) (174) 0% 112

(23,034) (33,444) (34,404) (960) (23,079) (45) 0% 5

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Property Costs

86 62

Administration Costs

(301) (204)

Supplies and Services

(33) 0

Transfer Payments

615 35

Capital Financing Costs

(238) 0

Income

(174) 112

(45) 5

Capital Financing Costs are posted at the end of the financial year. It is forecast that capital financing costs are £230K

under budget these are the latest forecasts from Corporate Accounting based on capital expenditure for 2012/13 and

Outturn for 2013/14.

The forecasts for Dwelling House Rent Income and various other rents are based on current forecast level of income.

Principally as a result of properties moving from the capped rent when the property becomes void. The Government

Grant for the Hostel is now no longer accounted for within HRA as per Administration costs.

NET EXPENDITURE

TOTAL INCOME

The forecast over spend is principally made up of a number of services including Council Tax £80K, Rental for

Community lets £70K & Cleaning Sheltered Housing £50K which is offset by under spends in Security £70K & cleaning

of the Multi Storey Blocks £50K.

The projected variance is principally due to a decrease in management & admin of £790K which is a based on a

detailed analysis of current vacancies, potential central support charges and the removal of the Hostel grant. In addition

there is also a increase of £420K in former tenants arrears based on the outturn for 2012-13.

The Provision of meals outturn has been increased by £20K to reflect the actual costs for 2012/13 & there is a an under

spend anticipated of £40K on equipment purchases.

The main reason for the over spend is the loss of rent for Council Houses which is high as result of properties moving

from the capped rent and delays in gas checks and OT property reviews, this has improved as an OT has been

appointed.

OTHER INCOME

GROSS EXPENDITURE

LESS: INCOME

INTEREST

OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

TRANSFER PAYMENTS TOTAL

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

PROPERTY COSTS

YEAR TO DATE FORECAST TO YEAR END

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11

Page 78



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing & Environment 
 
DATE      20 May 2014 
 
DIRECTOR     Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Capital Monitoring – Housing & 

Environment Projects 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       EPI/14/123 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To advise the Committee of the capital spend in 2013/14 for the 
Housing & Environment projects included within the Non-Housing 
Capital Programme.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)   

  
 The Committee note the current position. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The monies required to fund these projects are achieved through 
external borrowing, capital receipts and grant income. These projects 
are all accommodated within the Non-Housing Capital Programme. Any 
underspend, carry forward or overspend will have implications for the 
programme. There are no issues at present that would result in such 
implications. As part of the Council’s five year business plan, capital 
expenditure is now monitored within a five year timescale where 
appropriate. This has given budget holders the ability to profile across 
the full five years. In year monitoring will continue, alongside monitoring 
the complete Capital Programme.  

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other implications at this time but as projects progress or 
indeed fail to progress then other implications may arise and will be 
reported at an appropriate Committee. 

 
5. BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES 

 
As reported at the Finance & Resources Committee in June 2012 the 
overall responsibility for the monitoring / management of the Capital 
Programme lies with the Head of Asset Management & Operations. 
The Planning & Monitoring Officer within Asset Management & 

Agenda Item 5.3

Page 79



Operations is in regular contact with the Service Representative and 
the Capital Accountant, reporting in the first instance to the Corporate 
Asset Group. This ensures that the spend figures are always up to date 
and accurate. 
 
Housing & Environment had a total of 4 projects, totaling £14.742 
million allocated to it from the 2013/14 Non-Housing Capital 
Programme. The projects and total budget committed to each project 
included in the programme were:- 
 

1) Duthie Park & Winter Gardens – Cost Net of HLF 
£158,000 

 
2) Private Sector Housing Grant 

£1.094 million 
 

3) Victoria House 
£2.452 million 

 
4) Waste: Implement Waste Strategy 

£11.038 million 
 

Spend for all projects in 2013/14 totaled £3.835 million. Spend profiles 
provided by budget holders show it is anticipated that underspend this 
financial year will be picked up in the following financial year(s).  

 
Appendix A shows the total expenditure for 2013/14. 
 
The Duthie Park & Winter Gardens – Cost Net of HLF project is now 
completed. The Private Sector is a rolling programme and has no 
requirement for a carry forward into 2014/15. 
 
Carry forwards for Victoria House (£554,000) and the Waste Strategy 
(£520,000) were approved at Corporate Asset Group on 30 April. 
Construction at Victoria House will be completed this financial year, 
while the Waste project is anticipated to continue past this financial 
year. 
 
There are now 3 projects, totaling £13.965 million allocated from the 
2013/14 Non-Housing Capital Programme. The budgets allocated to 
each project, including any carry forwards for 2014/15 are: 

 
1) Private Sector Housing Grant 

£1 million 
 

2) Victoria House 
£1.81 million 

 
3) Waste: Implement Waste Strategy 

£11.154 million 

Page 80



 
Budget holders will be providing spend profiles for each project which 
will be provided within the update to this Committee on 26 August 
2014. The Waste Strategy project will be split under a number of 
headings to show each aspect of the project and the budget allocated 
to each heading. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate - The continued implementation of the Property Asset 
Management Plan will ensure that the Council is utilising its property 
portfolios to support Services in implementing the Single Outcome 
Agreement. In addition the plan contributes to achieving the vision set 
out in ‘Aberdeen: The Smarter City’. Property has a particularly 
important role to play in Smarter Living, Smarter People and Smarter 
Environment themes. 
 
Public - This report will be of interest to the public as it outlines the 
Council’s capital spending to date on Housing & Environment projects. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Non-Housing Capital Programme 2012/13 – Capital Monitoring Report 
approved at Finance & Resources Committee on 19 June 2012 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
David Marshall 
Planning & Monitoring Officer 
� damarshall@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
� 01224 523191

Page 81



Appendix A: 
Capital Monitoring – Housing & Environment projects 2013-14 to 2017-18 

 

Project Description 
Revised 
Budget 
2013/14 

 

Five 
year 

budget 
'13-'18 

Final out-
turn 

2013-18 

  £'000   £'000 £'000 

     
Duthie Park & Winter Gardens - Cost Net of 
HLF 

158 
 

158 158 

Private Sector Housing Grant 1,094 
 

6,206 535 

Victoria House 2,452 
 

2,452 707 

Waste: Implement Waste Strategy 11,038   26,363 2,435 

     
Totals 14,742 

 
35,179 3,835 

 
 
 
 

  

  

 

P
a

g
e
 8

2



 

 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:  Housing and Environment 
 
DATE :   20th May 2014  
 
DIRECTOR:   Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Affordable Housing – Grant Assistance 

Maidencraig and Hopetoun Grange  
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/037 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report seeks approval from Committee for the provision of grant 
assistance to  
(i) Grampian Housing Association to help deliver additional 

affordable housing units at Hopetoun Grange, Bucksburn and  
(ii) Grampian Housing Association and Castlehill Housing 

Association to help deliver an affordable housing development at 
Maidencraig, Lang Stracht.  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

 
It is recommended that the Committee: 
 
a. approve the funding of 5 additional affordable housing units at 

Hopetoun Grange with a grant to Grampian Housing Association of 
up to £103,126 to enable the provision of social rented units. 
 

b. considers one of the following two options for funding the 
development  of 36 Affordable Housing Units at Maidencraig with 
officer recommending Option 1 as it represents best value for the 
Council. :- 

 
i. Option 1: the grant of up £968,258 to Grampian Housing 

Association (12 units) and Castlehill Housing Association (24 
units)to enable the provision of 36 social rent units 
 

ii. Option 2: grant of up £1,046,439 to Grampian Housing 
Association (12 social rent) and Castlehill Housing Association 
(12 social and 12 mid market rent) to enable the provision of 24 
social rent and 12 mid-market rent units 

 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 83



 

 

c. the grants will be paid from developer contributions received from 
Section 75 obligations with any balance to be paid from the income 
received from the reduced Council Tax Discount for Second Homes 
and Long Term Vacant Properties. 
 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
Any grant funding to a Registered Social Landlord (RSL) for such a 
project falls within the scope of State Aid. The Council has determined 
that the Grant comes within the ambit of the Services of General 
Economic Interest block exemption which permits unlimited funding (in 
accordance with the framework) to Registered Social Landlords in the 
area of social housing, however the Service routinely consults with 
Legal Services on a case by case basis. Aberdeen City Council grant 
to these developments will contribute to spending the Scottish 
Government’s grant for affordable housing by the end of this financial 
year. 
 
Aberdeen City Council (ACC) has been allocated funding by the 
Resource Planning Assumption (RPA) of £10.061m by the Scottish 
Government for the three year period to March 2015. The funding will 
be used to fund houses which should  be completed by 31st March 
2015. Current commitments against the RPA are £5.534 million, which 
results in £4.527 million still to be committed to projects.  
Option 1 of the Maidencraig project would require Scottish Government 
grant of £2,326,728, option 2 would be £1,914,168. Hopetoun Grange 
would require Scottish Government grant of £324,626. 
 
Officers would recommend Option 1, as this would ensure the most 
effective use of Scottish Government grant, reduce the grant required 
from the Council and help to open other development opportunities in 
this area.      
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
The increased provision of good quality affordable housing will make a 
significant contribution towards tackling the housing need identified in 
Aberdeen and in particular increase provision of housing for homeless 
households. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils in conjunction with the 
Aberdeen City & Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority 
undertook a Housing Need and Demand Assessment in 2011. The 
assessment identified a need for 415 new affordable houses per 
annum for the next ten years. This information has been used to inform 

Page 84



 

 

the Strategic Development Plan, the Local Development Plan and in 
turn informed the Local Housing Strategy 2012-17. 
 
Strategic Local Programme (SLP) 
 
The SLP agreed at Committee in August 2012 included the 
developments at Maidencraig and Hopetoun. These developments can 
proceed quickly as the purchase price has been agreed with the 
developer and Grampian and Castlehill  Housing Associations for 
Maidencraig and by Grampian HA for Hopetoun.  Both these sites have 
detailed planning permission pending , and are part of a Section 75 
Agreements. They have been awaiting the allocation of grant funding to 
be able to proceed. These projects show two RSLs working in 
partnership to deliver affordable housing in the city.  
 
Grampian and Castlehill Housing Associations have submitted two 
options for developing the site at Maidencraig, these are, Option 1 for 
36 social rent units or Option 2 for 24 social rent and 12 mid- market 
rent units.  
 
Grampian Housing Association has submitted a grant application to the 
Council for 5 social rented units at Hopetoun Grange. The Council has 
previously approved funding for 16 social rented units at Hopetoun at 
the Housing and Environment Committee on 11th March 2014. The 
additional affordable housing units are the result of the developer 
increasing the number of units on the site and therefore increasing the 
affordable housing obligation.     
 
 
Aberdeen City Council Grant Assistance 
 
Although there has been an increase in the subsidy level (8th July 
2013) from the Scottish Government the current grant available for 
social rented housing is still significantly below what was previously 
provided. 
 
RSLs fund their new development work from Scottish Government 
grants and by borrowing against their future rental streams. 
 
Given the higher costs of housing development in this locality (land and 
construction costs) the Scottish Government grants and the borrowing 
RSLs can generate are not sufficient to fund RSL development. The 
City Council has therefore been requested to provide additional grant 
funding support to allow RSL development to proceed.  This grant 
funding can come from two different sources and in this interest it is 
proposed to use both sources: 
 
 

Page 85



 

 

a. Section 75 Financial Contributions 
 

Section 75 agreements negotiated through the planning process with 
Housing Developers may, on occasion, require that the developer 
makes a financial contribution toward affordable housing rather than 
delivering affordable housing on the specific site to which the planning 
permission applies. 

 
Agreements to date have provided an income detailed below at 31st 
March 2014. 
 
Section 75            £ 
Income received    2,708,138 
Interest received (to 31.3.14)      153,237 
Grants paid to RSLs   1,777,081 
Unpaid Commitments to RSLs     634,553  

 
 A further £159,375 was received on the 3rd April 2014 making the full 

balance available £609,116 
 

The funding comes with a requirement to be spent within 5 years of 
receipt, with the money held in an interest bearing account. 

 
Agreements are in place to provide an anticipated income of £346,875 
during 2014/15 with a a further projected income of £1.2 million.   

 
 

b. Council Tax Discount on Second Homes and Long-term Empty 
Properties 

 
The Council used its powers to reduce the Council Tax Discount to 
10% for these properties from 2005/06.  The extra income raised from 
this can be used by local authorities for the direct provision of 
affordable council housing as well as grant funding for RSLs. 

 
Income received and commitments to date are shown below.  

              
      

£ 
Income      10,929,035 
Paid         4,519,930 
Commitment        2,162,920 

 
Available Balance as at 31 March 2014   4,246,254 
        

 
The Council Tax Discount provided an income of £1,325 million for 
2013/14. Projected annual income is assumed to be around this figure 
but shall be closely monitored and assumptions adjusted accordingly.  
 

Page 86



 

 

 
Maidencraig  – Grampian and Castlehill Housing Associations 
 
Option1 will deliver 36 social rent houses, 12 units to be delivered by 
GHA and 24 by CHA 
 
Option 2 will deliver 24 social rent houses, and 12 Mid Market Rent, 12 
social rent by GHA and 12 social rent and 12 MMR by CHA.   
 
Size and Type of units to be delivered for Options 1 and 2 above, 11 x 
2 bedroom houses and 25 x 3 bedroom houses.  
 
Hopetoun Grange – Grampian Housing Association 
 
Additional units at Hopetoun Grange will deliver 5 social rented, 3 x 2 
bedrooms and 2x 3 bedrooms houses.  
 
Discussions have been held with Grampian and Castlehill to identify 
the additional grant funding support which would be required to see the 
delivery of the Maidencraig site and with Grampian for additional units 
at Hopetoun Grange.   
 
Without this additional grant from the Council Grampian and Castlehill 
HAs could not provide the number of  rented housing units proposed 
based on the development costs, levels of Scottish Government grant 
and the rental income available to service private borrowing.  
 
The total grant requirement and shortfall is given in the table below: 
  

 Total Grant 
requirement  

Scottish 
Government 
Grant 

Maximum 
Grant 
Shortfall to 
be 
provided by 
ACC 

Private 
Finance 
(RSL 
contribution) 

Total cost of 
development 

Option 1 £3,294,986 £2,326,728 £968,258 £2,118,907 £5,413,893 
Option 2  £2,960,607 £1,914,168 £1,046,439 £2,486,240 £5,446,847 
Hopetoun 
Grange 

£427,752 £324,626 £103,126 £264,354 £692,106 

 
 
This report seeks agreement to provide grant to allow the development 
of either Option 1 or 2 of the Maidencraig  site and Hopetoun Grange. 
The grant figures shown for ACC are the maximum value. We are 
reviewing the position and may offer a lower level of grant. 
The provision of affordable housing at Maidencraig would open up 
further development on this site as some of the infrastructure 
requirements are put in place.  Both Maidencraig and Hopetoun would 
ensure further spending of the Scottish Government affordable housing 
allocation (RPA) for the City in this financial year.    
 

Page 87



 

 

6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate  
 
SOA, National Outcome 10, “We live in well-designed, sustainable 
places where we are able to access the amenities and services we 
need”. 

• Work with Registered Social Landlords to develop affordable 
housing including 2,000 new affordable houses  

 
The 5 Year Corporate Business Plan and Housing and Environment 
Business Plan housing priorities: 
 

• We will build new houses to increase provision of affordable 
houses for the council  

• We will play our part in partnership working on community 
safety, protecting vulnerable people , health and well being and 
other community planning priorities 

 
Public  
 
The public would be interested in this report as it shows the Council’s 
commitment to work with partners in the provision of new affordable 
housing to meet the identified housing needs in the City. 
 
An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been carried 
out and is attached to this report. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Les McGonigle 
Local Housing Strategy Officer 
Email - lmcgonigle@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Telephone - 01224 522582 

 

Page 88



 

 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Housing and Environment   
  
DATE      20th May 2014     
 
DIRECTOR    Pete Leonard      
 
TITLE OF REPORT   Affordable Housing Delivery   
 
REPORT NUMBER:       H&E /14/038 
 

 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 To update Committee on the current position with Section 75 

financial contributions for affordable housing and the income 
received from the reduction in Council Tax Discount for Second 
Homes and Long Term Empty Properties, along with details of 
affordable houses completed in 2013/14 and those expected to 
be completed in 2014/15 through to 2016/17. 

 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
  

It is recommended that members of the Committee:- 
 
2.1  Note the content of the report; and 
 
 
2.2 instruct officers to continue to develop proposals for projects to 

utilise this funding whether they be City Council or Registered 
Social Landlord led projects.  

 
 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
Any grant funding to a Registered Social Landlord (RSL) for such a 
project falls within the scope of State Aid. The Council has determined 
that the Grant comes within the ambit of the Services of General 
Economic Interest block exemption which permits unlimited funding (in 
accordance with the framework) to Registered Social Landlords in the 

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 89



 

 

area of social housing, however the Service routinely consults with 
Legal Services on a case by case basis.  
 

 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
The increased provision of good quality affordable housing will make a 
significant contribution towards tackling the housing need identified in 
Aberdeen and in particular increase provision of housing for homeless 
households. 

 
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
  
5.1 Section 75 Negotiations 

 
Section 75 agreements negotiated through the planning process with 
Housing Developers may, on occasion, require that the developer 
makes a financial contribution toward affordable housing rather than 
delivering affordable housing on the specific site to which the planning 
permission applies. 
 
Agreements to date have provided an income detailed below.  
Agreements are in place to provide an anticipated  income of  £506,250 
during 2014/15 with agreements currently being negotiated to provide a 
further anticipated income of  £1.2 million.  All other forms of affordable 
housing delivery are explored before accepting a financial contribution.   
 
Section 75              £ 
Income received    2,708,138 
Interest received       153,237 
Grants paid to RSLs   1,777,081 

 Commitments to RSLs      634,553 

 
 
Available Balance (at 31.3.14)     449,741 
 
The funding received comes with a requirement to be spent within 5 
years of receipt, with the money held in an interest bearing account.   
 
The Council has used funds received up until July 2011.  There is 
therefore no likelihood that any money would have to be repaid to 
developers, permitting the Council to disburse further grant up until July 
2016.  
 
In negotiating onsite affordable housing through the planning system it 
is important that the Council can assist in the delivery of the finance 
required by RSLs to acquire completed properties from a developer.  

 

Page 90



 

 

 
 
5.2 Council Tax Discount on Second Homes and Long-term 

Empty Properties 
 
The Council used its new powers to reduce the Council Tax Discount to 
10% for these properties from 2005/06.  The extra income raised from 
this can be used by local authorities for the direct provision of 
affordable council housing as well as grant funding for RSLs. 
 
Income received to date and current commitments are shown below. 
 
                 £ 
Income     10,929,035 
Paid        4,519,861 
Commitment       2,162,920 
 
Available Balance (at 31.3.14)    4,246,254 
 
 
 
The Council Tax Discount provided an income of  £1.3 million for 
2013/14.  Based on current void rates in both the private and public 
sector, projected annual income is assumed to be around this figure, 
but shall be closely monitored every year and assumptions adjusted 
accordingly. 
 

 In February 2014 the Finance, Policy and Resources Committee 
 agreed to implement  further changes to Council Tax Discount in 
 accordance with the Council Tax (Variation for Unoccupied Dwellings) 
 (Scotland) Regulations 2013.    
 
 Committee agreed to: 
  

• Vary the discount awarded to 10% for properties unoccupied for 
more than six months (previously 50% discount) and 

• Increase the Council Tax payable by 100% for properties 
unoccupied for more than 12 months. 

 
 These changes came into effect from April 2014.  The extra finance 
 raised from these changes will not be ring fenced for affordable 
 housing, and it is as yet unknown what impact the changes will have. 
 
 
 

5.3  National Housing Trust Properties 

 
 
Following the successful development of 16 properties at Kingswells in 
2012/13 a further 43 properties were provided in two phases at Cove 

Page 91



 

 

during 2013/14.  Agreement has been reached which will see ongoing 
development of this type of property through to 2017. 
 
The development is overseen by a Limited Liability Partnership which 
has a board of management involving Scottish Futures Trust, the 
developer and the Council.  On completion the LLP buys the properties 
paying 70 per cent of the agreed purchase prices to the developer.   
The remainder is contributed by the developer as a mixture of loan 
funding and equity investment. 
 
The homes are leased to tenants for affordable intermediate rent for 5-
10 years.  They are managed by an agent who carries out maintenance 
and repairs to agreed customer service standards.  The managing 
agent allocates homes to tenants based on criteria agreed with the 
Council. 
 
5.4  Affordable Housing Committed funding 

 
Donside - £469,141 January 2011 – Tenants First Housing Co-
operative from Council Tax income 

 
Victoria House - £1,610,000 March 2011 – Aberdeen City Council from 
Council Tax income 
 
Donside special needs - £83,779 March 2011 – Tenants First Housing 
Co-operative from Council Tax income 
 
Old Church Road - £100,510 October 2012 – Langstane Housing 
Association from Section 75 income 
 
Cattofield - £150,949  August 2013 – Castlehill Housing Association 
from Section 75 income 
 
Froghall - £121,360 January 2014 – Grampian Housing Association 
from Section 75 income 
 
Hopetoun Grange - £261,734 March 2014 – Grampian Housing from 
Section 75 income 
 
Total commitments = £2,797,473 
 
 
5.5  Payments made during 2013/14 

 
 Eday Gardens - £201,627 
 

Detailed below are the completions of affordable housing in the last 
financial year: 

 
 

Page 92



 

 

 5.6  2013/14 Affordable Housing Completions  
  
 Cove = 16 mid market rent – NHT 
 Farburn Terrace = 58 – shared ownership – Grampian HA 
 Donside = 123 
  48 – LIFT – Tenants First Housing Co-operative 
  40 – rent – Tenants First Housing Co-operative 
  35 – rent – Langstane HA 
 Eday Gardens = 6 – rent – Margaret Blackwood HA 
 Cove = 9 – mid market rent – NHT 
 Donside = 20 rent – Tenants First Housing Co-operative 
 Stockethill Church = 32 – 18 rent & 14 mid market rent – Langstane HA 
 Charleston, Cove = 2 – low cost home ownership - Scotia  

 
Total completions 2013/14 = 266 
 
 
 
5.7  Expected Completions 2014/15 = 146 
 
Victoria House = 20 - rent - Aberdeen City Council 
Davidson Mill = 26 - mid market rent - NHT 
Charleston, Cove = 18 - low cost home ownership – Scotia 
Cattofield = 16 – 12 rent & 14 mid market rent – Castlehill HA 
Dubford = 3 – low cost home ownership – Scotia 
Maidencraig = 36 – 12 Grampian HA  - 24 Castlehill HA 
Marischal Street = 7 – tenement rehab – Langstane HA 
Froghall = 20 social rent – Grampian HA 
 
 
 
 
5.8 Expected Completions 2015/16 – 16/17 = 176 

  

Cove = 18 – mid market rent – NHT 
 Froghall Road = 19 – mid market rent – NHT 
 Cornhill = 10 – mid market rent – NHT 
 Huxterstone = 20 – mid market rent – NHT 
 Countesswells = 30 – mid market rent – NHT 
 Friarsfield = 8 – LCHO - Scotia 
 Hopetoun = 16 social rent – Grampian HA 

Copper Beech = 35 – 20 MMR & 15 social rent - Langstane HA  
Old Church Road = 20 - rent – Langstane HA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



 

 

6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate  
 
SOA, National Outcome 10, “We live in well-designed, sustainable 
places where we are able to access the amenities and services we 
need”. 

• Work with Registered Social Landlords to develop affordable 
housing including 2,000 new affordable houses  

 
The 5 Year Corporate Business Plan and Housing and Environment 
Business Plan housing priorities: 
 

• We will build new houses to increase provision of affordable 
houses for the council  

• We will play our part in partnership working on community 
safety, protecting vulnerable people , health and well being and 
other community planning priorities 

 
Public  
 
The public would be interested in this report as it shows the Council’s 
commitment to work with partners in the provision of new affordable 
housing to meet the identified housing needs in the City. 

 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

N/A 
 

 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None 
 
 

 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Graeme Stuart  
 
Housing Strategy & Performance Manager 
 
ph. (52)3043 
 
E-mail – gstuart@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 94



 

 1

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing & Environment  
 
DATE  20 May 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Welfare Reform and Financial Inclusion Update 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/035 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1. To update members on actions taken since the report to Council on 21 

August 2013 and on developments with the Welfare Reform agenda. 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1. It is recommended that Committee note progress made and the on-

going actions. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

3.1. There are substantial financial implications for Aberdeen City Council 

and its citizens in relation to Welfare Reform and this is reflected 

through the contingencies that have been set aside within the 2014 – 

2015 budget. 

3.2. Contained within the 2014 – 2015 budget is a contingency of £1 million 

to offset any in-year cost pressures that will occur. There is also a risk 

fund contained within the 2014 –2015 budget which can also be 

accessed if required during the year 

3.3. The risk fund has been set up to reflect any in-year cost pressures that 

may occur and Welfare Reform will clearly fall into that category. For 

example, there have already been identified cost pressures around the 

loss of benefit income for Homelessness. 

3.4. The increase in numbers of people experiencing hardship could lead 

to increased demand for service across the Council and also partner 

and advice agencies. As is the increase in those who might be 

excluded from welfare such as migrants. 

Agenda Item 6.3

Page 95



 

 2

3.5. There is a risk to Council income, particularly in relation to rent 

arrears, changes to subsidy levels for temporary accommodation and 

service charges. Known risks include: 

• Loss of rental income to Housing Revenue Account (HRA) arising 
from Housing Benefit Under occupancy reforms and Direct 
Payment under Universal Credit. 

• Scottish Welfare Fund and Discretionary Housing Payment 
budgets will be insufficient to meet demand in the long term. 

• The spend on Council Tax Reduction Scheme exceeds the 
available funding. 

• Reduced DWP Administration Subsidy due to the abolition of 
Council Tax Benefit. 

• Reduced DWP Administration Subsidy due to the phasing out of 
Housing Benefit. 

• Reduced DWP Administration Funding due to Central 
Government budget savings. 

• Increased demand on advice and advocacy both for the Council 
and Third sector advice agencies. 

 

3.6. The Scottish Government has advised of the measures they are taking 

“to mitigate the reduction in any spare room subsidy in 2014/15”.  

3.7. The Scottish Government has committed £35 million to mitigate the 

reduction in any spare room subsidy in 2014/15. This is in addition to 

the £15.2 million allocated by the Department for Work and Pensions 

(DWP) for Discretionary Housing Payments (DHPs) and brings the 

total available to the estimated £50 million required to mitigate the 

effects of the reduction to any spare room subsidy in Scotland. This 

money is being made available to social landlords through DHPs 

(which are capped) and, if necessary, through a new scheme. 

3.8. The recent Housing Benefit and Universal Credit (Supported 

accommodation) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 (applicable from 10 

April 2014) should reduce the risks in relation to access to housing 

benefit in hostel accommodation. 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1. Welfare reform has an impact on most directorates in relation to 

literacy/numeracy, demand for childcare services, passported benefits, 

Adult Learning/Lifelong Learning, Family Learning, Health & 

Wellbeing, Centre based activities, Youth Employment Activity Plan, 

rent income/arrears, housing support, regeneration, opportunities in 

environment services, money advice, procurement, council tax, 

finance, social work client groups, Economic/Business Development, 

Youth Employment Strategy, Local Employability Training Provider 

Forum, work programmes volunteering/work placement/employment 

opportunities, community planning.  

Page 96



 

 3

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1. Background 

5.1.1. The Welfare Reform Act completed its passage through the UK 

Parliament in March 2012 and received royal ascent on 5th 

March 2012. This legislation brought about the most 

fundamental reform to the social security system. Its primary 

purpose is aimed at delivering a system that is simpler, fairer 

and ensuring that “work always pays”. The stated aims of 

Welfare Reform are to: 

• Simplify what has become an overly complex benefit system 

• Make the benefit system fair for recipients and tax payers. 

• Ensure that individuals always benefit financially by moving 
off benefits and into work. 

 
5.2. Universal Credit and Local Support Services Framework 

5.2.1. This new benefit replaces others including working tax credit, 

child tax credit, Housing Benefit, income support, income based 

job seekers allowance and income related employment and 

support allowance (ESA). Total benefits to a household will be 

capped at £26,000 per year. Universal Credit will be paid as a 

single benefit one month in arrears in a single monthly payment 

with recipients being financially responsible for making 

payments, e.g. rent, that may be due.  

5.2.2. Currently Housing Benefit for claimants administered by the 

Council and Housing Benefit for the majority of social housing 

tenants is paid directly to the landlord. Under Universal Credit 

this amount will be paid to the tenant whose responsibility it will 

be to pay the rent unless there are exceptional circumstances. 

Guidance will be given clarifying the circumstances where 

alternatives to payments to the claimant are possible.  

5.2.3. The Department for Work & Pensions’ revised plans for rollout of 

Universal Credit were confirmed in a written ministerial 

statement on 5 December 2013. The DWP advised that the 

number of Jobcentres involved would be expanded slowly, and 

that the six Jobcentres originally identified as pilots, including 

Inverness, would be “live” by spring 2014. COSLA and the 

Scottish Government have committed to facilitate learning 

events where other councils can receive information on the 

progress in Inverness in order to support local planning. The 

Council will play an active role in this engagement however there 

is no indication as to when Jobcentres in Aberdeen are likely to 

begin taking claims for Universal Credit. Further roll out is not 

Page 97



 

 4

expected prior to April 2015, possibly 2016. 

5.2.4. From October 2013, the national roll-out expanded from the 

Pathfinder areas to six hub jobcentres - Hammersmith, Rugby, 

Inverness, Harrogate, Bath and Shotton. These jobcentres are 

taking new claims to the benefit from single people who have no 

housing costs. Claims from couples (summer 2014) and families 

(autumn 2014) will follow. 

5.2.5. As a consequence of the slowdown in rolling out Universal 

Credit councils will continue to administer Housing Benefit for 

considerably longer than was previously understood. The level 

of Housing Benefit administration subsidy provided by DWP 

therefore takes on greater importance. 

5.2.6. Operationally, it is now clear that more claimants have been 

subject to sanctions under the revised regimes which leaves 

them without benefits for periods of time, increases their debts 

and their dependence on Foodbanks. The regime continues to 

get tougher with the introduction of the “claimant commitment” 

and further conditions such as having to have an email address, 

a CV and registered on Job Match before being able to sign on.  

5.2.7. New conditions are being introduced in relation to migrants 

which could leave them without housing benefit if they fail to 

meet conditions for the benefits. 

5.2.8. These last two paragraphs could lead to further rent arrears and 

potentially more homelessness applications. 

5.2.9. The DWP has published a draft Local Service Support 

Framework which covered issues such as frequency of 

payments, direct payments, assistance with digital access. 

Discussions on this are being had with the local government 

associations including COSLA.  

5.2.10. The Local Service Support Framework recognises that some 

people will need extra support, including while they transition 

from the current benefit system to UC. In particular, some 

claimants will require support with: 

• Triage and explaining the new services, particularly while they 
are being introduced in incremental stages; 

• Assistance with making claims online and managing their UC 
account online; 

• Advice to help them manage their money under UC’s monthly 
payment arrangements and ensure that rent and cash flow is 
well managed. 

 

Page 98



 

 5

5.3. Personal Independence Payment (PIP)  

5.3.1. Personal Independence Payment (PIP) will replace Disability 

Living Allowance (DLA) for new claimants aged 16 to 64. PIP 

includes an assessment of individual needs and regular reviews. 

5.3.2. In October 2013 the DWP invited existing Disability Living 

Allowance claimants living in Wales, East Midlands and East 

Anglia to claim Personal Independence Payments in certain 

circumstances. On the 13 January 2014 this was extended to 

include Dumfries and Galloway, Edinburgh, Galashiels and 

Motherwell. 

5.3.3. It is anticipated that these changes will impact on Council 

services, in particular in advice services, as customers look for 

assistance in applying for PIP and/or appealing against 

decisions. The extent of any increased demand is unknown. 

5.4. Welfare Matters Hub & Satellites 

5.4.1. The Welfare Matters hub and satellite project overseen by the 

Welfare Reform Programme Board aims to bring together a 

range of services to ensure that people affected by welfare 

reforms have access to information and support to mitigate the 

effects of those reforms. 

5.4.2. Although the implementation timetable for Universal Credit has 

been put back, there are a number of changes which have been 

and are being implemented which underpin the culture changes 

that the reforms are expected to deliver. These include for 

example, the implementation of the Claimant Commitment, an 

agreement between claimants and their advisers that sets out 

expectations in respect of job search or work related activities; 

new conditionality is being implemented from the end of April for 

lone parents when their youngest child reaches the age of three 

and from June, new limitations for migrant workers and their 

ability to claim benefits, including housing benefit. 

5.4.3. The aim is to ensure that the issues people face can be 

identified and addressed in a coherent way, bringing together a 

range of services delivered both by Aberdeen City Council and 

external partners and providers. This will improve the client 

journey, reduce the need for people to continually retell their 

stories and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of service 

delivery. 

5.4.4. The project is based on a model with the Hub based in the 

Jobcentre at Ebury House with community based satellites in, 

Page 99



 

 6

initially, priority regeneration areas to deliver community based 

access to support and services. 

5.4.5. The project is not about building additional resources and 

structures, but aims to support and encourage services and 

providers to deliver their services differently in providing more 

joined up support for people and delivering efficiencies to their 

own services. 

5.5. Welfare Matters Hub: 

5.5.1. The Hub has been established on the 3rd floor at Ebury House 

with an informal layout and meeting rooms available for 

participating services to use with clients and groups. The 

services with a presence at this time include a range of 

organisations offering a broad range of employability, benefits 

and financial inclusion services to a range of clients.  

5.5.2. In line with the nature of the labour market in Aberdeen, the 

focus is on clients facing a range of barriers and more complex 

needs and although there is a focus on employment as an aim, 

the work involves helping people tackle a range of social justice 

issues. There is an increasing need to ensure people are 

supported through a case management approach rather than 

relying on signposting clients – people need help to develop the 

skills and confidence to address the issues and barriers they 

face. 

5.5.3. The current list of services is at Annex 1. 

5.6. Welfare Matters Satellites: 

5.6.1. The development of the first community based satellite service is 

underway at Tillydrone with the satellite based in the former 

payment office within the housing office in Tillydrone. The 

satellite service aims to provide more accessible, community 

based services, supporting both individuals as well as 

community groups. Work has shown that increasingly, 

community and other projects are facing demands to help 

people respond to welfare changes and the community based 

satellite will help front line staff in other projects to concentrate 

on their core roles. This will help ensure consistent up to date 

welfare reform information is provided for clients.   

5.6.2. A smaller range of services will be provided at the satellite in the 

first instance, with part time operation until demand and 

resources are established. Once operational, the model will be 

extended to other areas including Torry and Northfield. 

Page 100



 

 7

5.7. Project Impacts: 

5.7.1. The Welfare Matters Satellite Project does not fund any of the 

services and providers which participate, with each service 

having their own funding agreements and reporting 

arrangements in place. Discussions are underway in the context 

of the refreshed Aberdeen Works strategy to consider the role of 

a management information system to enable more robust 

tracking of client tracking and progress through hub and satellite 

support, while minimising the administrative burden on 

participating services and organisations. 

5.7.2. Until this is in place, there is a reliance on more informal 

quantitative information, which indicates that at this stage 

approximately 100 clients are being seen each week by services 

within the hub and satellite – a mix of new referrals and existing 

clients working to address their needs.  This number will 

increase as further group sessions are implemented and further 

welfare reforms begin to take effect. 

5.7.3. Marketing at this stage has largely been through word of mouth 

but materials are in planning and events to promote the satellite 

in Tillydrone will take place before summer. 

5.7.4. Other impacts which have been evident include increased cross 

referrals between services as a result of developing better 

knowledge following co-location, better links between welfare 

and benefits staff and jobcentre advisers, to better resolve 

issues and support clients and progress with case conferencing 

clients who are engaged with multiple services. 

5.8. Priorities: 

5.8.1. Current priorities are the continued development and operation 

of services within the hub, establishing the operation of the 

satellite in Tillydrone and then rolling this out in further areas in 

the city. 

5.8.2. In support of this, work has begun with partners to develop a 

collaborative triage approach to further improve the client 

journey through support services, a bid to the Scottish 

Government Welfare Reform Resilience Fund is in development, 

joint development work with the Employability Providers Forum 

on a Big Lottery application, planning for a community event in 

Tillydrone at the end of April for services, projects a  partners to 

update on welfare reforms and work to develop an approach to 

mitigate the impacts of the changes for migrant workers with 

housing colleagues.  

Page 101



 

 8

5.9. Money Advice Teams 

5.9.1. A review of the Welfare Rights, Money Advice & Benefits Advice 

teams is nearly complete and it is anticipated that a new 

structure will be implemented over the next six months. This 

includes additional Money Advice Assistants. 

5.9.2. A number of local agencies have received additional funding 

from the Big Lottery and the Scottish Legal Aid Board Making 

Advice Work and these include Aberdeen Foyer, Aberdeen 

Cyrenians, Grampian Housing Association and Cash In Your 

Pocket.  

5.9.3. Additional budgeting, money advice and support services will be 

available for local people. 

5.10. Food Banks Partnership Aberdeen  

5.10.1. The partnership has been established and is funded by the 

Fairer Aberdeen Fund. 

5.11. Discretionary Housing Payments 

5.11.1. Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) provides Council and 

Private Sector Tenants financial assistance with housing costs in 

addition to Housing Benefit. Local Authorities may increase the 

DWP amount by up to 2.5 times the DWP allocation from within 

the local authorities existing finances. 

5.11.2. In 2013/14 Aberdeen City Council was initially allocated 

£226,785,this was  later revised in July to £299,125 and after a 

successful bid for a further £70,000 in February 2014 meant that 

the total DWP funding for 2013/14 was £369,125. The Scottish 

Government provided funding of £444,174 and £109,514 was 

provided by Aberdeen City Council on 24 March 2014. Due to 

the late change in legislation and notification by DWP (24 March 

2014) that the 2.5 top up could include the £70,000 bid money, 

processing time for applications only allowed for £74,447.99 to 

be awarded from the money provided by Aberdeen City Council 

or 2014/15 funding of £308,438 has been awarded from DWP 

and indications are that £462,657 will be awarded from the 

Scottish Government however, this figure has not been finalised. 

Applications/Spend for 2013/14 

 

Number of claims received    1788 
Number of claims awarded    1288 
Number of claims failed to qualify   193 

Page 102



 

 9

Number of claims low priority/non-awards 303 
Number of claims withdrawn   4 
Funding 
DWP       £369,125  
Scottish Government    £444,174 
Aberdeen City     £109,514 
Total Funding     £922,813 
Total spend      £888,746.99 
 

5.12. Scottish Welfare Fund 

5.12.1. The Scottish Welfare Fund, established in April 2013 is a 

national scheme run by local authorities based on guidance from 

Scottish Ministers. The objectives of the scheme are to: 

• Provide a safety net in a disaster or emergency 

• Enable independent living or continued independent living 
preventing the need for institutional care. 

 
5.12.2. There are two types of grants – Crisis Grants and Community 

Care Grants 

5.12.3. Nationally the scheme got off to a slow start and this was the 

case for Aberdeen. In light of experience of running the Scottish 

Welfare Fund the guidance was amended by Scottish 

Government in October. The main changes being to expand the 

families under exceptional pressure criteria to include families 

who do not have children, to make Community Care Grant 

awards for applicants not on a qualifying benefit, allowing grants 

to be made to people on contributory benefits, on low incomes 

and those who are in and out of work. These changes made a 

significant impact on the spend and awards made in the second 

half of the year. 

5.12.4. For 2013/14 Aberdeen City Council was allocated £540,786 for 

Community Care Grants and £359,055 for Crisis Grants a total 

allocation from Scottish Government of £899,841. Monies can 

be vired between either Grant allocations. 

5.12.5. For 2013/14 there were 4060 Crisis Grants paid out at an 

average award of £59.66. A total of £242,218.42 spent which is 

67.5% against allocation. There were 997 Community Care 

Grants paid out at an average award of £556.06. A total of 

£554,395.96 spent which is 102.5% against allocation. This 

means that 88.5% of total allocation has been spent during the 

2013/14 financial year. The under spend of £103,226.632 will be 

carried forward to 2014/15 financial year. However, on 31 March 

2014 there were 227 successful Community Care Grants in 

various stages of award therefore £100k of the under spend is 

Page 103



 

 10

committed towards these Grants.    

5.12.6. The pilot with the Aberdeen Food bank Partnership commenced 

on 8 October 2013. Successful Crisis Grant clients are now 

offered a choice of food vouchers. A client who elects to receive 

a CFINE voucher will be able to redeem more goods for their 

award than from using alternative supermarket vouchers. To 

date 141 CFINE vouchers have been issued. 

5.12.7. Unsuccessful applicants can be referred to CFINE or the 

Trussell Trust for a food parcel. To date 101 have been referred 

to CFINE and 143 to the Trussell Trust.   

5.13. Employability 

5.13.1. A strategy for Aberdeen Works is currently being drafted and 

links with Financial Inclusion will be explored. 

 

5.14. Welfare Reform Project Board 

5.14.1. The Welfare Reform Project Board was established by CMT and 

it has for managing and progressing the Community Planning 

Partnerships collective response to Welfare Reform. The Board 

has representation from all Directorates within the Council and 

from DWO, NHS, Police, Fire and the third sector. The 

Programme Management Office has taken a lead role in ensure 

the success of the group in managing the workstreams. 

5.14.2. The Board has met regularly since the beginning of 2013 to 

develop and overseen a number of workstreams. 

5.14.3. A review is being carried out in relation to the future 

management of Welfare Reform. 

5.14.4. A Financial Inclusion strategy has been drafted and will finalised 

in the months ahead. 

5.14.5. The Financial Inclusion Manager has now retired and 

consideration will be given to how this function is managed in 

future. 

6. IMPACT 
 

6.1. The report relates to the Single Outcome Agreement and the Council 

vision of Aberdeen – the Smarter City, in particular the strategic 

priority ‘Smarter Living (Quality of Life)’ where we challenge inequality 

and positively promote wellbeing building on cultural and physical 

activity. 

Page 104



 

 11

6.2. The report has strong links to the Community Plan and our vision as a 

city to be an even better place to live and work, where people can 

expect high quality services to meet their needs. 

6.3. The report also relates to the following National Outcome Measures: 

• National Outcome 6 – “We live longer, healthier lives” 

• National Outcome 9 – “A Safer and Stronger Scotland 

• National Outcome 10 – “We live in well-designed, sustainable 
places where we are able to access the amenities and 
services we need” 

 
6.4.  Given the significant changes to the welfare benefit system and the 

immediate impact this will have on our citizens it is likely that this 

report will be of interest to the public. 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

This section must include an assessment of risks identified with the 
potential to impact negatively or positively on the decision required of 
the Committee.  You should refer to the ‘Management of Risk’ 
Guidance (http://thezone/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=27520&sID=4371 ) in 
completing this section. 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Donald Urquhart, Head of Housing & Community Safety 
 

� (52)2119 

� dourquhart@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 

Annex 1  Hub and satellite services and providers 

Aberdeen Foyer Job Parent Service – employability and case management 

support for clients with complex and multiple needs; 

Aberdeen Recovery in the Community employability coaches – through 

Aberdeen Foyer and Drugs Actions, specific help for clients in recovery from 

drug addictions; 

Remploy – employability support for people with disabilities and health 

conditions; 

Cornerstone – employability support for people with disabilities and health 

conditions; 

Page 105



 

 12

Shaw Trust - employability support for people with disabilities and health 

conditions; 

Inspire - employability support for people with disabilities and health 

conditions; 

Pathways – employability support for people with a range of barriers and 

support needs; 

Bethany Christian Trust – employability support for homeless people; 

Triple A – specialist support for people with autism; 

North East Scotland Sensory Services – specialist support for people with 

sight loss, hearing loss and the deaf community; 

Aberdeen Action on Disability – support in connection with applications for a 

range of benefits; 

Aberdeen Money Matters – specialist budgeting advisors from Aberdeen City 

Council Financial Inclusion Team debt staff and Grampian Housing 

Association for council and RSL tenants. 

Jobcentre Plus – an adviser sees clients each day and provides support and 

information to all providers. 

Care Sector Academy – pre-employment support for clients considering 

opportunities within the care sector. 

Further services which are currently developing their presence include: 

Community Learning – support for ESoL (English as a second or other 

language); basic literacy, numeracy and digital skills; 

Aberdeen Libraries – access to and support for digital skills; 

Cash in Your Pocket - and assessment and case management approach for 

clients; 

Addiction – support for people with drug and alcohol addictions. 

NHS – a range of health services which can support clients from and 

employability and financial inclusion perspective, linking to a wide range of 

initiatives. 

Aberdeen City Council – Financial Inclusion Team - welfare and benefits 

advice staff, developing links with Jobcentre and providers in support of 

addressing client needs 

 

Page 106



 

 

 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing & Environment 
 
DATE  20th May 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Requirement for major repairs at various Seaton  
                                           multi storeys 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/033 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to: 

• Inform committee of the outcome of further investigation in to methods 
for dealing with water penetration in multi storey blocks in the Seaton 
area.  

• Request approval to proceed with over cladding, replacement of 
windows and flat roof renewal, where appropriate, in the seven blocks 
identified within the report following the positive outcome of discussions 
with private owners within these blocks.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
It is recommended that the committee: 
 
a) instruct the Director of Housing and Environment to pursue the  

proposal to carry out structural repairs, over clad, appropriate flat 
roof renewal and install new windows in the seven blocks referred 
to in the report. 
 

b)  approve the use of ECO funding granted to the Council in  
     connection with this project to be used to limit the cost of over   
     cladding and window replacement works to private owners.  
   

 
c)  instruct the Director of Housing and Environment to monitor the  
     situation with future energy efficiency grant funding levels and  
     report back to this committee if any reduction in funding may have a  
     detrimental effect on this project.   
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6.4

Page 107



 

 

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
If Committee approves the proposals contained within this report the 
gross provisional construction cost for the proposed works at the seven 
blocks identified in this report is expected to be £16.7 million, inclusive 
of professional fees etc, based on the information currently available. 

 
The funding for the proposed works will be required over the financial 
years 2015/16 to 2018/19.   

 
The Director of Housing and Environment will ensure that sufficient 
funding for the project is provided for through the Housing Capital 
Expenditure budget.       

 
The Director of Housing and Environment will ensure that the Council 
continues to use its best endeavours to ensure that: 
-  the agreement with the preferred ECO partner is successfully 

concluded, and 
-  the grant funding is maximised. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
If the proposed works are not proceeded with: 
- these blocks will continue to be adversely affected by water 

ingress; 
- the deterioration of the external walling will continue; 
- the maintenance and repairs costs for these blocks will continue 

to rise; 
- areas of external walling will continue to be adversely affected 

by condensation and mould; 
- (in the absence of district heating) the occupants will be severely 

affected by fuel poverty;  
- these blocks will not be fit for long-term use as social housing; 

and 
- the HRA will lose significant rental income from 725 flats due to 

the early decommissioning of these blocks, that will be required, 
if the external fabric cannot be renewed. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
On 24 August 2010 the Housing and Environment committee approved 
the over cladding and replacement of windows in Balgownie Court,  
Inverdon Court and St Ninian Court in an effort to prevent water 
penetration.   
 
At the time this report was considered by committee it was known that   
Aulton, Bayview, Beachview, Linksfield, North Sea, Promenade and 
Regent Courts also suffered from water penetration but there was 
insufficient funding available at the time to include them in the same  
 

Page 108



 

 

 
 
contract as the initial three blocks. 
 
The Principal Architect, Housing and Environment has continued to 
monitor the water penetration situation in these seven blocks and has 
considered the three following options to deal with the matter.   

 
Option 1 - Continue current programme of planned and reactive  
                 maintenance. 
 
Option 2 - Structural repairs, window replacement, rain screen over  
                 cladding at all blocks and flat roof renewal at Linksfield,   
                 Promenade and Regent Courts. 
 
Option 3 - Demolition of the blocks. 
 
A summary of the issues considered has been attached as Appendix 
A.   Appendix B shows the breakdown of costs by block groupings and 
flat for each of the options.  Appendix C shows an options appraisal 
matrix which has used a scoring mechanism based on the financial and 
housing management factors considered most pertinent to the future of 
these blocks.   

 
The Principal Architect has assessed option 2 as being the preferred 
solution to preventing the ongoing water penetration problems in these 
blocks and this is supported by the outcome of the matrix in appendix 
C.    
 
At the date of writing this report it is planned to meet with the private 
owners in the blocks and Ward Members to advise them of the options 
identified for dealing with the water penetration in their blocks and 
ascertain whether they support the Council’s preferred course of 
action.   
 
If approved, these works would be carried out in two phases.  The first 
phase is estimated to commence the 4th quarter of 2014/5 and 
complete in March 2016.  The second phase of works is estimated to 
take place between April 2016 and September 2018. 
   
The overall gross provisional cost for the preferred option is £16.7 
million, inclusive of fees etc.  Increased funding will be required to 
cover the cost of these works when the Director of Housing and  
Environment submits the Housing Capital Expenditure budget to 
committee later this year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



 

 

 
 
Private owners may be entitled to a grant of £6,500 each which will be 
allocated from the Scottish Government’s Home Energy Efficiency 
Programme Scotland: Area Based Scheme (HEEPS:ABS).  This grant 
is not available for Council owned flats.   
 
As most of the blocks in these flats are served by CHP it is estimated 
that the Council is unlikely to receive more than £1,000 per flat Energy 
Company Obligations (ECO) grant funding for this project.  This figure 
would also be available to each of the private owners.  
 
For the proposed works to prove wholly successful it is important that 
all private owners in these blocks participate in the project.  
 
 It is therefore proposed that, as with other projects of a similar nature,  
a proportion of the grant funding provided to the Council for work on its 
flats should be used to limit the cost of over cladding and window 
replacement works to the owners.   

 
6. IMPACT 

 
The Single Outcome Agreement refers to a need to enhance the 

           quality of housing and environment for individuals and the community. 
 

“Aberdeen – the Smarter City”, sets out the following policy targets: 
 
Smarter Living (Quality of Life): 
 
We will provide quality services to our council tenants to enable them 
to have a dry, warm home in a safe and enjoyable environment. 
 
Smarter Environment (Natural Resources): 
 
We will increase energy efficiency and introduce carbon reduction 
measures in our processes and our housing and non housing assets to 
reduce our carbon footprint, save money and to bring people out of fuel 
poverty. 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

Works 
 
Discussions will be undertaken with other owners in the blocks at an 
early stage to ensure that sufficient agreement is reached to allow the 
proposed works to go ahead.  By using the ECO funding that the 
Council will receive for over cladding its flats to limit the cost of works 
to the owners.  This will hopefully ensure that agreement is reached 
with the owners and that any delays due to disputes can be mitigated. 

 
 
 

Page 110



 

 

 
Grant funding 

 
The grant figures shown in section 5 above are based on the current 
level of ECO and HEEPS:ABS funding being awarded for similar 
projects at the moment, however, no certainty can be given that these 
figures will remain the same during the period 2015/16 to 2018/9 when 
the phases of the Seaton multi storey project will be completed.  
Should grant funding levels change to the detriment of the project it 
may be necessary for the level or work involved to be re-assessed as 
works would potentially become unaffordable for private owners. 
 

8. REPORTING AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
William Watson 
Principal Architect 
WilliamWatson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
tel 439215  
 
Ian Perry 
Housing Improvement Officer 
iperry@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
tel 439242  

 
9.        BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Installation of Combined Heat and Power and proposals for major 
repairs at various Seaton multi storeys – Housing and Environment 
committee, 24 August 2010 

 

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A:

Summary of investment options for seven multi storey blocks at Seaton:
Aulton, Bayview, Beachview, Linksfield, North Sea, Promenade and Regent
Courts

Option 1: continuing current programme of planned and reactive maintenance

Advantages:

 low initial capital cost.

Disadvantages:

 high maintenance costs;

 continuing rate of structural degradation;

 continuing significant risk of water penetration;

 high heat loss, high CO2 emissions; and

 avoidable uncomfortable draughts.

This option has been the one that the Council has pursued up till now. This option has
not delivered reliably wind and watertight accommodation. There are continuing regular
reports of penetrating damp to these seven blocks, despite the best efforts of the
Council to tackle these leaks through both planned maintenance and reactive repairs.
This experience has established that this is not a sustainable, long-term option. This
option could, however, be justifiably selected as an interim strategy, as a precursor to
demolition.

Option 2: Structural repairs, window replacement and rain screen over-

cladding

Advantages:

 lower maintenance costs, than Option 1;

 significant reduction in the rate of structural degradation;

 a robust means of alleviating the potential for water penetration through the

concrete panel joints, windows and window junctions;

 reduction is heat loss, reduction in CO2 emissions;

 reduction in draughts; and

 improved aesthetic appearance.

Page 113



Disadvantages:

 high initial capital cost; and

 short period of disturbance to the residents.

This option has been the one that the Council has pursued to three other high rises
within Seaton, and also to three high rises at Balnagask. This option will provide
reasonably reliable wind and watertight accommodation. This is a sustainable, long-
term option. This option will extend the expected useful life of the blocks for another
thirty years. During this period the condition of the structure will have been largely
stabilised. At the end of the thirty years there will, therefore, be the option of extending
the life of these blocks for another thirty years (60 years). (It is impractical to forecast to
what degree the structure will have degraded, beyond this).

Option 3: Demolition

Advantages:

 the most robust means of alleviating water penetration;

 provides two sites that would be capable of re-development; and

 opportunity to provide a transformational change to this priority area.

Disadvantages:

 period of high maintenance costs (prior to demolition);

 high initial capital cost during demolition, followed by very high capital cost if

these flats were to be replaced;

 if these flats were not replaced, prior to demolition, the number of Council flats

within the city would be reduced by 725, this would adversely impact on the

Council�s housing waiting list;

 long period of uncertainty and disturbance to the residents before and during

decanting; and

 cost of compulsory purchase from the private owners.

During the current period of high demand for housing within the city and significant
pressure on the Council�s finances this option would appear unnecessary and poor
value for money.

Page 114



Conclusions

Option 1 is recommended for rejection.

Option 2 is recommended for immediate implementation.

Option 3 is recommended for revisiting, over the very long term, if the demand for
housing within the city slackens, and the financing of a comprehensive redevelopment
of this priority area becomes practical.

Page 115



Appendix B

Seaton Multi Storey Overcladding Proposals - Cost breakdown

Phase1: Linksfield,

Promenade and

Regent Courts

Phase 2: Aulton,

Bayview, Beachview

and Northsea Courts

Cost per Phase Cost per Flat Cost per Phase Cost per Flat

Option 1 - Continued maintenance and repair £3,560,711 £10,693 £4,008,895 £8,948

Option 2 - Overcladding and ongoing maintenance £7,350,422 £22,073 £9,301,665 £20,763

Option 3 - Demolition £3,101,128 £9,313 £3,909,087 £8,726

Costs are based on 1st quarter 2014

Costs include Professional fees, Prelims and Contingencies

P
a
g

e
 1

1
6



Appendix C � Page 1

Seaton multi storey option appraisal matrix - explanatory note

In order to identify the option that is most likely to delivery an outcome that
maximises the impact of HRA investment and delivers strategic housing
objectives, an option appraisal analysis of the three key investment
scenarios for the Seaton multi-storey blocks has been performed.

The objective of the option appraisal process is to systematically test each
investment scenario against the evidence available on both cost and
strategic benefit; and to ensure that the sustainability of investment is
analysed from a financial, management, strategic, customer and technical
perspective.

To achieve this, an option appraisal scoring matrix was designed and
implemented. Each investment scenario was systematically scored against
consistent criteria, which was defined to reflect the key financial and strategic
factors that the Council would require to take into account.

A priority and weighting was applied to each assessment criteria to ensure
that the relative importance of criteria was recognised and reflected in
outcome scores for each scenario.

This assessment criteria was used to systematically assess the ability of each
investment scenario to deliver the specified outcomes. To this end, colleagues
from across the Regeneration & Housing Investment and Housing &
Communities services marked each option out of 10 against its ability to meet
the criteria specified. Weightings were applied to each criteria mark and
combined to provide an overall score for each scenario so that a clear
outcome specifying which scenario was most likely to deliver ACC objectives
could be identified.

This process has enabled us to identify the scenario most capable of
delivering the Best Value and strategic housing objectives. The outcome
of the option appraisal is intended to support informed decision making on
the most sustainable investment option for the Seaton blocks.

Page 117



Appendix C - Page 2

Seaton multi-storey investment option appraisal matrix

Criteria

1. To invest in planned

maintenance & structural

repair in Seaton multi's

2. To overclad the Seaton

multi's

3. To demolish the Seaton

multi's

Weighting Mark Score Mark Score Mark Score

1 Is the option financially viable and is it affordable to the HRA? 100 3 300 4 400 5 500

2
Will the option deliver wind and watertight status thereby securing

sustainable demand for the blocks?
100 1 100 7 700 1 100

3
Does the option maximise our ability to meet housing need, both in

terms of supply and housing quality?
100 2 200 8 800 1 100

4
Will the option support tenancy sustainment and improve health

and well being of the occupants?
100 1 100 8 800 1 100

5
Are there subsidy funding opportunities available to support

investment in this option?
100 1 100 5 500 1 100

6
Will the option support the recovery of income from owners and

minimise the HRA contribution to investment
100 5 500 6 600 1 100

7
Does this option maximise carbon capture and make a positive

contribution to the carbon reduction agenda?
100 1 100 8 800 5 500

TOTAL 1,400 4,600 1,500

P
a
g

e
 1

1
8



No. Options Score

C7 No

C7 Over cladding will increase carbon capture

C7 No

2

Seaton Multi-Storey Investment scenarios rationale

C1 This is the most affordable option, but is not good value as it fails to deal with water

penetration.

C2 It is unlikely that this option will resolve issues with the condition of these blocks or the

water penetration

Rationale

C6 The cost to owners is fair, but is not good value as it fails to address structural problems

with the blocks.

C4 No

2. To overclad the Seaton multi's

C6 The gross cost to owners is high, but is reasonable when subsidy is applied.

C3 No

1. To invest in planned maintenance & structural repair in Seaton

multi's

1 1,400

C5 No

Appendix C - Page 3

3

C6 No. It is likely that the use of CPO's will impact on owners

C4 No

C5 No

1,500

C3 No

C1 This option is less expensive than option 2 but will result in loss of rental stream from 725

flats.

C2 This option will not create sustainable demand for these blocks

3. To demolish the Seaton multi's

4,600

C2 This option is most likely to resolve issues with water penetration and condition of these

blocks and sustain demand

C1 This option is the most expensive and will have an impact on the 30 year HRA, though

future maintenance costs should reduce.

C4 Yes

C3 Yes

C5 Small amount of subsidy is available for tenanted flats with a larger subsidy for owners

P
a
g
e
 1

1
9



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Housing and Environment Committee 
     
DATE     20 May 2014 
 
DIRECTOR    Peter Leonard  
 
AUTHOR   Claire Hunter, Change Manager 
 
TITLE OF REPORT Project Brief for the Hazlehead Grove Nursery Project  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  H&E/14/046 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  

This report presents a project brief for the Hazlehead Grove Nursery 
Project. This is a working document that will be developed and used for 
communicating key messages about the project. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
That the Housing and Environment Committee approve the project brief.  

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
There are no immediate financial implications for this report at this time. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Corporate Management Team (CMT) will have oversight of this project 
via project briefings.   

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

 This report is a working project management document for the Hazlehead 
Grove Nursery Project. Reports produced for the Working Group are to be 
overseen by the Housing & Environment Committee and approved as 
required. 

 
6 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7 REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
 Claire Hunter, Change Manager, Housing & Environment 
 Ext: 3424 

E-mail: clhunter@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Hazlehead Grove Nursery 
 

Draft Project Brief  

   

Page 1 of 5 

 

Project Name Hazlehead Grove Nursery Version V3 

Project Sponsor Mark Reilly, Head of Environment Date 7 May 2014 

Purpose of 
Document 

To ensure the project has a commonly understood and well-defined 
start point by providing an overview including the project's purpose 
and any known constraints.  

 

1. Project Background 

The following motion by Councillors Boulton and Thomson was passed by Council on 6th 
March 2013: 
 
“That this Council asks for a report looking at ways to deliver social enterprises on the 
remaining part of the site of Grove Nursery specialising in horticulture/allotments and other 
appropriate activities, and the opportunity of including the wider community. This is an 
essential part of the Administration’s desire to create a climate change park involving the 
wider policies.” 
 
Subsequently, the Housing and Environment Committee agreed to establish a working 
group to explore ways of using the Hazlehead Grove Nursery site to deliver a social 
enterprise and other activities with the involvement of the wider community.  
 
The Nursery site spans approximately 7.3 hectares and was originally used by Aberdeen 
City Council to grow and cultivate trees, plants and flowers. The Nursery was closed in 2009 
as part of budget savings, although the depot remained in use. The majority of plants now 
planted by Aberdeen City Council are sourced externally. 
 
The infrastructure of the nursery is still in place and although significant work and 
investment would be required to have the nursery up and running as it was, there is the 
potential to start some projects immediately. 
 
The service has already in place successful links with social enterprise and local community 
groups and it is hoped that these links can be developed in a way that would see the 
nursery site used successfully once again to grow the city’s plants as well as use the site for 
other green / in bloom initiatives.  
 
Ideas for potential use of the site include a social enterprise, growing plants for the City; 
school gardens and an outdoor classroom; local and city-wide community initiatives and an 
operational depot for grounds maintenance staff. 
 
This is a unique space, large enough to accommodate various numbers of groups and 
projects, offering an opportunity for the City to develop people and improve life skills. 

 

 

2. Project Vision 

As developed by the Hazlehead Grove Nursery Project and approved at the Housing & 
Environment Committee of 3 March 2014: 

Page 123



 

Hazlehead Grove Nursery 
 

Draft Project Brief  

   

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

Hazlehead Grove Nursery  

– a smart, green place to grow people and communities. 
 

 

3. Project Aim and Objectives 

Aim: In partnership with a social enterprises, school and community organisations, develop 
and implement a plan for transforming the existing Hazlehead Grove nursery site into a 
working nursery. 

 

Objectives: 

1. To develop and implement a plan for the transformation of Hazlehead Grove nursery 
into a potentially award winning social enterprise working nursery. 

2. To identify and select social enterprise group/groups to enter into partnership with to 
develop the Nursery site. 

3. To identify and select community and other local organisations to find initiatives to 
develop remaining unutilised areas of the site for amenity and horticultural use. 

4. To take into account the operational needs of the service as it considers and 
implements depot rationalisation initiatives involving the operational depot at the 
Hazlehead Grove nursery site. 

5. To identify and source funding for Project from external sources. 

 
 

4. Project Workstreams 

WORKSTREAM 1: Physical development of site 

To ensure the Grove Nursery site is appropriately prepared and developed for use i.e. 
preparation of plots; pathways; car parking; access; welfare and other facilities etc. 

 

WORKSTREAM 2: Environmental Services – Depot Build 

To take into account the operational needs of the service as it considers and implements 
depot rationalisation initiatives. This will include the build of a new depot at Grove Nursery.  

 

WORKSTREAM 3: Third Sector 

To identify, select and manage the involvement of social enterprise organisations/projects at 
the nursery site. 

 

WORKSTREAM 4: Social Care and Well Being 

To establish the criteria for projects/placements clients may participate in at the nursery and 
the desired outcomes. This workstream will feed directly into the social enterprise 
workstream. 

 

WORKSTREAM 5: Education 

To plan, develop and manage outdoor learning opportunities at the Grove Nursery. 

Page 124



 

Hazlehead Grove Nursery 
 

Draft Project Brief  

   

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

WORKSTREAM 6: Community Use 

To identify, select and manage community involvement in the site, supporting groups and 
organisations in developing initiatives for amenity and horticultural use. 

 

WORKSTREAM 7: Craigiebuckler and Seafield Community Council 

To plan, develop and implement plans for the use of a plot of land by Craigiebuckler and 
Seafield Community Council including the potential for community growing plots. 

 

5. Proposed division / use of the site 

The Hazlehead Grove Nursery site spans in total approximately 7.3 hectares.  
 
It is proposed that approximately 1.2 hectares is set aside and used as operational and 
social enterprise space. This would include: 

- Working nursery 
- Greenhouses and polytunnels 
- Frame yard 
- Potting shed 
- Staff facilities including car parking 
- Depot for Hazlehead staff 
- Spoil heap 

 
This nursery space will accommodate the business venture with social enterprise but will 
also be used as an educational space for schools and community groups. 
 
It is proposed to divide the remainder of the site into useable plots i.e. school garden, 
community garden, wildlife area, picnic area etc. No decision has been made to date on 
what the plots will be used for or the size of each plot to be made available. 
 
Pathways and set boundaries are all now mostly lost or overgrown so the shape of plots can 
be changed to suit what is required of them. Natural boundaries do exist in the form of tree 
belts and hedges and these do give the site evenly split and dividable plots. These 
boundaries give the site a very natural and countryside feel. 
 
The main part of the site has been split into 8 plots of approximately 5000M2 or roughly the 
size of a football pitch. There is obviously scope for these plots to be further split depending 
on what they may be used for. 
 
The North / East corner of the site is seen as the most suitable for an education space / 
school garden. This area covers approximately 1.3 hectares. This is a very large area of 
ground and may be too big for the schools alone. This area was chosen for its proximity to 
the nursery and also is an area that is almost at a stage were works can begin. 
 
The current green waste area of around 0.5 hectares remains. The long term plan for the 
service’s green waste is currently under review. 
 
The site in general has not been worked for 20 plus years and because of this much of the 

Page 125



 

Hazlehead Grove Nursery 
 

Draft Project Brief  

   

Page 4 of 5 

 

area is very wet and the trees planted 20 years ago for use elsewhere in the city have been 
left to grow and are now mature. 
 
To help with the drainage issue it is suggested that a pond / wildlife area be created. This 
could be used as a natural drainage and water retention area and also be a popular visitors 
site.  
 
Parts of the site are also full of spoil that would require to be removed to allow for the plots 
to be worked properly. 

 

6. Budget 

The Project Sponsor and Project Manager will be responsible for sourcing budget to 
fund/support the wider project from fundraising and external grants. Workstream leads will 
also be responsible for developing detailed business plans as to how specific initiatives 
within the project will be funded and financially sustained.  

 

7. Expected Benefits 

� Climate change 

� Strategic Infrastructure Plan 

� Britain in Bloom 2014 

� Potential for Project to be recognised nationally 

� Potential to develop a training facility for other Council services such as building etc. 

� Job creation through social enterprise initiatives 

� Creation of outdoor learning facilities 

� Improved health and wellbeing of the citizens of Aberdeen 

 

8. Risks 

� This is a high profile project that will therefore require a well considered communications 
and engagement plan. 

� Governance of Aberdeen City Council with Social Enterprise – vital to ensure the correct 
partnership arrangement is put in place. 

� Local Delivery Plan – change of land use 

� Health and Safety of those using the nursery in the future 

 

9. Governance Arrangements   

See Page 5. 

Page 126



 

Hazlehead Grove Nursery 
 

Draft Project Brief  

   

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Corporate 

Management Team

PROJECT SPONSOR

Mark Reilly

PROJECT BOARD

Mark Reilly – Project Sponsor

Claire Hunter – Project Support

Joyce Duncan, ACVO – Social Enterprise

Project Team Lead – Outdoor Learning

Project Team Lead – Social Care & Well Being

Hugh Murdoch – Asset Management

PROJECT TEAM

5. EDUCATION

Weekly 

updates

H & E Service 

Management Team

PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mark Reilly – Project Sponsor

Claire Hunter - Project Support

Angela Thain – Project Support

Stephen Christie – Communications

Steven Shaw – Service Lead

Elected Member Working Group

Housing & Environment 

Committee

PROJECT TEAM 

3. THIRD SECTOR

Lead – Joyce Duncan

PROJECT TEAM

6. COMMUNITY USE

PROJECT TEAM

2. ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES 

- DEPOT BUILD

PROJECT TEAM

1. PHYSICAL 

DEVELOPMENT 

OF SITE

Responsible for considering and approving 

recommendations put forward by Working Group

Responsible for overall guidance and strategic 

direction of project

Responsible for day-to-day management of project

Responsible for managing/monitoring progress of 

project against targets

Responsible for developing and maintaining project 

management documentation and ensuring project 

progression in line with objectives and timescales

Responsible for 

designing and 

delivering the 

actions that will 

deliver the projects 

objectives 

PROJECT GOVERNANCE

March 2014

PROJECT WORKSTREAMS

PROJECT TEAM

4. SOCIAL CARE & 

WELL BEING

PROJECT TEAM

7. CRAIGIEBUCKLER 

AND SEAFIELD 

COMMUNITY COUNCIL 

Priorities/outcomes to feed into social enterprise workstream

Mutual relationship

 

 

Revision History 

Date Reason By 

29 May 
2013 

Draft Project Brief prepared as part of project definition 
stage 

Claire Hunter 

16 April 
2014 

Further development of project brief for distribution to 
Project Board. 

Claire Hunter 

29 April 
2014 

Amendments to brief following feedback from the Elected 
Member Working Group of 23 April 2014. 

Claire Hunter 

7 May 
2014 

Amendments to brief following Committee consultation 
process. 

Claire Hunter 

 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing and Environment  
 
DATE  25th April 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Peter Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Implementation of the approved recommendations 

of the United Kingdom Accreditation Service 
(UKAS) assessment of the Aberdeen Scientific 
Services Laboratory (ASSL). 

 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/04/044 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To update committee on the status of UKAS accreditation and the progress of 
recommendations of assessment of the Aberdeen Scientific Services 
Laboratory. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

That the committee (i) notes the work being undertaken to implement and 
develop the recommendations of the 26th and 27th March 2014 UKAS 
surveillance report; (ii) approves the continuation of accreditation as a license 
to operate. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The estimate of expenditure required by UKAS to maintain the 4 year 
accreditation cycle (2012 – 2015) is £24,500. 
The estimate of the expenditure, including laboratory staff time, required by 
the Council to allow ASSL to maintain accreditation and implement 
recommendations over the same period is £57,000. 

 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

ASSL requires accreditation to standard ISO/IEC 17025:2005 (Requirements 
for the Competence of Testing and Calibration laboratories) in order to fulfill 
its statutory requirements as an Official Food and Feed Control Laboratory, as 
defined by the Food Standards Agency (Scotland). Accreditation to this 
standard is a license to operate. 

 
 

Agenda Item 7.2

Page 129



 

 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

ASSL continues as one of the highest ranked Official Control Laboratories in 
the UK, successfully maintaining accreditation since 1993 (the longest 
successful accreditation of any Scottish Official Control Laboratory). 
In 2011 ASSL was reassessed in order to enter a new 4 year cycle of 
accreditation (2012-2015). On 26th and 27th March 2014 the third, highly 
successful, surveillance visit of the accreditation cycle took place. 
UKAS surveillance assessments are all encompassing audits of ASSL’s 
operating and technical practices. Work undertaken by the Laboratory, 
including the implementation of the Quality Management System, are 
assessed against the ISO standard criteria, Food Standard Agency and 
Drinking Water Inspectorate  guidelines. 
 
As legislative and technical amendments are made accreditation 
requirements adapt to reflect and accommodate best practice. As such, the 
UKAS technical assessors make annual reports on surveillance visits of 
ASSL. The findings of the 2014 surveillance assessment are attached in 
Appendix A for reference. 

 
6. IMPACT 

 
The content of this report is in line with the general aims of “Aberdeen - "A  
Smarter City”. 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
Section 6.5.1 of the current service level agreements with Aberdeen City 
Council, Aberdeenshire Council and Moray Council state that “The Provider 
shall perform the analysis and examination of samples consistently and 
accurately according to recognised procedures.  These procedures will be 
validated regularly by both UKAS/DWTS accreditation and assessment, and 
by internal quality assessment procedures.” Failure to acquire, and maintain, 
UKAS/DWTS accreditation would mean that the laboratory would be unable to 
provide an analytical service, which currently accounts for 85% of the income 
of the laboratory, to these local authorities. 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
A copy of the 26th and 27th March 2014 UKAS surveillance visit report is 
included in appendix A for reference. 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
James Darroch 
Laboratory Manager 
Aberdeen Scientific Services Laboratory (formerly Laboratory of the Public 
Analyst) 
Housing and Environment 
Email jdarroch@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
Direct Dial 01224 491648  
 

Page 130



 

 

 
Appendix A 
 
Recommendations from the March 2014 surveillance visit for laboratory 1325 
(5464) Aberdeen City Council Aberdeen Scientific Services Laboratory, pages 
1 to 15. 
 
Please double click on assessment report below to review complete 

report. 

 

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
  
COMMITTEE   Housing and Environment     
 
DATE     20 May 2014   
 
DIRECTOR    Pete Leonard   
 
TITLE OF REPORT    Procurement of Big Belly Litter Bins  
  
REPORT NUMBER:  H&E/14/041 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is (a) to seek approval to exempt the award 
of a contract for the lease of Big Belly litter bins from the Council’s 
Standing Orders relating to Contracts and Procurement (approved by 
Full Council on 5 March, 2014), by reason of special circumstance; and 
(b) to seek approval of the estimated expenditure, as detailed in 
Section 3 of this report.   
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
That the Committee: 

 
(i) Approves a request under Standing Order1(6)(a) for an 

exemption from the Council’s Standing Orders on Contracts and 
Procurement to enable a contract to be awarded for the 
provision of Big Belly litter bins; and 

(ii) Approves the estimated expenditure of £96,200 for the lease of 
twenty Big Belly litter bins over a five year period. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
It is estimated that the costs involved will amount to no more than 
£96,200 in total. This is based over a 5 year lease period. 
 
The full cost of the bins is covered within existing revenue budgets. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Advice sought from Legal & Democratic Services highlights that 
awarding a contract without a competitive tender would constitute a 
breach of the Public Contracts (Scotland) Regulations 2012 (the 2012 

Agenda Item 7.3

Page 133



 

 

Regulations) and as such there is potential for the Council to be legally 
challenged on this basis.  The value of the proposed contract, when 
added to the value of the existing contract procured jointly with 
Aberdeen Inspired, results in an aggregated total which exceeds the 
thresholds prescribed in the Council’s Standing Orders and the 2012 
Regulations. The contract therefore ought to be procured in 
accordance with the rules set out in the 2012 Regulations.  However, 
the risks associated with legal challenge must be balanced with 
competing operational and economic factors.  With only one global 
supplier of the required litter bins in the market place, the risk of 
challenge is reduced, but not removed entirely.             
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
Big Belly Litter Bins 
 
The Big Belly uses solar power for 100% of its energy needs. The unit 
takes up the same "footprint" of an ordinary litter bin - but because of 
its compaction capability it can hold six to eight times more waste than 
the average street bin. 
 
Owing to its unique compaction capability, it can hold a minimum of 
606, increasing to 800 litres of waste, which is up to eight times greater 
than the average litter bin currently used by Aberdeen city Council.  
 
Benefits of Big Belly Litter Bins -   
 

• Reduces bin collection costs by up to and over 70%.  
 

• Proven to reduce street bin collections by an average 86%.  
 

• 100% Solar Powered.  
 

• An internal compactor increases the litter capacity by 6 - 8 times 
that of a normal litter bin.  

 

• It sends an email & text to office when the bin is 85% full.  
 

• Management & operatives can view, on desktops and smartphones, 
the real time fill levels of all bins, eliminating “milk round” type 
collection rounds.  

 

• Eliminates overflowing bins.  
 

• Eliminates weekend collections.  
 

• Eliminates birds/vermin scattering rubbish across streets, parks & 
beaches.  

 

Page 134



 

 

• Reduces street cleaning & litter picking requirements due to 
enclosed nature of bin.  

 

• Each Big Belly can transmit a Wi-Fi Platform providing local Council 
information and local retailer offers. This at no costs to the Council 
associated with this service. 

 

 
Procurement of Big Belly Litter Bins 
 

 Environmental Services propose to lease from a sole supplier, 20 litter 
bins. 

The sole supplier is Kyron Energy and Power Ltd.   

 It is the intention of Environmental Services to utilise these bins at 
Aberdeen beach to replace a substantial number of existing litter bins, 
and in doing so improve the litter bin capacity and consequently the 
cleanliness of the beach area.  

Market research has been undertaken by the Service, in conjunction 
with the Central Procurement Unit, to establish the availability of this 
product in the current marketplace. Findings indicate that this product 
is the only one of its type in the world market, and is heavily patented.   
 
The resulting efficiency savings in adopting this Big Belly bin have 
been evidenced by several UK Local Authorities, and confirmed by the 
adoption in 2013 by Aberdeen City Council, of a number of bins in the 
city centre. 
 
This project was in partnership with Aberdeen Inspired and has proved 
to be very successful.  

 The introduction of Big Belly bins in the city centre has resulted in 
significant savings from a financial perspective and increased 
efficiencies with collection crew utilisation. The savings from litter bin 
emptying has been reinvested back in to the street cleaning service in 
the city centre. This area is seen as a priority of the team as they look 
to improve cleanliness ratings and team performance. 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
The principal links to Aberdeen – The Smarter City are with the 
following Strategic Priorities 
 
Smarter Governance – Participation 
Smarter Living – Quality of Life 
Smarter People – Social and Human Capital 
 
Smarter Environment –  
 
This links in to the Council’s Smarter Environment commitment in that 
“We are investing in new technologies to increase energy efficiency 

Page 135



 

 

and reduce our carbon footprint…”. With the efficiencies and reduction 
in vehicle usage we will reduce the levels of both fuel used and 
emissions from the vehicles. 
 
It will also assist the Council in delivering the Single Outcome 
Agreement’s National Outcomes 
 
No. 12 – ‘We value and enjoy our built and natural environment and 
enhance it for future generations’ and contribute to other outcomes 
such as  
No. 6 – ‘We live longer, healthier lives’,  
No. 10 – ‘We live in well-designed, sustainable places where we are 
able to access the amenities and services we need’. 
 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
 This report is seen as a benefit to all, the assessment of risk 

associated with this report is very low. 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
    

None. 
 
 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Steven Shaw 
Environmental Manager  
stevens@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Tel 489273 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 136


	Agenda
	2.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 11 March 2014
	2.2 Committee Business Statement
	2.3 Annual Reports List
	3.1 Reduction in General Waste Container Size Following Introduction of Mixed Recycling Collections - Referral from Zero Waste Management Sub Committee
	4.1 Reduction in General Waste Container Size Following Introduction of Mixed Recycling Collections

	3.2 Homelessness Strategy Working Group, Change to Remit - Referral from the Homelessness Strategy Working Group
	Updated HSWG Remit - 2014

	4.1 Housing and Environment Business Plan Performance and Actions - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	H&E-14-045 Performance Report Appendix Final

	5.1 2013-14 Housing Capital Programme - Joint Report by the Directors of Corporate Governance and Housing and Environment
	5.2 2013-14 Revenue Budget Monitoring - Joint Report by the Directors of Corporate Governance and Housing and Environment
	H&E-14-043 Appendix 1

	5.3 Capital Monitoring - Housing and Environment Projects - Report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
	6.1 Affordable Housing Grant Assistance - Maidencraig and Hopetoun Grange - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	6.2 Affordable Housing Delivery - Report by the Director for Housing and Environment
	6.3 Welfare Reform and Financial Inclusion Update - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	6.4 Requirement for Major Repairs at Various Seaton Multi Stories - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	H&E-14-033 Appendices

	7.1 Project Brief for Hazlehead Grove Nursery Project - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	H&E-14-046 Appendix 1

	7.2 Implementation of the approved recommendations of the United Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS) assessment of the Aberdeen Scientific Services Laboratory (ASSL) - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	7.3 Procurement of Big Belly Litter Bins - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment

